
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2013 - 10:00 A.M.
           

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A. Presentation of Letters of Commendation by Gila County Sheriff J. Adam
Shepherd to ten (10) Sheriff's Office employees as follows: Sue Henderson,
Stephanie Marquez, Sgt. Virgil Dodd, Deputy Jay Valenzuela, Deputy Gabe
Valenzuela, Deputy Chris McGroarty, Officer Melissa Ramos, Sgt. Erich
Kenney, Lt. Christine Duarte, and Officer Johnnie Brake.

 

B. Public recognition of four (4) employees for September's "Spotlight on
Employees" Program, as follows: Debra Williams, Yvette Baxley, Thomas
Homan and Celena Cates. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2013-07
proclaiming October 2013 as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month" in Gila
County.  (Carolyn Gillis)

 

B. (Motion to adjourn as the Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements
between the Gila County Library District and the following eight libraries to
cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of the District for
the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014: Globe Public Library -
$113,600; Hayden Public Library - $49,600; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library -
$106,400; Miami Memorial Library - $54,400; Payson Public Library -
$230,400; San Carlos Library - $33,600; Tonto Basin Public Library -
$68,000; and Young Public Library - $55,600.  (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to
adjourn as the Library district Board of Directors and reconvene as the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

C. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement
between the City of Coolidge and Gila County d/b/a Gila/Pinal Workforce
Investment Board whereby the Coolidge Public Library will be designated
as an "Access Point" for the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area under the
Workforce Investment Act for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30,
2014.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

D. Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizen's Petition to begin the
process to establish Orient Drive as a Country Dirt Road.  (Steve Sanders)

 

  

  



 

E. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-10-01
accepting Vertical Heights Road as described in Fee No. 2013-010349, Gila
County Records, as a public road and to be maintained as a public roadway in
the Gila County Maintained Roadway System. (Steve Sanders)

 

F. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to Contract
No. 111311-1 between Gila County and Carson Construction Co., Inc.
to increase the contract amount by $41,296.97 for cost overruns, for a total
contract amount of $1,425,177.18 for work performed on the Pine Creek
Canyon Road Reconstruction Project, and to release funds to the Pine
Strawberry Water Improvement District in the amount of $8,783.30.  
(Steve Sanders)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and
voted upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of
the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A. Approval of an Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014
between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of
Community Services, Housing Program, which is part of an application for FY
2013/2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the
amount of $112,007, and if awarded, said funds will be used for a proposed
CDBG housing rehabilitation project in Gila County for the period
of November 1, 2013, through October 30, 2015.

 

B. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 between the
Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Housing Department, extending the contract end date from
September 30, 2013, to November 30, 2013.

 

C. Approval of Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. DE111006001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security
and Gila County Board of Supervisors which increases the contract amount
from $8,549,003 to $8,577,410 due to receiving incentive funds for the
Gila-Pinal Workforce Investment Area from the Governor's Council on
Workforce Policy.

 

D. Approval of a Co-Location Resource Sharing Agreement between Gila County
(dba Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board) and Central Arizona College
(CAC) to provide CAC with work space at the Gila County Comprehensive
One-Stop Center in Globe in the amount of $4,788 per year for the period
July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

 

E. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062)
between the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services and the
Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the amount of $308,575 to
allow for the continued provision of Nutrition Program Services for the period
of October 1, 2013, through September 30, 2018.  (This Contract replaces
ADHS Contract No. ADHS11-004485.)

  

  



 

F. Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and Time Out, Inc. in Payson
whereby the County will provide an economic development grant to Time Out,
Inc, in a not to exceed amount of $10,000 to assist in providing services for
the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014; and further, the Board
determines this is for the benefit of the public and will improve or enhance
the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.  

 

G. Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Cobre
Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation to serve liquor at a fund raising
event that will be held at the Gila County Fairgrounds on November 1, 2013.

 

H. Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of September 3,
2013, September 10, 2013, September 17, 2013, and September 24, 2013.

 

I. Acknowledgment of the August 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

J. Acknowledgment of the July 2013 and August 2013 monthly activity reports
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

K. Acknowledgment of the February 2012, March 2012, and August 2013
monthly activity reports submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

L. Acknowledgment of the August 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office

 

M. Approval of the September 3, 2013, Board of Supervisors meeting minutes
and the September 3, 2013, Board of Equalization meeting minutes.

 

N. Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of July 1, 2013, to July 5, 2013; July 8,
2013, to July 12, 2013; and July 15, 2013, to July 19, 2013.

 

O. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of September
24, 2013, and October 1, 2013.

 

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond
to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to
review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members  

  

  



6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-2096     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Adam
Shepherd,
Sheriff

Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer,
Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of Letters of Commendation by the Gila County Sheriff

Background Information
On August 16, 2013, an incident occurred in Globe which resulted in the fatal
shooting of a person of which Gila County Sheriff's Office employees were the initial
responders to the 911 call and were responsible for apprehending the perpetrator.

Evaluation
 J. Adam Shepherd, Gila County Sheriff, would like to present Letters of
Commendation to ten (10) Sheriff's Office employees who played a vital role in this
tragic incident.

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Gila County Sheriff to present Letters of Commendation to ten (10)
Sheriff's Office employees for their display of teamwork, dedication and
professionalism.

Suggested Motion
Presentation of Letters of Commendation by Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd to
ten (10) Sheriff's Office employees as follows: Sue Henderson, Stephanie Marquez, Sgt.
Virgil Dodd, Deputy Jay Valenzuela, Deputy Gabe Valenzuela, Deputy Chris
McGroarty, Officer Melissa Ramos, Sgt. Erich Kenney, Lt. Christine Duarte, and
Officer Johnnie Brake.

Attachments
Commendation Letters























   

ARF-2071     Presentation Agenda Item      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick,
Human
Resources
Director

Submitted By:

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant,
Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Information
Request/Subject
September 2013 "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following
qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
 n/a

Conclusion
 n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize four employees for
September 2013 through the County's "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of four (4) employees for September's "Spotlight on Employees"
Program, as follows: Debra Williams, Yvette Baxley, Thomas Homan and Celena Cates.
(Michael O'Driscoll)



   

ARF-2119     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Proclamation 2013-07 proclaiming October 2013 as "Domestic Violence
Awareness Month" in Gila County.

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors for many years has adopted a proclamation to declare the
month of October as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month" in Gila County. The
request each year usually comes from Gwen Carroll, Gila County Safe Home
Supervisor, or Carolyn Gillis, Program Supervisor.

Evaluation
Domestic violence is a major social crisis in our society and all Arizonans are effected
by domestic violence directly or indirectly.  Domestic violence affects every child and
adult in Gila County as a victim/survivor or as a family member, significant other,
neighbor or co-worker of a victim/survivor.

Conclusion
The Gila County Board of Supervisors recognizes the importance of designating a time
devoted to increase the general public's awareness and support of agencies providing
services to domestic violence victims and prepertrators.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors receive an update on the activities of
the Gila County Safe Home as this agency provides services to victims of domestic
violence within Gila County.  It would be beneficial for this agency to receive a
proclamation from the Board of Supervisors which proclaims the month of October as
"Domestic Violence Awareness Month" in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2013-07 proclaiming
October 2013 as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month" in Gila County.  (Carolyn
Gillis)

Attachments
Proclamation No. 2013-07
Request Letter for Proclamation No. 2013-07





 
 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2013-07 
 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, TO PROCLAIM OCTOBER 2013 AS “DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
AWARENESS MONTH” IN GILA COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, domestic violence continues to be a major social crisis in our society; 

 
WHEREAS, all Arizonans are affected by domestic violence directly or indirectly, and domestic 

violence costs this state and county millions of dollars in lost productivity and health costs; 
 

WHEREAS, domestic violence affects every child and adult in Gila County as a victim/survivor or as a 
family member, significant other, neighbor or co-worker of a victim/survivor; 
 

WHEREAS, volunteers and service providers in our community are working to provide a continuum of 
care to domestic violence survivors through 24-hour hotlines, emergency shelter, case management, support 
groups, advocacy, information and referrals, transportation and education and training; 
 

WHEREAS, Gila County seeks to improve services for victims/survivors of domestic violence and 
prevent future acts of domestic violence through public awareness and services for victims and perpetrators; 
 

WHEREAS, this community recognizes the vital importance of designating a time devoted to increase 
the general public’s awareness and support of agencies providing services to domestic violence victims and 
perpetrators; and 
 

WHEREAS, we hold forth a vision of a community free from domestic violence. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the members of Gila County Board of Supervisors do hereby proclaim 
October 2013 as “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” in Gila County. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of October 2013. 
 
ATTEST:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 



Horizon Human Services… 

Domestic Violence Safe Home 

  

   
  
  

H 

  

elping 

  D 
  

omestic 

  V 

  

iolence 

  S 

  

urvivors 

  H 

  

  eal 

  

   
   
    
   
     
    

PO Box 1543 
  

Globe, Arizona  85502 
  

Phone: 928-402-0648 

  

Fax: 928-402 9020 

      

domesticviol@horizonhumanservices.org 

     

cgillis@horizonhumanservices.org     

  

Horizon 
 

Domestic Violence 
 

Safe Home 
 

Assisting 
 

Victims 
 

Of 
 

Domestic 
Violence 

 

 
September 17, 2013 
 
 
RE: Requesting Proclamation and Agenda Time 
 
Dear Gila County Board of Supervisors: 
 
October is National Domestic Violence Awareness Month. This 
month provides an excellent opportunity for Gila County to 
demonstrate its support in ending domestic violence and to 
support the numerous victims who are among us. Moreover, it is a 
wonderful opportunity to educate the public on the seriousness of 
domestic violence and the prevalence of this epidemic in our lives.  
 
The Horizon Domestic Violence Safe Home would be honored if you 
would sponsor an official proclamation to recognize October as 
Gila County National Domestic Violence Awareness Month. Your 
proclamation would lend official recognition to the important work 
of educating the public on domestic violence, as well as emphasize 
your personal commitment to ending this crime. I have enclosed a 
sample proclamation which may help your office compose the 
appropriate proclamation for Gila County.  
 
If you or your staff has any questions concerning the request, the 
sample proclamation, or National Domestic Violence Awareness 
Month, please call me at 928-402-9297 (office), 928-812-2521 (c) 
or email me at cgillis@horizonhumanservices.org. I will follow-up 
with your office on this request in the next few days. As always, we 
appreciate your support of, National Domestic Violence Awareness 
Month and the ending of domestic violence. Thank you for 
consideration on this special request.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Carolyn Gillis 
 
Carolyn Gillis  
Program Supervisor 
 

mailto:cgillis@horizonhumanservices.org


   

ARF-2103     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Library Assistant Senior,
Asst County Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013-June 30, 2014 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Library Service Agreements with  Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, San Carlos, Tonto Basin and
Young Libraries.

Background Information
At the Board of Supervisors' Special meeting of July 16, 2013, a new methodology and formula based on current
data, relevant to today’s library services and tied to services actually being provided by the affiliate libraries was
adopted by the Board. It provides a base amount to the rural libraries that are in unincorporated areas, and
equitably distributes the limited funding that is available in the Gila County Library District. This particular set of
measures includes four core services. It redistributes funding based on services actually provided, while providing
consideration for the challenges facing the private non-profit libraries that provide these services in unincorporated
areas.

Because the new funding formula is based on measurable services, it removes the requirement for matching funds
from the city/towns/tribal entities. It ties funding to four key core measures of library service that can be
substantiated, and are standard measures throughout libraries.

The Public Library Assistance Funding Formula recognizes the changes to library services that have occurred in the
past twenty years, and connects funding to core library services provided by the eight affiliate libraries to the
residents of Gila County. This new funding formula was incorporated into the Library Services Agreements for
Fiscal Year 14 and presented to each library's governing board or council.

Evaluation
Due to the new Public Library Assistance Funding Formula, the funding amounts from the Library District to
the public libraries have changed from last year.   Library District funding for Fiscal Year 14 for the eight libraries is
as follows:  Globe Public Library - $113,600; Hayden Public Library - $49,600; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library
- $106,400; Miami Memorial Library - $54,400; Payson Public Library - $230,400; San Carlos Library -
$33,600; Tonto Basin Public Library - $68,000; and Young Public Library - $55,600.  The Library District
distributes these amounts in two installments, in November 2013 and May 2014.

Conclusion
Approval of the Library Service Agreements facilitates funding and resource sharing with the affiliate libraries.

Recommendation
The  Gila County District Librarian recommends the approval of the Library Service Agreements between the Gila
County Library District and Globe Public Library, Hayden Public Library, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library (Pine),
Miami Memorial Library, Payson Public Library, San Carlos Library, Tonto Basin Public Library and Young Public
Library for fiscal year 2013-2014.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements between the Gila County Library
District and the following eight libraries to cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of the District
for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014: Globe Public Library - $113,600; Hayden Public Library -
$49,600; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - $106,400; Miami Memorial Library - $54,400; Payson Public Library -
$230,400; San Carlos Library - $33,600; Tonto Basin Public Library - $68,000; and Young Public Library -
$55,600.  (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Library district Board of Directors and reconvene as the
Board of Supervisors.)



Attachments
LSA 2014 Globe
LSA 2014 Hayden
LSA 2014 Isabelle Hunt (Pine)
LSA 2014 Town of Miami
LSA 2014 Payson
LSA 2014 SanCarlos
LSA 2014 Tonto Basin
LSA 2014 Young
Legal Explanations (contracts)
Legal Explanation (IGAs)



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This Library Service Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the GILA
COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the City of
Globe, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,
2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County
Library District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the CITY recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the CITY operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
CITY to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution
of District tax levied funds to participating entities.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the CITY as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the CITY, are the
property of the CITY.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the CITY remain the sole
responsibility of the CITY.

4. To the extent permitted by law, each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party (as "indemnitee") from and
against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs or other expenses including
reasonable attorney's fees (hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims")
arising out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage,
but only to the extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative
liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence,
misconduct or other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, official agents,
employees or volunteers.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of5

5. The CITY agrees to the following conditions:

A. The CITY shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
CITY's library. Funds will not be used for capital improvement projects or
major building repairs without prior approval from the Board of Directors
of the Gila County Library District.

B. The CITY shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library.

C. The CITY shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
intra-library and inter-library loan services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

D. The CITY shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the CITY library.

E. The CITY agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control of the CITY.

F. The CITY's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The CITY
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The CITY shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. CITY library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

I. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance

The CITY hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this
Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to CITY's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214
(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The CITY shall
further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for CITY
under this Agreement likewise complies with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 3 of5

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records
of the CITY and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of the CITY's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance
with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement
subjecting the CITY to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, the CITY shall be
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the
services that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The CITY shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Section I by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply
with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees,
and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further
agrees that District may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any
breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material
breach of this Agreement subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and
including suspension or termination of this Agreement."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Section I shall be the responsibility ofthe CITY.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this Agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 4 of5

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The CITY and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the CITY. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:

A. To fund the CITY for library services, in the total amount of $113,600.00
for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments: one half (112) in November
2013 and one half (1/2) in May 2014.

8. This Agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This Agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the CITY agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the CITY. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the CITY library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the CITY library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library District
and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the CITY library any
books, materials and equipment belonging to the CITY library which had been
entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

12. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this Agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., and judgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 5 of5

for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

CITY

-4~!i~~
Mayor

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date Date

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing Agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the CITY, who has determined that the Agreement is in proper
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to the
CITY.

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing Agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney



,.

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Town of Hayden, hereinafter referred to as
the "TOWN," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the TOWN recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
TOWN to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to the participating TOWN.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the TOWN as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services,

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the TOWN, are the
property of the TOWN.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the TOWN remain the sole
responsibility of the TOWN.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The TOWN agrees to the following conditions:



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of5

A. The TOWN shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
TOWN's library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used
for capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.

B. The TOWN shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library.

C. The TOWN shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in intra-library and inter-library loan services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

D. The TOWN shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the TOWN library.

E. The TOWN agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the TOWN.

F. The TOWN's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The TOWN
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The TOWN shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. TOWN library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

I. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The TOWN hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to
TOWN's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws").
The TOWN shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any
work for the TOWN under this contract likewise complies with the State
and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records ofthe TOWN and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of TOWN's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance



Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page 3 of5

with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting the TOWN to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, the TOWN shall be
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the
services that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The TOWN shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with
all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and
with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees
that District may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure
that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of
this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of
this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including
suspension or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility ofthe TOWN.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.



Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page 4 of5

7. The TOWN and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the TOWN. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:

A. To fund the TOWN for library services, in the total amount of $49,600.00
for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2013 and May
2014.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement ofthe
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the TOWN agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the TOWN. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the TOWN library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the TOWN
library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library
District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the TOWN
library any books, materials and equipment belonging to the TOWN library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating
library.

12. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., and judgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County
for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.



_. --------------

Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 5 of5

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date Date

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the TOWN, who has determined that the agreement is in proper
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to the
TOWN.

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the ISABELLE HUNT MEMORIAL
PUBLIC LIBRARY, INC., hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and shall be for a
period commencing July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless·
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of5

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seq.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of 24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library, the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library.

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in intra-library and inter-library services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

I. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they



.---~-------------~

Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page30fS

are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

1. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

K. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to
Board's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws").
Board shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work
for Board under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance
with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting Board to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Board shall be required
to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor
hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract
comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's
employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A).
Subcontractor further agrees that District may inspect the Subcontractor's
books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these
requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be
deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial
action under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 4 of5

online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $106,400.00 for library
services, for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2013, and May
2014.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the



Library Service Agreement
- 201312014

Page 5 of5
station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the
Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

ISABELLE HUNT MEMORIAL
PUBLIC LIBRARY, INe.

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney, Gila County













GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Town of Payson, hereinafter referred to as
the "TOWN," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seg. and 48-3901 et seg.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the TOWN recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
TOWN to continue as a participating member of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to the participating TOWN.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the TOWN as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the TOWN, are the
property of the TOWN.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the TOWN remain the sole
responsibility of the TOWN.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The TOWN agrees to the following conditions:



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of 5

A. The TOWN shall use the District funds to ensure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
TOWN's library, pursuant to A.R.S. §48-3901 et. seq. Funds will not be
used for capital improvement projects or major building repairs without
prior approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library
District.

B. The TOWN shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library.

C. The TOWN shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in intra-library and inter-library loan services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

D. The TOWN shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the TOWN library.

E. The TOWN agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the TOWN.

F. The TOWN's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The TOWN
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online shared
public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library District
materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be implemented.

G. The TOWN shall ensure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they
are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

H. TOWN library staff agrees to attend and participate in at least three of the
four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

I. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The TOWN hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to
TOWN's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws").
The TOWN shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any
work for the TOWN under this contract likewise complies with the State
and Federal Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of the TOWN and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 3 of5

Any breach of TOWN's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance
with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting the TOWN to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, the TOWN shall be
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the
services that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The TOWN shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor hereby
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with
all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and
with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees
that District may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to insure
that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of
this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of
this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including
suspension or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action
under this Article shall be the responsibility of the TOWN.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide
online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating library
in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary for
maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 4 of5

7. The TOWN and the District acknowledge that the services performed have a
value to the District and the TOWN. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees:

A. To fund the TOWN for library services, in the total amount of
$230,400.00 for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, in November 2013 and May
2014.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the TOWN agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the TOWN. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the TOWN library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the TOWN
library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library
District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the TOWN
library any books, materials and equipment belonging to the TOWN library
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating
library.

12. Any dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action arising out of or related to
this agreement shall be governed by Arizona law and may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association
and the Arizona Uniform Arbitration Act, ARS 12 - 1501, et seq., and judgment
upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in the Superior
Court of Gila County, or any such dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of
action may be litigated in a court. The venue for any such dispute shall be Gila
County, Arizona. Each party waives the right to object to venue in Gila County
for any reason. Neither party shall be entitled to recover any of its attorneys'
fees or other costs from the other party incurred in any such dispute,
controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall bear its own
attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through arbitration,
litigation in a court, or otherwise.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 5 of 5

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

TOWN GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

L-~
fOWN Clerk I

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date ~ 7 Date

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the TOWN, who has determined that the agreement is in proper
form and is within the powers and authority granted unde\the laws of the State to the

TOWN. ~_.-c-=-j-~----
TOWN Attorney

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney



LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
AND

SAN CARLOS APACHE TRIBE

JULY 1,2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This Library Service Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into between the GILA
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS acting as the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the SAN CARLOS APACHE
TRIBE, hereinafter referred to as the "Tribe," and shall be for a period commencing July 1,
2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the San Carlos Apache Tribe is a federally recognized tribe organized
pursuant to the Indian Reorganization Act of June 18, 1934 (48 Stat. 984),
as amended by the Act of June 15, 1935 (49 Stat. 378);

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seg. and 48-3901 et seg.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Tribe recognize the need to cooperate in the provision of
library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Tribe operates and maintains a public library (the "Tribe's Library") and
it is the desire of the Tribe to continue as a participating member of the
District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating Tribes.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Tribe as
follows:

1. In consideration of District funds received by the Tribe, all citizens of the
District shall have full use of the Tribe's library facilities and services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Tribe shall be the
property of the Tribe.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of6

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Tribe remain the sole
responsibility of the Tribe.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Tribe agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Tribe shall use the District's funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the Tribe's
library, pursuant to A.R.S. §48 - 3901 et seq. Tribe agrees not to use
District's funds for capital improvement projects or major building repairs
without prior approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County
Library District.

B. The Tribe, by and through its Library Program, shall annually submit to the
Arizona State Library, the Arizona Public Library Statistical Report as
required by the State Library.

C. The Tribe shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating in
intra-library and inter-library as a borrower and lender of library materials.

D. The Tribe shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions that
the District or another participating library imposes with respect to loans of
books, materials, or equipment to the Tribe's Library.

E. The Tribe agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any losses
and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to another
participating library or the District, which occur while these items are in the
possession and control of the Tribe.

F. The Tribe's decision to participate in the countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement and the
resolution of the Tribal Council of the Tribe providing such authorization,
as attached and incorporated by this reference. This Agreement shall not be
valid without the authorization of the Tribal Council in the form of its
resolution. The Tribe agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging,
circulation, online shared public access catalog, long-term loan of



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 3 of6

supplementary Library District materials, if applicable, and other online
functions as may be implemented.

G. The Tribe shall ensure that the Tribe's Library Manager (Librarian) and
staff understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that
they are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend
training on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will
be provided by, and coordinated through the District.

H. Tribe agrees that its library staff shall attend and participate in at least three
of the four quarterly countywide librarians meetings each year.

1. Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Tribe hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this
Contract comply with all federal immigration laws if applicable to Tribe's
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 23-214
(A), if applicable (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The
Tribe further agrees not to subcontract any of the services provided by the
Tribe's Library.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
Tribe's library:

A. The Tribe may participate in the countywide online system, subject to
conditions specified in this Agreement. Operation of the countywide online
system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the Board of
Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions regarding
this system.

B. The District shall ensure continuous operation of and access to the online
system, notifying the Tribe's library in advance of any scheduled
shutdowns, should any be necessary for maintenance and backup routines.

C. The District shall further provide the Tribe's library with:

(1) Coordination of countywide library development;

(2) Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers;

(3) Regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at the
affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff; and

(4) Professional assistance and consultation services.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 4 of6

7. The Tribe and the District acknowledge that the library services performed have
a value to the District and the Tribe. In consideration of that value, the District
agrees to:

A. Fund library services, in the amount of$33,600.00 for Fiscal Year 2014;

B. Distribute this amount to the Tribe in two installments, in November 2013
and May 2014;

8. This Agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. Upon reasonable notice, the District shall have the right at any time to inspect
the books and records of Tribe' and any subcontractor.

10. Any breach of Tribe's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to
be a material breach of this Agreement subjecting Tribe to penalties up to and
including suspension or termination of this Agreement.

11. Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under
this Article shall be the responsibility of the Tribe.

12. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

13. This Agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

14. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Tribe agrees to
return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library, which
had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Tribe. Conversely, the
Library District agrees to deliver to the Tribe's Library, by the date of
termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the Tribe's
Library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Library
District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the Tribe library
any books, materials and equipment belonging to the Tribe's Library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 5 of6

15. In the event of a dispute under this Agreement, the parties agree to make a good
faith attempt to resolve the dispute prior to taking formal. In the event that such
dispute, controversy, claim, or cause of action ("Dispute") arising out of or
related to this Agreement cannot be settled, the Dispute may, but in no event
need, be settled by submission with the consent of both parties to binding
arbitration. Judgment upon any award rendered by the arbitrators may be
entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. Neither party shall be entitled to
recover any of its attorneys' fees or other costs from the other party incurred in
any such dispute, controversy, claim or cause of action, but each party shall
bear its own attorneys' fees and costs, whether the same is resolved through
arbitration, litigation in a court, or otherwise. The Tribe does not agree to any
arbitration by persons or parties or their assignees which are not a party to this
Agreement, nor to any arbitration proceeding or other proceeding based on
alleged tortious conduct, or for the imposition of incidental, consequential,
exemplary or punitive damages or lost profits.

16. The provisions of this section shall govern and control this Agreement where
such provisions are in conflict with any other provision of the Agreement.

17. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign
immunity by the San Carlos Apache Tribe, its consent to be sued, or its consent
to the jurisdiction of any federal or state court.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

SAN CARLOS APACHE TRIBE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
As the: GILA COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT

Michael A. Pastor
Chairman

ATTEST:

/;m~
! Tribal Council Secretary

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

~$ d-f}t?Y
Date Date



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 6 of6

The foregoing Agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Tribe,
who h~s determin~d that the agreement is in proper form and~, within the powers and
authonty of the Tnbe. -r:" '

- ,:::-:;:::::::-~-
( 1 "- .. -,.~

Attorney OL. - an 'ar os Apache Tribe

Pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952(D) the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned attorney for the Gila County Library District, who has determined that the
agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws
of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the Board of the TONTO BASIN PUBLIC
LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and shall be for a period commencing
July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seg. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



-------------------------------------

Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of5

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seq.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of 24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library, the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library.

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in intra-library and inter-library services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature( s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

1. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 3 of5

are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

J. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

K. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to
Board's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws").
Board shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work
for Board under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance
with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting Board to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Board shall be required
to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor
hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract
comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's
employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A).
Subcontractor further agrees that District may inspect the Subcontractor's
books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these
requirements. Any breach ofthis paragraph by Subcontractor will be
deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial
action under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 4 of5

online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $68,000.00 for library
services, for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2013, and May
2014.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 5 of5

station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the
Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

OF TONTO BASIN
C LIBRARY

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Date

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
LIBRARY SERVICE AGREEMENT
JULY 1,2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014

This agreement is entered into between the GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as the "District," and the PLEASANT VALLEY COMMUNITY
LIBRARY BOARD OF THE YOUNG PUBLIC LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the
"Board" and shall be for a period commencing July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has established a County Library
District, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-901 et seq. and 48-3901 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Board recognize the need to cooperate in the
provision of library services to the citizens of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board operates and maintains a library and it is the desire of the
Board to join the District and to continue as an established station of the District; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to establish terms and conditions prior to distribution of
District tax levied funds to participating boards.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED by and between the District and the Board as
follows:

1. All citizens of the District shall have full use of the library facilities and
services.

2. All library materials purchased with District funds by the Board, are the
property of the Board.

3. It is understood by both parties that officials, employees and agents of the
District remain the sole responsibility of the District. It is further understood
that the officials, employees and agents of the Board remain the sole
responsibility of the Board.

4. Each party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or other expenses including reasonable attorney's fees
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "claims") arising out of bodily injury of
any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that
such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are



Library Service Agreement
2013/2014
Page 2 of5

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct or other fault of the
indemnitor, its officers, official agents, employees or volunteers.

5. The Board agrees to the following conditions:

A. The Board shall use the District funds to insure the payments of salaries,
routine maintenance and upkeep and other necessary expenses of the
library, pursuant to ARS 48 - 3901 et seq. Funds will not be used for
capital improvement projects or major building repairs without prior
approval from the Board of Directors of the Gila County Library District.
District funds may not be accumulated from year to year for capital
projects. An annual written accounting shall be made to the District
describing the manner and use of funds as required by the District.

B. Because the Board receives public monies from the District, the Board
shall conduct all business meetings in accordance with Arizona Open
Meeting Laws, A.R.S. 38-431 et seg.

C. The Board shall require that the library maintain a minimum of 24 public
service hours each week. These hours may be inclusive of official
holidays observed by Gila County.

D. The Board shall annually submit to the Arizona State Library, the Arizona
Public Library Statistical Report as required by the State Library .:

E. The Board shall support resource sharing among libraries by participating
in intra-library and inter-library services as a borrower and lender of
library materials.

F. The Board shall comply with any reasonable conditions or restrictions
which the District or another participating library imposes with respect to .
loans of books, materials, or equipment to the station library.

G. The Board agrees to reimburse any other participating library for any
losses and/or damage to books, materials, or equipment belonging to
another participating library or the District, which occur while these items
are in the possession and control of the station library.

H. The Board's decision to participate in a countywide online system is
evidenced by the authorized signature(s) on this Agreement. The Board
agrees to utilize the online system for: cataloging, circulation, online
shared public access catalog, long-term loan of supplementary Library
District materials, if applicable, and other online functions as may be
implemented.

1. The Board shall insure that the Library Manager (Librarian) and staff
understand and are proficient in all functions of the online system that they



Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page 3 of5

are responsible for by providing reasonable time for staff to attend training
on the online system at the District's recommendation. Training will be
overseen by, and coordinated through the District.

J. The Board shall require library staff or a representative to attend and
participate in at least three of the four quarterly countywide librarians
meetings each year.

K. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance
The Board hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of

this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to
Board's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws").
Board shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work
for Board under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws.

The District shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and
records of Board and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Board's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance
with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of
this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract
subjecting Board to penalties up to and including suspension or
termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Board shall be required
to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a
replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

The Board shall advise each subcontractor of District's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this Article by including a provision in
each subcontract substantially in the following form: "Subcontractor
hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract
comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's
employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A).
Subcontractor further agrees that District may inspect the Subcontractor's
books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these
requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be
deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract."

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial'
action under this Article shall be the responsibility of the Board.

6. The District will provide the following benefits and support services to the
library:

A. Opportunity to participate in a countywide online system subject to
conditions specified in this agreement. Operation of the countywide



Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page 4 of5

online system is a Library District function subject to oversight by the
Board of Directors of the Library District, who will make final decisions
regarding this system.

B. Operate the online system continuously, notifying the participating
library in advance of any scheduled shutdowns, should any be necessary
for maintenance and backup routines.

C. Provide internet access (connectivity) for both library staff and public
computers

D. Coordination of countywide library development.

E. Continuing education opportunities for staff and volunteers.

F. Offer regular orientation training on the online system for all new staff at
the affiliate libraries, as well as coordinate and oversee special update
training for veteran staff.

G. Professional assistance and consultation services.

7. The Board and the District acknowledge that the services to be performed
have a value to the District and to the Board. In consideration of that value,
the District agrees:

A. To pay the Board an amount not to exceed $55,600.00 for library
services, for fiscal year 2014.

B. To distribute this amount in two installments, November 2013, and May
2014.

8. This agreement may be renewed from year to year by mutual agreement of the
parties involved.

9. This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and, it may be amended, modified or waived only by an
instrument in writing signed by both parties.

10. This agreement may be canceled pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511, the pertinent
provisions of which are fully incorporated herein by reference.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving 30 days' notice to the
other. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the Board agrees
to return to the owner, by the date of termination, any books, materials and
equipment belonging to the Library District or other participating library,
which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the Board.
Conversely, the Library District agrees to deliver to the station library, by the
date of termination, any books, materials, and equipment belonging to the



Library Service Agreement
201312014
Page 5 of5

station library which had been entrusted to the possession or control of the
Library District and to make reasonable, good faith efforts to return to the
Board any books, materials and equipment belonging to the library which had
been entrusted to the possession or control of another participating library.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives.

PLEASANT VALLEY COMMUNITY
LIBRARY BOARD GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

A1.t&tJJ.!l.,i~~_
Chairman of t~ Chairman, Board of Directors

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Secretary of t Board Clerk of the Board

I ID~ D~

The foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned attorney for the Gila
County Library District, who has determined that the agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State to Gila County.

Deputy County Attorney, Gila County



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2100     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department
Program Manager, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program Year 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013 - June 2014 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Coolidge for Local Access Point for Coolidge Public Library.

Background Information
Access Points are employment information centers which were launched by the Department of Labor
under the Workforce Investment Act.  The initiative was part of an effort to create local outreach
centers where job seekers could access workforce development services in their local communities.  This
concept created a unique opportunity for community agencies and the One-Stop System to engage and
partner to promote access to the Workforce System.

An incentive grant from Arizona Department of Economic Security shall fund this initiative.

Evaluation
While each Access Point offers a unique set of resources (depending on the participating partners), all
Access Points offer free computer and Internet access for the purpose of job searching.  Access Point
connect job seekers to both employment and community resources in a convenient location and close to
home.  

Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Responsibilities:
• Share resources and job postings with Access Points;
• Refer individuals to Access Points based on needs and location of residence;
• Market Access Points at all One-Stop Centers;
• Invite Access Points to quarterly One-Stop meetings and provide opportunities for information sharing;
• Hold orientations for Access Points twice annually, if needed;
• Conduct annual staff visits providing support to Access Points as needed;
• Inspection of the locations for signage;
• Training of Access Point staff to help job seekers with job search activities;
• Equipment maintenance and supplies; and
• Desktop computers (Microsoft program with Internet access), printer, computer desk and chair, if
needed.

Access Point Responsibilities:
• Host an Access Point consisting of a computer with Internet access and Point of Contact trained by
workforce system staff;
• Help job seekers as needed and staff availability;
• Publicize job seeker services to the Access Point’s community;
• Send staff to initial training;
• Submit sign-in sheets monthly to document activities;
• Assure that reasonable precautions will be taken to ensure hardware, software; and/or other
equipment remain secure and in good repair;



• Agree to abide by all applicable federal, state and local laws; and
• Refer customers to the One-Stops, as needed.

Conclusion
The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a local Access Point in the City of Coolidge Public Library. 
Under the Workforce Act, the "Access Point" model consists of local entities/organizations and/or
business where job services can be provided, assisted by trained individuals.

Recommendation
Recommendation to approve City of Coolidge Public Library to become an "Access Point" under the
Workforce Investment Act for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of
Coolidge and Gila County d/b/a Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board whereby the Coolidge Public
Library will be designated as an "Access Point" for the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area under the
Workforce Investment Act for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
IGA Agreement - City of Coolidge
Legal Explanation













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2092     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Deputy Director, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
A Citizen's Petition to Begin the Process to Establish Orient Drive as a Country Dirt Road

Background Information
Gila County Public Works Policy No. ENG03-04 adopted by the Board of Supervisors on
October 7, 2003, and most recently revised on May 24, 2007, establishes policies and
procedures for accepting certain dirt roads in the County as country dirt roads. The initial
step in the procedure is a Citizen's Petition to begin the process to establish a "Country Dirt
Road." The Engineering Department has received a Citizen's Petition to being the process to
establish Orient Drive as a Country Dirt Road.

Evaluation
After reviewing the Petition and supporting documentation for Orient Drive, the Engineering
Department has determined that it meets the initial requirements to be designated as a
Country Dirt Road.

Conclusion
After determining that the Petition meets the requirements for a Country Dirt Road, the next
step in the process is to present the Petition to the Board of Supervisors to either accept or
reject the Petition. If the Petition is rejected, no further action is taken and the road remains
private. If the Petition is accepted, the Engineering Department will prepare a map of the road
and easement documents of property owners along the road for the petitioner to use to collect
the necessary signatures required to grant an easement of the road to Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Public Works that the Board accept a
Citizen's Petition to begin the process to establish Orient Drive as a County Dirt Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizen's Petition to begin the process to establish
Orient Drive as a Country Dirt Road.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Citizen's Petition
Map
Country Dirt Road Guidelines Policy No. ENG03-04





Wednesday, Sep 04, 2013  08:57 AM





















   

ARF-2099     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Deputy Director, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 13-10-01 regarding Vertical Heights Road

Background Information
During a heavy rainfall event in January of 2010, a portion of a County maintained gravel
surface road; Vertical Heights, was subjected to extensive erosion of the existing roadway fill
zone (to the north of the roadway centerline). This erosive condition resulted in slope and/or
toe failure of the roadway embankment and a full lane width portion of the roadway was lost.
The previous two-lane gravel surface roadway is now reduced to a single lane that serves a
portion of the area north of Globe with no secondary access into the area available. The width
of the failure envelope is approximately 150 feet longitudinal with the roadway alignment and
nearly 30 feet to the north of the edge of the previous roadway.

Estimated repair to the road failure is in excess of $350,000. Gila County applied to the
Arizona Department of Emergency Management( ADEM) for hazard mitigation funds but was
unsuccessful in obtaining funding for the repairs.

Evaluation
With limited funding to repair the road other options were explored. One of the options was to
shift the road away from the fill area to a cut area. To facilitate this option, additional property
needed to be acquired.  The property owner adjacent to the road was contacted and
discussions begin in an attempt to acquire additional right-of-way.

Conclusion
The property owner agreed to deed a parcel of land approximately 0.4 acres in size adjacent to
the failed roadway to the County. With this additional land the County can shift the location
of the road away from the failure and maintain two-way traffic in a safe manner for the
traveling public.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Public Works that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 13-10-01

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-10-01 accepting Vertical
Heights Road as described in Fee No. 2013-010349, Gila County Records, as a public road
and to be maintained as a public roadway in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System. (Steve Sanders)
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments



Resolution 13-10-01
Quit Claim Deed



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-10-01 
 

       
A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OFFICIALLY ACCEPTING A ROADWAY DEED FOR VERTICAL HEIGHTS 
ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN FEE NO. 2013-010349, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, 
AS A PUBLIC ROAD AND TO BE MAINTAINED AS A PUBLIC ROADWAY 
IN THE GILA COUNTY MAINTAINED ROADWAY SYSTEM 

 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §28-6705 the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors may spend public monies for maintenance of public roads other than 
highways; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said Board of Supervisors acknowledges that this road was laid out, opened 

and constructed without cost to the County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

that a roadway deed for Vertical Heights Road as described in Fee No. 2013-010349, Gila 
County Records be accepted into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System and maintained 
as a public roadway. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of October 2013. 

 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
     
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Bryan Chambers  
Deputy Attorney Principal 



2013-010349 QCD Page: 1 of 2
08/29/201302:48:03PM Receipt#: 13-6906RecFee:SO GilaCountyEngineeringServicesGilaCounty.Az,SadieJo Tomerlin,Recorder

All ,'QML*d 'lM, 'IP.AWOMBRIM,0W HI III

When recorded returnto:

Gila County Engineering Services

745 N. Rose Mofford Way

Globe, Arizona 85501

QUIT CLAIM DEED

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: for the consideration of Ten Dollars

($10.00),and other valuable considerations,MILOVAN RADANOVICH, As Trustee

of THE MILOVAN RADANOVICH REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST dated

December 20, 2005, does hereby release,remise, and forever quitclaim unto GILA

COUNTY, a BODY POLITIC, the Releasee(s),with allrights,titleand interestin that

certainReal Property situatedin Gila County, Stateof Arizona, and legallydescribedas

follows:

See Exhibit "A" attached and made part hereof

Exempt per A. R. S. section11-1134 A-3

Dated this day of 1,741,75f 2013

MILOVAN RADANOVICH

Trusteeof the Milovan Radanovi Revocable Living Trust dated December 20, 2005.

BeneficiaryDis I sure:

STATE OF (ARIZONA)

) ss.

COUNTY OF (GILA)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

On thi day of ,2013,beforeme, theundersignedNotaryPublic,

personallyappearedMilovan Radanovich, known tome tobe theindividualwho executedthe

foregoinginstrumentand acknowledgedthesame tobe theirfreeactand deed.

WITNESS my hand and officialseal.

My Commission Expires: 4-/94 Notary Public

OFFICIALSEAL
SHANNON BOYER
IIOTARYPUBUC-StateofArlions

GII.ACOUNTY
MyComm.ExpiresApril13.2015



2013-010349 QCD Page: 2 of 2
08/29/201302 49.03PM Receipt#: 13-6806RecFee:$0 GilaCountyEngineeringServices
GilaCounty.Az,SadieJo Tomerlin,Recorder

Exhibit A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Gila County Public Works August 19,2013

Job No. GC2013-07 (Radanovich) Page 1 of I

A parcel of land situatein the Southeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section

15,Township 1 North, Range 15 East, Gila and SaltRiver Meridian, Gila County,
Arizona. Said parcel of land being a portion of that property described in

Document IdentificationNo. 2005-023843, records of the Gila County Recorder,
Gila County, Arizona, having a boundary more particularlydescribed as follows:

Commencing at a 1" square head steelboltmarking the Northeast corner of the

Southeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of said Section 15 from which the %"

pipe with tag stamped LS 5703 marking the Northwest corner of the Southeast

quarter of the Southwest quarter of said Section 15 bears South 89012'48" West a

distance of 1318.85 feet;

THENCE South 89012'48" West a distance of 659.35 feet;

THENCE South 80034'50" East a distance of 225.75 feet;

THENCE North 89012'48" East a distance of 200.00 feet;

THENCE North 79038'25" East a distance of 240.52 feetto the POINT OF

BEGINNING, having an area of 0.395 acres,more or less.



   

ARF-2102     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Finance Department
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

4-30-12 to
12-19-12

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction
Co., Inc.

Background Information
On April 3, 2012, Gila County entered into a contract with Carson Construction Co.,
Inc. for the roadway improvement and waterline upgrade of Pine Creek Canyon Road.
The contract was issued through the County's formal bid process. Gila County
requested proposals for this work and signed a contract with the lowest qualified
bidder, Carson Construction Co., Inc.

The contract was issued in the amount of $1,443,880.21. Included in the
$1,443,880.21 contract amount is $283,590.53 for the Pine Strawberry Water
Improvement District (PSWID) waterline upgrade. PSWID wanted to upgrade their
waterlines in the area and add fire hydrants to help protect the residents in case of
fire. Gila County entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with PSWID on
February 7, 2012, that stated PSWID would pay for the waterline improvements and
Gila County would bid and administer the PSWID work, as part of the overall Pine
Creek Road Reconstruction project. PSWID submitted payment to Public Works on
May 1, 2012, per the terms of the IGA. 

The low waterline bid of $283,590.53, was from Carson Construction Co., Inc., but
was in excess of the budgeted amount for the waterline. PSWID worked with Carson
Construction Co., Inc. to change the type of pipe used for the waterline, resulting in a
savings of $60,000, for a new total PSWID waterline improvement amount of
$223,590.53. Amendment No. 1 was executed on April 3, 2012, reducing the Carson
Construction Co., Inc. contract amount by $60,000, for a new total contract amount
of $1,383,880.21.

The project is now complete and Carson Construction Co., Inc. has submitted a final



The project is now complete and Carson Construction Co., Inc. has submitted a final
pay application. Pay Application No. 8 includes a cost overrun of 2.98% which equates
to an additional $41,296.97. The overrun is due to changes made during construction
or due to additional work requested during construction. A Change Order Detail cost
analysis is attached. The final contract amount is now $1,425,177.18. Additionally,
there is a balance of $8,783.30 in the waterline fund that needs to be returned to
PSWID, per the IGA dated February 7, 2012.

The following documents are attached to this Agenda Quick item; Gila County
Request for Invitation for Bids-Pine Creek Canyon Road Reconstruction Project-Bid
Call 111311-1; Gila County Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction Co.,
Inc.; Intergovernmental Agreement with Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District;
a copy of Amendment No. 1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.; Amendment No. 2
with Carson Construction Co., Inc. for the total cost overrun; Recap of Charges and
Payments for Road Waterline; Carson Construction Co., Inc. Pay Application No. 8;
Change Order Detail; and a copy of executed Change Orders #1 through #23.

Evaluation
The changes were a necessary part of the project and could not be anticipated prior to
construction. All changes are listed on the attachment entitled Change Order Detail.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of everyone involved to approve Amendment No. 2 with Carson
Construction Co., Inc., in the amount of $41,296.97 to Contract No. 111311-1 to pay
the Contractor and return $8,783.30 to the Pine Strawberry Water Improvement
District per the terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement with Pine Strawberry Water
Improvement District.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Director recommends approval of Amendment No. 2 to
Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc., to increase the contract
by $41,296.97 for a final total contract amount of $1,425,177.18, for the work
performed on the Pine Creek Canyon Road Reconstruction project, and to release
funds in the amount of $8,783.30 to the Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to Contract
No. 111311-1 between Gila County and Carson Construction Co., Inc. to increase the
contract amount by $41,296.97 for cost overruns, for a total contract amount of
$1,425,177.18 for work performed on the Pine Creek Canyon Road Reconstruction
Project, and to release funds to the Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District in the
amount of $8,783.30.  
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Gila County Request for Invitation for Bids Pine Creek Canyon Road Reconstruction
Project Bid Call 111311-1
Gila County Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.
Intergovernmental Agreement with Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District



Intergovernmental Agreement with Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District
Amendment No. 1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.
Amendment No. 2 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.
Recap of Charges and Payments for Road Waterline
Carson Construction Co., Inc. Pay Application No. 8
Change Order Detail
Change Order #1
Change Order #2
Change Order #3
Change Order #4
Change Order #5
Change Order #6
Change Order #7
Change Order #8
Change Order #9
Change Order #10
Change Order #11
Change Order #12
Change Order #13
Change Order #14
Change Order #15
Change Order #16
Change Order #17
Change Order #18
Change Order #19
Change Order #20
Change Order #21
Change Order #22
Change Order #23
Legal Explanation















































































































































































































When recorded 2012-001432 IGA Page: 1 of 5r 02/10/201209.34:47AM Receipt# 12-1158return to* R*,see so sizaco as
GilaCounty,Az.SadieTomerlinDalton,Recorder

n2ShepCpard,
BOS

I

INTERGOVERNMENTALAGREEMENT

BETWEEN
*

GILA COUNTY

AND
o

PINE-STRAWBERRY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (PSWID)

FOR

CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS ON AND NEAR PINE CREEK CANYON ROAD

THIS AGREEMENT isenteredintothisdate Fd Y(AA*rg 20 12 ,pursuantto the

Arizona Revised Statutes4 11-951 through # 11-954,as amende'd,between GILA COUNTY, (the

County) and PINE-STRAWBERRY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, (PSWID). The

County and the PSWID collectivelyarereferredto as "Parties".

I. RECITALS

1.The County isempowered by Arizona Revised Statutes I1-251 et.seq.to enterinto

thisAgreement and has delegatedto the undersigned the authorityto execute thisAgreement
on

behalfof the County.

2.The PSWID isempowered by the provisionsof Title48, Chapter 6,ArticlesI and 4,of

theArizona Revised StatutestoenterintothisAgreement and has by resolution,a copy of which is

attachedhereto and made a part hereof,resolvedto enterintothisAgreement on behalf of the

PSWID.

3. Purpose. The County will design and constructa road improvement projectthat

includeswidening and paying of approximately 5,000 feetof Pine Creek Canyon Road starting

from the intersectionwith Highway 87. The PSWID has decided that itwould liketo take

advantage of the reconstructionand replaceand upgrade itsaging distributionsystem inthe area.

Possibleupgrades may includelargersupply linesas well as firehydrants. Coordinating these

upgrades with the road projectshould resultin cost savings to Gila County residents. It is

estimated that the cost of upgrading PSWID aging distributionsystem (hereinafterPSWID

Upgrade) inthe areawould add $245,674.00 to the totalproject.

The Partiesheretoagree to and acknowledge the followingconditions:

a) The estimatedmonetary amounts referencedinthisAgreement aresubjectto change and could

change substantiallybefore completion of the PSWID Upgrade,

b) The PSWID has agreed to pay the County the amount of the PSWID Upgrade bid plusa twenty

percentcontingency thetotalof
which may not exceed $294,809.00 forthePSWID Upgrade prior

to the PSWID Upgrade award.

c)The County shal1providethe PSWID with a recapitulationof thePSWID Upgrade's finalcosts;

d) Ifthe PSWID finalcosts are lessthan $294,809.00, the County shallreturnto PSWID the

difference.



.t - 2012-001432 IGA Page: 2 of 5
02/10/201209.34:47AM Receipt#: 12-1158
RecFee:SO GilaCo Bos
GilaCounty,Az,SadieTomerlinDalton,Recorder

IIIIIR IVnMWIM' W EERW IW h il lli

E) Ifthe totalPSWID upgrade bid plus twenty percent contingency exceeds $294,809.00, the

County shallnot award a contractforthe PSWID Upgrade unlessthe PSWID firstapproves and

pays to the County an amount equalto the PSWID Upgrade plusa twenty percentcontingency.

THEREFORE, inconsiderationof themutual covenants expressedherein,itisagreed as follows:

II. SCOPE OF WORK

1.The County will:

a.Prepare and provide design plans,specifications
and other such documents and

servicesrequiredforconstructionbidding
and constructionof the Roadway improvement Project

and PSWID Upgrade.

b.Advertiseforbidsand award one or more constructioncontract(s)fortheProject

includingthe PSWID Upgrade. Administer contractsand provide overallProjectManagement

forthe Projectand PSWID Upgrade and make allpayments tothe contractor(s).

c.Upon executionofthisAgreement and within(15)fifteendays,afterbid opening

and priorto award invoicethe PSWID foritscontributionof constructioncostsincludinga 20%

contingency relatedto the
PSWID Upgrade.

d. Upon completion, provide the PSWID with a recapitulationof the PSWID

Upgrade's costsand reimburse the PSWID any unused PSWID Upgrade constructionfunds.

e.Upon completion of the Project,the County shallbe responsibleforallroutine

and emergency maintenance work forthe Road improvement Project.

2.The PSWID will:

a. Provide the design documents, bid documents, and engineer'scost estimate

requiredforconstruction
of the PSWID Upgrade.

b. Assist the County, at no cost to the County, as requested by the County in

providingtimely PSWID Upgrade relatedinspectionsand clarificationsor interpretationsof the

PSWID Upgrade design plans and specificationsincluding
review and approval of construction

relatedshop drawings.

c.Grant an individualwith the authorityto approve change ordersto the PSWID

Upgrade up tothe amount of thetwenty percentPSWID Upgrade bid contingency.

d. Upon executionof thisAgreement withinthirty(30)days afterbid opening and



2012-001432 IGA Page: 3 of 5
02/10/201209:34:47AM Receipt#: 12-1158
RecFee:$0 GilaCo Bos
GilaCounty,Az,SadieTomerlinDalton,Recorder

IIIIMIRMERIA MWLMNIMM Allil

priorto award and upon receiptof an invoicefrom theCounty, remittotheCounty fortheinvoiced

amount of the PSWID Upgrade bid plus a twenty percentcontingency the totalof which may not

exceed $294,809.00 forconstructioncostsforthe PSWID Upgrade.

e.Upon completion of thePSWID Upgrade, thePSWID shallbe responsibleforall

routineand emergency maintenance work forthe PSWID Upgrade in compliance with County

Right of Way Use Permit requirements.

Ill. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1.Duration. This agreement shallremain inforceand effectuntilcompletion of thework

and relateddepositsand reimbursements.

2. Each party (as"indemnitor")agreesto indemnify,defend,
and hold harmless the other

party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and allclaims, losses,liability,costs or other

expenses (including,but not limited to, reasonable attorneys'fees) (Hereinaftercollectively

referredto as "claims") arisingout of bodily injuryof any person (includingdeath),property

damage and any other claims (including,but not limitedto,claims of derivativeor vicarious

liability),which are caused by the act,omission, negligence,misconduct or other faultof the

indemnitor,itsofficers,officials,agents,employees or volunteers.

3. This Agreement shallbecome effectiveupon signing and dating of the Gila County

Board of Supervisors.

4. The Partiesare notifiedthat thisAgreement may be cancelled in accordance with

Arizona Revised Statutes# 38-511.

5.To theextentapplicableunder law,theprovisionssetforthinArizona Revised Statutes(

35-214 and 35-215 shallapply tothisAgreement.

6.Intheeventof any controversywhich may ariseout ofthisAgreement, thePartieshereto

agree to abide by requiredarbitrationas issetforthforpublicworks
contractsinArizona Revised

Statutes# 12-1518.

7. Compliance requirements for Arizona Revised Statutes( 41-4401 - immigration laws

and E-Verify requirement.

a. The Parties warrants compliance with all Federal Immigration laws and

regulationsrelatingto employees and warrants itscompliance with Arizona Revised Statutes#

23-214(A).

b. A breach of a warranty regarding compliance with immigration laws and

regulationsshallbe deemed a materialbreach of thecontract,and thesubcontractormay be subject

to penaltiesup to and includingterminationof the Agreement.



.. 2012-001432 IGA Page: 4 of 5
02/10/201209:34:47AM Receipt#: 12-1159
RecFee:50 GilaCo Bos
GilaCounty.Az,SadieTomerlinDalton,Recorder

HillmE.MWWWW.W,ME MM II III

c.The County retainsthe legalrightto inspectthe papers of any employee who

works on the Projectto ensurethatthecontractor
or subcontractoriscomplying with thewarranty

under paragraph (a).

8. Pursuantto Arizona Revised Statutes# 35-391.06 and # 35-393.06,each Partycertifies

thatitdoes not have a scrutinizedbusiness operationin Sudan or Iran. For the purpose of this

Section,the term "scrutinizedbusinessoperations"shallhave the meanings setforthin Arizona

Revised Statutes# 35-391 and/or # 35-393, as applicable. Ifany Party determines thatanother

Partysubmitted a falsecertification,
thatPartymay impose remedies as provided by law including

terminatingthisAgreement.

9. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes 9 11-952 (D) attached hereto and

incorporatedhereinisthe
writtendeterminationof each party'slegalcounsel that

the Partiesare

authorizedunder the laws of thisStateto enterintothisAgreement
and thatthe Agreement isin

proper form.

I0. This IntergovernmentalAgreement
issolelyforthebenefitof theParties

and does not

create,nor shallbe interpretedto create,rights
inany thirdparty. No thirdpartymay enforcethe

terms and conditionsexpressed inthisIntergovernmentalAgreement.

I1. The waiver by the Parties,mutually or independently,of any term, covenant, or

conditionof thisIntergovernmentalAgreement
shallnot be deemed a waiver of any otherterm,

covenant,or condition.

I2. This Intergovernmental Agreement constitutesthe entireagreement between the

Parties and no understandings of obligations exist outside of this agreement. This

IntergovernmentalAgreement may only be modified inwriting.

13. Ifwithin thirty(30) days afterbid opening and priorto award, PSWID failsremit to

the County forthe invoicedamount of thePSWID Upgrade bid plusa twenty percentcontingency

the totalof which may not exceed $294,809.00, then the County shallnot award a bid forthe

PSWID Upgrade and the PSWID Upgrade willnotbe partofthe Pine Creek Canyon Road Project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this1 of d"Mr , 2012, at Globe, Gila County,

Arizona.

Attest:
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS



2012-001432 IGA Page: 5 of 5
02/10/201209:34:47AM Receipt#: 12-1159
RecFee:$0 GilaCo Bos
GilaCounty,Az,SadieTomerlinDalton,Recorder

IIIII'Mil'NM.IM',M M NLW MF,M,h ll III

Maria Sheppard mmie Cf Martin,Mirman

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

Approved as to form:

Bryan Chamb

Chief Deput ounty Attorney

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1 of Icowary , 2012, at Pine, Gila County,

Arizona.

Attest:

PINE-STRAWBERRY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Gary Lo etro rman

A roved as to form:pp

Danief Torrens

PSWID Attorney













FUND 1115

Carson Construction Contract & Payments Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District

Orig Waterline Bid 283,590.53       IGA Not To Exceed 294,809.00     

Pipe Change/Credit (60,000.00)        

Contract Waterline 223,590.53       Revised Contract with Carson Const 223,590.53     

Change Orders 35,934.59         Change Orders 35,934.59      

Total Waterline Const. 259,525.12       Total Waterline 259,525.12     

Orig Road Const Bid 1,060,289.68    Deposit by PSWID to County 268,308.42     

Change Orders** 105,362.38       Total Waterline (259,525.12)   

Total Road Const. 1,165,652.06    Amount owed to PSWID 8,783.30        

Total Owed Carson 1,425,177.18    

Total Paid to Date 1,383,880.21    

41,296.97         

IGA with PSWID states that Gila County is the 

Administrator of the waterline project and has 

approval to make changes without going back to the 

PSWID Board.

**   $100,000 change orders are covered 

under Item No. 109 in the Bid Document 

as the Approved Force Account



  PAGE 2  OF  2 PAGES

8

8/16/2013

8/16/2013

2012-00000688

A B C D E F G H I J

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK BID UNIT UNIT PRICE SCHEDULED MATERIALS TOTAL % BALANCE RETAINAGE

NO. QUANTITY VALUE PREVIOUSLY FROM PREVIOUS COMPLETED THIS PERIOD PRESENTLY COMPLETED (G ÷ C) TO FINISH (IF VARIABLE

COMPLETED APPLICATION THIS PERIOD STORED AND STORED (C - G) RATE)

QUANTITY % (D OR E) (D+E+F)

ROAD IMPROVEMENT

109 Force Account Work 1 LS 0.00 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0! $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #1 - Waterline 1 ea 13,759.20 13,759.20 1.00 $13,759.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,759.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change Order #2 - Rip Rap/Headwall 1 ea 3,586.21 3,586.21 1.00 $3,586.21 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,586.21 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change Order #3 - Shotcrete 1 ea 17,081.20 17,081.20 1.00 $17,081.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,081.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #4 - Waterline 1 ea 2,733.89 2,733.89 1.00 $2,733.89 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,733.89 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #5 - Waterline 1 ea 5,899.77 5,899.77 1.00 $5,899.77 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,899.77 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #6 - Waterline 1 ea 4,157.26 4,157.26 1.00 $4,157.26 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,157.26 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #7 - Grouted Waterline 1 ea 15,076.34 15,076.34 1.00 $15,076.34 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,076.34 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #8 - Waterline Credit 1 ea -5,691.87 -5,691.87 1.00 ($5,691.87) 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($5,691.87) 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #9 - Add'l Keystone 1 ea 7,957.08 7,957.08 1.00 $7,957.08 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,957.08 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #10 - Add'l Shotcrete 1 ea 5,251.40 5,251.40 1.00 $5,251.40 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,251.40 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #11 - Shotcrete (slopes/ditches) 1 ea 37,067.56 37,067.56 1.00 $37,067.56 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,067.56 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #12 - Add'l Rip Rap 1 ea 8,378.47 8,378.47 1.00 $8,378.47 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,378.47 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #13 - Add' CMP 1 ea 3,294.52 3,294.52 1.00 $3,294.52 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,294.52 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #14 - ACFC deletion 1 ea -42,900.55 -42,900.55 1.00 ($42,900.55) 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($42,900.55) 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #15 - 25% reduction of 340.3 1 ea -1,005.41 -1,005.41 1.00 ($1,005.41) 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,005.41) 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #16 - Headwall 340.2 deletion 1 ea -3,116.93 -3,116.93 1.00 ($3,116.93) 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,116.93) 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #17 - Ashpalt Addition 1 ea 17,346.35 17,346.35 1.00 $17,346.35 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,346.35 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #18 - Fog Seal, striping, etc 1 ea 9,044.68 9,044.68 1.00 $9,044.68 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,044.68 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #19 - Gerkin improvements 1 ea 2,080.83 2,080.83 1.00 $2,080.83 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,080.83 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #20 - Portals & Hydrants 1 ea 18,596.79 18,596.79 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $18,596.79 $0.00 $18,596.79 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #21 - Asphalt & ABC 1 ea 6,789.63 6,789.63 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $6,789.63 $0.00 $6,789.63 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #22 - Extra Survey 1 ea 10,242.93 10,242.93 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $10,242.93 $0.00 $10,242.93 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

     Change order #23 - Gerkin Balance 1 ea 5,667.62 5,667.62 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $5,667.62 $0.00 $5,667.62 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

201.1 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS 31,202.64 31,202.64 1.00 $31,202.64 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,202.64 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

202.1 Remove Misc. Structures and Obstructions 1 LS 37,482.87 37,482.87 1.00 $37,482.87 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,482.87 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

203 Earthwork 1 LS 40,348.58 40,348.58 1.00 $40,348.58 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,348.58 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

211 Fill construction 1 LS 7,374.40 7,374.40 1.00 $7,374.40 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,374.40 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

301 Subgrade Preperation 16440 SY 0.67 11,014.80 16440.00 $11,014.80 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,014.80 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

310 Aggregate Base Course - ADOT Class II 3234 CY 45.93 148,537.62 3234.00 $148,537.62 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $148,537.62 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

321 Ashpaltic Concrete - MAG 3693 TON 102.82 379,714.26 3693.00 $379,714.26 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $379,714.26 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.1 Concrete Driveway 1762 SF 6.70 11,805.40 1762.00 $11,805.40 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,805.40 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.2 Concrete Headwall, ADOT B-11-11, for Limited S.D.1 EA 3,116.93 3,116.93 1.00 $3,116.93 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,116.93 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.3 Concrete Headwall, ADOT B-11.11, for (2) 42" CMPA1 EA 4,021.66 4,021.66 1.00 $4,021.66 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,021.66 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.4 Concrete Wall 192 SF 89.21 17,128.32 192.00 $17,128.32 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,128.32 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.5 Concrete Half-Barrier, ADOT Std. Dtl., C-10.5 96 LF 115.21 11,060.16 96.00 $11,060.16 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,060.16 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.6 Concrete Half-Barrier Transition, ADOT Std, Dtl., C-10.7540 LF 111.92 4,476.80 40.00 $4,476.80 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,476.80 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

340.7 Concrete Ribbon Curb (MAG 220-1, Type C) 71 LF 15.39 1,092.69 71.00 $1,092.69 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,092.69 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

405 Survey Monument 22 EA 158.79 3,493.38 22.00 $3,493.38 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,493.38 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

411 Aspaltic Concrete Friction Course 385 TON 111.43 42,900.55 385.00 $42,900.55 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,900.55 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

501 Cement Treated Slurry 45 CY 116.85 5,258.25 45.00 $5,258.25 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,258.25 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

AIA DOCUMENT G703

APPLICATION NO:

CONTINUATION SHEET
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing

WORK COMPLETED

Contractor's signed certification is attached. APPLICATION DATE:

In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar.

Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. PROJECT NO:

PERIOD TO:



511 Keystone Wall, Compact II Block 1950 SF 19.22 37,479.00 1950.00 $37,479.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,479.00 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.1 New Sign Panel, STOP, R1-1, 36" x 36" 1 EA 419.49 419.49 1 $419.49 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $419.49 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.2 New Sign Panel, STOP, R1-1, 30" x 30" 5 EA 246.10 1,230.50 5 $1,230.50 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,230.50 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.3 New Sign Panel, HILL BLOCKS VIEW, W7-6, 30" x 30"2 EA 273.54 547.08 2 $547.08 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $547.08 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.4 New Sign Panel, 20 MPH, W13-1, 24" x 18" 4 EA 132.20 528.80 4 $528.80 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $528.80 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.5 New Sign Panel, 15 MPH, W13-1, 24" x 18" 1 EA 200.79 200.79 1 $200.79 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.79 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.6 New Sign Panel, SPEED LIMIT 25, R2-1, 24" x 30"3 EA 212.72 638.16 3 $638.16 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $638.16 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.7 New Sign Panel, winding road symbol, W1-5, 30" x 30"2 EA 273.54 547.08 2 $547.08 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $547.08 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.8 New Sign Panel, roadway turn symbol, W1-1L, 30" x 30"1 EA 319.26 319.26 1 $319.26 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $319.26 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

607.9 New Sign Post and Foundation - ADOT S-1 (non-slip)15 EA 277.67 4,165.05 15 $4,165.05 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,165.05 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.1 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 12" 75 LF 38.59 2,894.25 75 $2,894.25 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,894.25 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.2 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 15" 806 LF 36.21 29,185.26 806 $29,185.26 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29,185.26 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.3 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 24" 160 LF 43.65 6,984.00 160 $6,984.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,984.00 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.4 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 42" 88 LF 63.79 5,613.52 88 $5,613.52 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,613.52 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.5 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 28" x 20" 199 LF 52.80 10,507.20 199 $10,507.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,507.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.6 Pipe, Corrugated Metal, 49" x 29" 48 LF 77.06 3,698.88 48 $3,698.88 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,698.88 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.7 Pipe, UltraFlo, 18" 225 LF 49.78 11,200.50 225 $11,200.50 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,200.50 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

621.8 Flared Metal End Section, 24", ADOT Std. Dtl. C-13.252 EA 297.30 594.60 2 $594.60 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $594.60 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

708.1 Permanent Pavement Marking (Painted)(White)(4" Equiv)63 LF 2.88 181.44 63 $181.44 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $181.44 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

708.2 Permanent Pavement Marking (Painted)(Yellow)(4" Equiv)13751 LF 0.59 8,113.09 13751 $8,113.09 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,113.09 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

708.9 Maintenance and Protection of Traffic 1 LS 20,573.70 20,573.70 1 $20,573.70 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,573.70 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

810 Erosion Control and Pollution Prevention (SWPPP) 1 LS 17,983.79 17,983.79 1 $17,983.79 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,983.79 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

901 Mobilization 1 LS 7,559.15 7,559.15 1 $7,559.15 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,559.15 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

903.1 Dumped Rock RipRap, D50=9" 800 CY 71.98 57,584.00 800 $57,584.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $57,584.00 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

903.2 Gabion Mattress 28 CY 265.44 7,432.32 28 $7,432.32 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,432.32 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

905.1 Guardrail 13 LF 38.69 502.97 13 $502.97 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $502.97 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

905.2 Guardrail, End Terminal, ET-PLUS 5 EA 3,631.01 18,155.05 5 $18,155.05 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,155.05 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

905.3 Guardrail, End Anchor, ADOT Std. Dtl. D-10.08 1 EA 867.05 867.05 1 $867.05 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $867.05 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

925 Construction Survey and Layout and Asbuilts 1 LS 44,554.39 44,554.39 1 $44,554.39 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $44,554.39 100.00% $0.00 $0.00



WATERLINE $0.00

1 2" PVC Watermain 40 LF 6.76 270.40 40.00 $270.40 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $270.40 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

2 4" PVC Watermain 30 LF 19.68 590.40 30.00 $590.40 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $590.40 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

3 6" PVC Watermain 40 LF 24.73 989.20 40.00 $989.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $989.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

4 8" HDPE 5032 LF 28.16 141,701.12 5032.00 $141,701.12 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $141,701.12 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

5 2" T&V, VB & Cover 1 EA 2,056.65 2,056.65 1.00 $2,056.65 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,056.65 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

6 2" Valve, Box & Cover 1 EA 1,797.09 1,797.09 1.00 $1,797.09 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,797.09 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

7 4" Valve, Box & Cover 1 EA 1,054.36 1,054.36 1.00 $1,054.36 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,054.36 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

8 6" Valve, Box & Cover 3 EA 1,334.56 4,003.68 3.00 $4,003.68 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,003.68 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

9 8" Valve, Box & Cover 15 EA 1,823.61 27,354.15 15.00 $27,354.15 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,354.15 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

10 8" X 4" Tee 1 EA 484.43 484.43 1.00 $484.43 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $484.43 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

11 8" X 8" Tee 3 EA 765.60 2,296.80 3.00 $2,296.80 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,296.80 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

12 6" X 6" Tee 1 EA 447.68 447.68 1.00 $447.68 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $447.68 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

13 8" X 6" Tee 3 EA 501.70 1,505.10 3.00 $1,505.10 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,505.10 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

14 6" X 2" Reducer 1 EA 213.70 213.70 1.00 $213.70 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $213.70 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

15 8" X 4" Reducer 3 EA 220.66 661.98 3.00 $661.98 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $661.98 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

16 Watermain Sample Tap 6 EA 591.38 3,548.28 6.00 $3,548.28 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,548.28 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

17 8" X 22.5 Bend 1 EA 275.19 275.19 1.00 $275.19 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $275.19 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

18 8" X 90 Bend 2 EA 282.93 565.86 2.00 $565.86 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $565.86 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

19 6" X 90 Bend 2 EA 222.74 445.48 2.00 $445.48 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $445.48 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

20 6" Fire Hydrant Complete 9 EA 4,776.30 42,986.70 9.00 $42,986.70 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,986.70 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

21 Blow-Off Valve 1 EA 1,358.98 1,358.98 1.00 $1,358.98 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,358.98 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

22 Air Release valve 1 EA 1,649.83 1,649.83 1.00 $1,649.83 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,649.83 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

23 6" X 6" Tapping Sleeve , Valve , & Box & Cover 1 EA 2,723.53 2,723.53 1.00 $2,723.53 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,723.53 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

24 6" Check Valve, Box & Cover 1 EA 3,188.53 3,188.53 1.00 $3,188.53 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,188.53 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

25 8" Check Valve, Box & Cover 1 EA 4,600.47 4,600.47 1.00 $4,600.47 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,600.47 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

26 2" Water Service & Tap, Cap @ROW 2 EA 1,497.88 2,995.76 2.00 $2,995.76 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,995.76 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

27 1" Water Service Tap, Cap @ ROW 8 EA 619.40 4,955.20 8.00 $4,955.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,955.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

28 1" Double Water Service Tap & Cap @ ROW 9 EA 1,022.80 9,205.20 9.00 $9,205.20 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,205.20 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

29 Cap Water Main for Future Connection 6 EA 471.75 2,830.50 6.00 $2,830.50 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,830.50 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

30 Connect to Existing Watermain 1 EA 490.53 490.53 1.00 $490.53 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $490.53 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

31 Construction Survey 1 EA 11,406.06 11,406.06 1.00 $11,406.06 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,406.06 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

32 QA/QC 1 EA 4,937.69 4,937.69 1.00 $4,937.69 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,937.69 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE ORDERS and AMENDMENTS for Waterline $0.00 $0.00

1 Amendment #1 1 ea -60,000.00 -60,000.00 1.00 ($60,000.00) 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($60,000.00) 100.00% $0.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTALS $1,425,177.18 $1,383,880.21 $41,296.97 $0.00 $1,425,177.18 100% $0.00 $0.00

Users may obtain validation of this document by requesting of the license a completed AIA Document D401 - Certification of Document's Authenticity



COR# ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 

AMOUNT
EXPLANATION

1 HDPE Water Pipe  $         13,759.20 

When the original bids came in the water line portion of the project was over the amount budgeted by 

PSWID.  Carson Construction submitted a cost saving proposal to switch the pipe material to HDPE DR-

17.  After the contract was awarded, PSWID determined that HDPE DR-17 did not have a high enough 

pressure rating and changed the pipe material to HDPE-DR11

4 203 Trenching for electrical conduits  $           2,733.89 
During construction PSWID decided to add some electrical conduit to be used on an existing booster 

pump near SR87

5 27 Water Tap & Cap 1" 1  $                 619.40  $               619.40 

The original water line plans called for a valve between the main and each service line with nothing on 

the end of the service lines.  This change order added a valve to the end of each service line.  

Additional service lines were also added with this change order

5 26 Water Tap & Cap 2" 2  $              1,497.88  $           2,995.76 

The original water line plans called for a valve between the main and each service line with nothing on 

the end of the service lines.  This change order added a valve to the end of each service line.  

Additional service lines were also added with this change order

5 27 Angle Stops 1" 18  $                   84.75  $           1,525.46 

The original water line plans called for a valve between the main and each service line with nothing on 

the end of the service lines.  This change order added a valve to the end of each service line.  

Additional service lines were also added with this change order

5 26 Corp Stops 2" 4  $                 189.79  $               759.15 

The original water line plans called for a valve between the main and each service line with nothing on 

the end of the service lines.  This change order added a valve to the end of each service line.  

Additional service lines were also added with this change order

6 Additional Water Lines  $           4,157.26 

This change order added a bypass line around the check valve located near the water companies yard.  

An additional line was also added to tie into an existing well that was not part of the original water line 

plans

7 Pressure Grout  $         15,076.34 

The original water line plans did not specify what should be done with the old water main after it had 

been abandoned.  Since portions of the old water main would be underneath the new road and very 

shallow creating the potential for a road failure the decision was made to pressure grout the portions 

of the old water main that were under the new road.

8 22 Air Release Valve added 2  $              1,649.83  $           3,299.66 Planned for 1 but needed a total of 3 air release valves

8 8 6" Valve, Box & Cover 1  $              1,334.56  $          (1,334.56)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 9 8" Valve, Box & Cover 1  $              1,823.61  $          (1,823.61)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 11 8" X 8" Tee 1  $                 417.06  $             (417.06)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 12 6" X 6" Tee 1  $                 233.37  $             (233.37)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 13 8" X 6" Tee 1  $                 180.48  $             (180.48)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 14 6" X 2" Reducer 1  $                 114.37  $             (114.37)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 15 8" X 4" Reducer 1  $                 220.66  $             (220.66)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 16 Water Main Sample Tap 5  $                 591.38  $          (2,956.90)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

WATER LINE CONSTRUCTION

CHANGE ORDER DETAIL OF THE PINE CREEK CANYON ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT  - August 2013



COR# ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 

AMOUNT
EXPLANATION

WATER LINE CONSTRUCTION

CHANGE ORDER DETAIL OF THE PINE CREEK CANYON ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT  - August 2013

8 17 8" X 22.5 Bend 1  $                 208.14  $             (208.14)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 19 6" X 90 Bend 1  $                   59.27  $               (59.27)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

8 24 6" Check Valve, B&C 1  $              1,443.11  $          (1,443.11)
This change order is a deduction for pipe material no longer needed due to changing the pipe material.

Water Line Change Total  $         35,934.59 

2 340.3 Concrete headwall  $           5,025.81 
The work entailed in the original design of the down stream side of cross culvert No. 2 would have 

required an easement from the property owner.  Since we were unable to acquire an easement the 

design of the down stream side of cross culvert No. 2 had to be changed; the change involved a 

decrease in the amount of dumped rip rap and the addition of a concrete "cut off" wall.

2 903.1 Dumped Rock Riprap, D50=9" 20  $                   71.98  $          (1,439.60)
The work entailed in the original design of the down stream side of cross culvert No. 2 would have 

required an easement from the property owner.  Since we were unable to acquire an easement the 

design of the down stream side of cross culvert No. 2 had to be changed; the change involved a 

decrease in the amount of dumped rip rap and the addition of a concrete "cut off" wall.

3 501 Cement Treated Slurry 146.18  $                 116.85  $         17,081.20 

Since the driveway at this parcel is located on a dirt hill shotcrete slope protection was added to 

prevent erosion and failure of the driveway.  A portion of the septic tank and leach field for this parcel 

is actually located in the County Right of Way.  Due to the possibility of effluent leaching out an HDPE 

liner was added under the Shotcrete.  To prevent someone from accidentally driving off of the 

driveway and onto the shotcrete, delineators were added to clearly mark the edge of the driveway.

9 511 Keystone Block 414  $                   19.22  $           7,957.08 This change order is for additional keystone block to match up to existing ground conditions.

10 501
Shotcrete varied thickness not converted by bid 

C.Y. item
620  $                      8.47  $           5,251.40 

This change order is for additional shotcrete from co 3 due to the residents leach field being in the 

right of way.

11 501
Shotcrete varied thickness not converted by bid 

C.Y. item
5660  $                      4.75  $         26,885.00 

This change order is for shotcrete slope protection at various locations due to steep grades and poor 

soil conditions.

11 501
Shotcrete sub grade preparation on slopes, O&P, 

Taxes & Bond
 $         10,182.56 

This change order is for shotcrete slope protection at various locations due to steep grades and poor 

soil conditions.

12 903.1 Dumped Rock Riprap 116.4  $                   71.98  $           8,378.47 
This change order is for additional rip rap drainage ditch protection at various locations due to slope 

changes.

13 621.1 CMP 12" Line 30  $                   38.59  $           1,318.50 This change order is for additional cmp due to unforeseen sight conditions

13 622.2 CMP 15" Line 53  $                   36.21  $           1,976.02 This change order is for additional cmp due to unforeseen sight conditions

14 411 ACFC  $        (42,900.55) This change order deleted the ACFC from the contract

ROAD CONSTRUCTION



COR# ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 

AMOUNT
EXPLANATION

WATER LINE CONSTRUCTION

CHANGE ORDER DETAIL OF THE PINE CREEK CANYON ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT  - August 2013

15 340.3 25% Concrete Headwall  $          (1,005.41)
This change order is for a 25% reduction in the cost of a concrete head wall due to the poor aesthetic 

quality of the work done by the contractor

16 340.2 Concrete Headwall  $          (3,116.93) This change order is a deduction for deleting a concrete headwall from the contract

17 321 Asphalt for Driveway 95  $                 102.82  $           9,767.90 
This change order is for additional paving of driveways as part of negotiations with property owners for 

giving easements.

17 310 ABS for Driveway 165  $                   45.93  $           7,578.45 
This change order is for additional paving of driveways as part of negotiations with property owners for 

giving easements.

18
Fog Seal replacing item 411 including sweeper, 

tractor & operators (plus O&P Taxes Bond)
 $           5,909.11 

This change order is for fog sealing the new road, additional striping, and brass survey monuments (as 

opposed to just rebar as originally called for)

18 708.1 White Permanent Pavement Mark 801  $                      2.88  $           2,306.88 
This change order is for fog sealing the new road, additional striping, and brass survey monuments (as 

opposed to just rebar as originally called for)

18 405 Brass Survey Monuments (plus O&P Taxes Bond)  $               828.69 
This change order is for fog sealing the new road, additional striping, and brass survey monuments (as 

opposed to just rebar as originally called for)

19 Gerkin Resident Improvements - Fence 54  $                   55.00  $           3,618.42 
This change order is for the installation of fencing to satisfy osha requirements and for the repair of a 

leach field.

19 Gerkin Resident Improvements - Leech Field 82  $                   41.34  $           4,130.03 
This change order is for the installation of fencing to satisfy osha requirements and for the repair of a 

leach field.

19 Gerkin Improvements  $          (5,667.62)
Amount exceeds contract amount-paid only $2080.33 to contractor and final amount is covered under 

COR# 23

20 Portals I & II  $         18,596.79 
This change order is for increasing the height of the retaining wall at Portals N. due to existing site 

conditions and for the addition of conduit under the asphalt to allow the gate to function

21 321 Asphalt 39.5  $                 102.82  $           4,061.39 Additional asphalt and ABC at the end of the project

21 310 ABC 59.4  $                   45.93  $           2,728.24 Additional asphalt and ABC at the end of the project

22 925 Survey Work  $         10,242.93 Cost for additional survey work done by Anderson Nelson

23 Gerkin Resident Improvements  $           5,667.62 Completion of COR #19

Road Construction Change Total  $       105,362.38 

GRAND TOTAL =  $       141,296.97 $100,000 covered in contract under Force Account











































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2088     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2013 - 2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Unknown Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014 Arizona Department of Housing.

Background Information
On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved the submission of an application by the Gila
County Division of Community Services, Housing Program, for Community Development Block Grant
funding in the amount of $112,007. Federal funds are funneled through the Arizona Department of
Housing (ADOH) and Central Arizona Government (CAG). 

Funding received from this grant, if awarded, will be used to rehabilitate approximately two
homes/units.  Both homes are located within the boundaries of Gila County.

Evaluation
As part of the requirements to receive funding, Gila County Community Services, Housing Program,
must submit an Environmental Review Record.  By submitting this form, Gila County verifies that both
homes meet the guidelines to receive rehabilitation services under this contract.

Conclusion
By approving this Environmental Review Record, Gila County Community Services Division, Housing
Program, will be in compliance with said application.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Environmental Review Record.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014 between the Arizona
Department of Housing and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Program, which
is part of an application for FY 2013/2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the
amount of $112,007, and if awarded, said funds will be used for a proposed CDBG housing
rehabilitation project in Gila County for the period of November 1, 2013, through October 30, 2015.

Attachments
Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014 ADOH
Community Development Block Grant Application FY 2013 ADOH
Legal Explanation



Arizona
Department
of Housing

E-CK.4 CHECKLIST FOR HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECTS (NON FLOODPLAIN)

ADOH Contract No.:CDBG RA 2014 Activity NO.:1 and 2

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD
Checklist for HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECTS

(not located in a floodplainlwetlands)

In addition to the forms/documents listed, any additional ERR-related documents and correspondence should
be included in this file. If an item is not applicable, indicate with NIA
Date Date
Completed Item Completed Item

10-01-13 E-CO: Certifying Officer Designation

nla E-CO.1: Compliance Officer Designation
(For Non-Profits Only)

10/01/13 Map of Project Location

10/01/13 Floodplain Map with project location
clearly marked
Note: If project is determined to be in a
f1oodplainlwetland, use the Checklist for
Housing Rehabilitation FloodplainlWetlands,
FormE-CK.5

10/01/13 Form E-1: Project Narrative

10/01/13 Form E-3: Determination Form

10/01/13 Form E-HR.1: Rehabilitation
Environmental Review (if project is
determined to be in f1oodplainlwetlands,
use Checklist for Housing Rehabilitation
- FloodplainlWetlands, Form E-CK.5)

10/01/13 Form E-DD: Date Determination

Form E-P.2 (Draft of NOIIRROF)
and copy of ERR (all items listed above
including back up documentation) sent
to ADOH for approval

ADOH approval received

Documentation that E-P.2 mailed to
federal, state or local agencies and
organizations and individuals known to
be interested in the project.

Publish E-P.2 in local
Newspaper

Affidavit of Publication received

Form E-12 (Requestfor Release of
Funds and Certification) with original
signature, copies of E-P.2
publication and affidavit mailed to
ADOH.

Form E-13: Authority to Use Grant
Funds (issued by ADOH or HUD)

E-HR.2 Appendix A for each individual
assisted unit (must be completed prior
to construction)

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department

-'-;=.11 of Housing

E-CO CERTIFYING OFFICER DESIGNATION (for Local Units of Government)

The Certifying Officer, responsible for compliance with all environmental review requirements, is
usually the chief elected official for the responsible entity/jurisdiction in which the project is
located, or hislher designee. The designee should be an official with the legal authority to
unilaterally sign a contract which obligates the grantee. The original of this executed form must
be included in the Environmental Review Record.

Designation:

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors, of Gila County is
the Certifying Officer as defined in 24 CFR Sec. 58.13 for the Environmental Review
requirements of ADOH CDBG funds, Contract Number: CDBG

Date: 10/1/2013

Services Division

Acknowledgement:

I, Michael A. Pastor , Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors, accept the
responsibilities of the Certifying Officer for Gila County , as defined in 24 CFR 58.13. I
consent to assume the status of "responslcle Federal official" as that term is used in section 102
of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and understand that I am responsible for all
the requirements of section 102 of NEPA and the related provisions in 40 CFR parts 1500
through 1508, and 24 CFR part 58, inclUding the related Federal authorities listed in Sec. 58.5
insofar as the provisions of these laws apply to the HUD responsibilities for environmental
review, decision-making and action that have been assumed by the responsible entity.

On behalf of the recipient, I personally accept the jurisdiction of the Federal courts for
enforcement of all these responsibilities, in my capacity as certifying officer of the responsible
entity.

Date: 10/0112013
Michael A. Pastor
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Certifying Officer Signature: -- --------



Arizona
Department
of Housing

E-1 PROJECT NARRATIVE
Recipient:Gila County
ADOH Contract No.: 2014 COSG RA

ADOH ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD
PROJECT NARRATIVE

1. Project Title: Owner Occupied Housing Rehabiltiation

2. Project Description: (attach additional pages as necessary) We will provide Owner Occupied Housing
Rehabiliation to two homes in Gila County. This activity will be conducted within Gila County boundaries.

Complete item a and b if the information is not included in the attachment.

a. Geographic Location (street names, compass direction, relation to town limit):
Project #1: I!!!!••~~••
Project #2:

b. Size and/or Area (sq. ft. of building, size and length of pipe, no. of units):
Project #1: 3 bedroom home, approx. 1200 sq ft.
Project #2: 3 bedroom home, approx. 1000 sq. ft.

c. Existing Environmental Conditions (i.e., no sewer system, river contamination,
unpaved streets, residential area, fully developed):
Both Project #1 and Project #2 are in fUlly developed residential areas.

d. Purpose (i.e., to improve traffic and driving conditions by widening roads):
Improve community/neighborhood by upgrading the individual housing units.

e. Cost:
Federal Funds
Leverage/Other

Leverage/Other

Source: COBG RA
Source: HOME 309-13

Source: All Other

TOTAL

$ 112,007.00
$ $440,000.00

$ $150,000.00

$ 702.007,00

4. Map attached with project site clearly marked:

5. Prepared By:

Name: Malissa Buzan

Yes IZI

._--~

Rev. 12/2012

cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



Address

Page 1 of 1

IGetGoogle Map;, on yourphone
hi TelCtlheword "GMAPS",u4664S3
tf// --------_......

, .

I :

I .'

" .-»
"
~ . -

-::-

:. .. .

C.(\\(Vr,l--.t
;>;
'b

"
t
c..:

mo13Google-

http://maps.google.com/maps?q 6/1912013

cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



-~ ,-

Page l of 1

. ~.' I • . " I , .'

.',

•

" . . .. 1 •

,~ ,"

t;.•

"

t '

.- . "

....
:=-
' ,'

"

~' ,

-l "
r ~-

-: " ~.

-; -~~~ oi, '- .~ s·-.., ,if'I'- '-,..- .;. '",,, ~ , '; "

r: ':'

,-

"

. ~.

·f· '
.... '.' .. ~

'J..
~.

i:::'" .'~' •.'

',., - ,. I

~ ~ ("llltn'~

S''' l~l)' I '' •
M r:\')Iu.: ~ . ~:;( , ~

", .

.
,:

;,,"

",

. : .•• . 1...

~ .-. , '.',

Jlf.., t rt-. :\":
~.s. ..l ~dluf.· · r '· "

M«(...t ', -

-,
~

Ma~~ 'l,,1
l~nt..i&r-<1:m·o

C2013Google - Mal' dClla 02013 GooqlE'-

https://maps.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s q&hl=en&geocode &q=701... 8/30/2013

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



APN: L _ _ ~~~

GilACOUNTY sz
STANDARD FLOOD HAZARD DETERMINATION

A. NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM (HFIP) JURISDICTION

1. NFIP Community Name 2 County 3. Slate
Gila County r~~a P2

4 NFIP Commun~y No
040028

B. NATIONAL fLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM (NF1P) DATA AFFECTING BUILDING I MOBILE HOMF.

1 . FlAM Panel
r -" .. _ - _.
; 040lJ7C 21130 .1__ ._. . . _ _ __ ._.•. __ . _.

3. lOMAIlOMR .t. Flood ::une.. . . ,_ , _ "_0' .
I Xl _ ...__ ._ 1

C. FEDERAL FLOOD INSURANCE AVAILABILITY (Check all mar apply)

1 :< Federal Flood In=uram:e IS "'/ailable lCommunl1y I~ In NFIP) :: Regular PlOgram

D. DETERMINATION

1. In SFHA?

la. InF1oodwa.l'?

1b BFE (for in:.uranre)

1c. RFE tlowtd Iloor e1evaltonJ

2. Regulated Gradmg/[~rainage'

2a. AFE rorGrad"lI'lg/Drainage

iNt _ __
r·:~~! ~a~'~~~-. ~ .~~.'~~.~ ~" .' ' _ ~ '~ ::~ .'.'~~ .~~-=~ . '=~.=_~~~
, _. - • •• • • " . , • • • • .0 - - • • _ - - - _ • • • • • --- '1
! ~Not .ll,vadable> reel fNAVD 1988 datl.ln]
L. " __ " ., _ _ ,'.. _ _" __ _ ,
. .. . . .... ·· _ ~_ · .... _ . _ . __ ._ _ ~ •• • _4~ . • · . _. _ _~~ • •• . ' __ • •• , . ' _ .

i . ::~~~~a!la.bl? ., fe:~ ~~~~[: 1~8 .d~~u~ l,, _. . __ . . _ , j
i.'N .._.,-_._._ '.. ,._ ----_ - -_.. -.. _.- -._- --_.
I..__ .-.., . ,. - ,- --_ _-_ -_ __ ..- - - . ~_ "- - ' . ' - ' - ...
r _- --- - _ " .. _ - .._". -- ' -- - _ ,
,,<NotAvailable,>feet [above IItlwline of adja~ent watercoursel
'. _._ 0. .. .. _ _ . . . • ..._ ' , _ .

:lA Erosion Setbsck If Straight Chenrlel' ~ "NotAvailable- feetlrom nearest hlp ofbani

If OnDut:-ide of Bend: I<NotAvailable: teetIrom nearest lop otbani.

E. COMitiENTS:r - ---- --- .- -------..-.-------- ,_ ---- -.-, I

1 .. __.. . __ _ __ ._ .._..__ _.__,_. _ __ . " __._ ..J... ._.. _ ._". '__ ' .__._ - __ _ _._ _. . __. _ _ 0' ._
:'l;'No[ Available> meanS' that tM p:artlcul:ar Intorma[lon has not been entered Intothe: database hom which [hl~ reportwas ;
iprimed . Such mformation may be available ••where. Th~ information i~ prov ided c preliminary information tor purposes ,,f ;

' p!anning bUilingprojects. and IS not .ntend<!d for other purp~s This I:;'thebest:l'nuable IntormatlOnaUhe time or the I

!dl!termination. [>'tla IS'JilJbjecHochange over time. Noguar'Jntee IS" el<pressedor implied regarding rhe ac-llurary \If lilis dat'! 1
,or itS'SUItability iora partkular purpose. arllcial fIolodpfalninformalJon is obtained only rrom the Federal Emergency
:~~anagement.AQenc}' publications

F. PREPARER"S iNfORMATION
Gila County Floodplain MarlQgement
1400EastAsh St, Globe, f;Z 85501
928·425·3231 ,Ext 7110

Determination Date I 10f2'512010 (not validifbefore 4/1512008) :
I

Prepared by: SFHD Database



~ )ow:I '

~.# « t-
- .....

~ Z"

:)
LL 0':0 o. .."

r:

- r-J ~r';"'" R" I " ~.-." I'\If. ,. } ..~ ~~, . ':~I~ .'~ . ,• -I.. __ ' __~~ _ _ _
-~-----.

~NE; X

r,~·'·~A~·:_ . ~~~" ::

::riday, Aug 30,2013 12:58 PM

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXX



AUG/29/20 13/THU 02 :15 PM Town of Payson Commu FAX No. 4727490 p, 001/001

Town ofPa.yson .

Flood Hazard Determination Form"

:PHONE: (520) 474-5242
FAX:.(520) 472-7490

Date: C/?!lt, 3

Property Street Address:-.,_

Property Owner:

I ,

, -- -- -Legal Description (Subdivision and LotNmnber):--.

Requested By: elf", srt.J1ji L..c:t'PQ& . Phone: '24] CIt)"), -g,,4Fax: tt~)j2,f""qq,.

MailingAddress: ~,~ ::'. Ar&;b Avc-.:m:- za" &j W'''A!d';!-' 6$$DJ
¥ ; ,

----------~,-Repo:t InformatianBelowFilled outby'tOWD Sta5~--

ThefollowiDg determinationis baseduponthe above iDfotmation:

V FIRM Commumty #: 040107 PanelNurnbc:r #: 01rt FIRM Date: December 4. 2007

_ Basedupon the above Wozmation. a determination ofthe property's location oaDIlOt be made an the FIRM.

__A deteIIDiDation of thepropmy's zonecannot be: made because theproperty is located outside the FEMAstudy
area.

c/'thepropertyis located on FloodJnscrance Rate Map (PlRM)Zonei circle one: D~s=
zones are outside anydelineated l00-ycar:floodplain. FloodiDsurance is available, butno~d by the
Federal Insurance Administration, for buildings concemed witha fedet'll1ly insurcd.loan. Ploodinsurance is
optional atthe discretion oftheowner or lending institl1tion.

_ Theproperty is located wholly orpartially within Special FloodHazard Area (SFHA) Zone; circle one:
A; AO;.AE; .AR; A99. TBse arc areas of 1OO~year tloodiDg. Federal lawrequires tIood insurance as a
condition ofB. felderally insmed mortgage or loansecured by buildi:c.p within a Special FloodHazardArea.
(SFHA)zone. .

Date: --"";'.LI-~I-I-:...e. __Signature: (/
Ree Ids ~cntativc I Floodplain .A.dzr1lDistmtor's Staff

NOTE: '!'.bis determiIIation is basedon t3le PloadIns1Jtmcc RateMap (FIRM) of the Federal Emergency Management
Agency. This letter does notimplythatthe referenced property will or willnot be :tree fromflooding or damage.A
prqperty notin a special Plood Hazard Area. maybe damaged by a floodgreat=r thaJ:l that predic~ed on the FIRMor from
a localdrainaBe problem notshown on themap. 'I'hi.s letter doesnot create liabilityon the part of the toWD, or any ofticer
or employee thc:reof,.fl any es that result from reliance on this determination.

"Iflcndor or Dwner dispute. this detl!lmlination. theymay request theFederal Emergency Managettlmt Agency to rmcw this
ttetcmiJ:lation in compliaJ1Ce with Section 524of theNational Flood IDsurance R.efoml Act of 1994. Thiscanbe acoomplished by
Be:ndini this doeww:ntation alOJ1i withan S 80PayJDCUt in U.S.Pund8, check or lUOnc=y order madepayable to "National Flood
IElsurance programn to: Lender Dete:Imiutiol1 Review CoordinatoI, c/oMichael Baker Corporation,. 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite

600, A1exaodria, VA22304·64S9.

Ploodtim: PcmnDate (03/01)

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



Arizona
Department
of Housing

E-3 LEVEL OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

RECIPIENT GILA COUNTY
ADOH Contract No: CDSG RA 2014

ADOH ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW RECORD

LEVEL OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Determine the type of environmental review necessary by checking the box that best describes the activity.

A. EXEMPTACTIVITIES

1. The following are EXEMPT activities or components of an activity (§58.34). Check the appropriate box and
complete the required documentation for Exempt activities.

o Environmental or other studies, resource identification, development of plans and strategies

o Information and financial services

o Administration and management Activities

o Public services that will not have a physical impact or result in any physical changes including but not
limited to services concerned with employment, crime prevention, child care, health, drug abuse,
education, counseling, energy conservation, and welfare or recreational needs

o Inspections and testing of properties for hazards or defects

o Purchase of insurance

o Purchase of tools

o Engineering or Design costs

o Technical assistance and training

o Assistance for temporary or permanent improvements that do not alter environmental conditions and are
limited to protection, repair or restoration activities necessary only to control or arrest the effects from
disasters or imminent threats to public safety including those resulting from physical deterioration

o Payment of principal and interest on loans made or obligations guaranteed by HUD

2. The following activities are Categorically Excluded (not subject to §58.5) and therefore considered
EXEMPT. Check the appropriate box and complete the required documentation for Exempt activities.

o Supportive services including but not limited to health care, housing services, permanent housing
placement, nutritional services, short term payments for rent/mortgage/utility costs, and assistance in
gaining access to local, State, and Federal government benefits and services.

o Operating costs including maintenance, security, operation, utilities, furnishings, equipment, supplies, staff
training and recruitment and other incidental costs.

o Equipment necessary to the operation of a service such as a fire truck, ambulance, transportation service
vehicles, etc.

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
of Housing

2. EXEMPT Activities (cont'd)

D Economic development activities including but not limited to, equipment purchase, inventory financing,
interest subsidy, operating expenses and similar costs not associated with construction or expansion of
existing operations.

D Activities to assist homebuyers to purchase eXisting dwelling units or dwelling units under construction,
inclUding closings costs and down payment assistance, interest buy-downs, and similar activities that
result in the transfer of title. (Dwelling units located in a Floodplain cannot be downgraded to exempt)

D Affordable housing pre-development costs including legal, conSUlting, developer and other costs related to
obtaining site options, project financing, administrative costs and fees for loan commitments, zoning
approvals, and other related activities which do not have a physical impact.

8. CATEGORICALLY EXCLUDED activities. Check the appropriate box and complete the required
documentation for CE activities.

D An activity from Section A.2 that is in or will impact on a floodplain or airport clear zone.

D Acquisition, repair, improvement. reconstruction or rehabilitation of public facilities and improvements
(other than buildings) when the facilities/improvements are in place and will be retained in the same use
without change in size or capacity ofmore than 20%.

Examples: Replacement of water or sewer lines, sidewalk/curb reconstruction, street repaVing.

o Special projects directed to the removal of material and architectural barriers that restrict the mobility of
and accessibility to elderly and handicapped persons.

~ Rehabilitation of a single family dwelling up to 4 units (the "unit" reference pertains to the number of units to
be included with each contract with a General Contractor) if the density is not increased beyond four units,
the land use is not changed, and the footprint of the building is not increased in a floodplain or wetland.

o Rehabilitation of multi-family if unit density is not changed more than 20%, the project does not involve
changes in land use from residential to non-residential, the footprint of the building is not increased
in a floodplain and the estimated cost of the rehab does not exceed 75% replacement value.

D Non residential rehabilitation (commercial, industrial, public buildings) only IF: the facilities and
improvements are inplace and will not be changed in size or capacity by more than 20%; and the activity
does not involve a change in land use, such as from non-residential to residential, commercial to
industrial, or from one industrial use to another.

o An individual action (new construction; development, demolition, acquisition, disposition or refinancing) on up
to 4 dwelling units where there is a maximum of four units on anyone site. The units can be four one-unit
buildings or one four-unit building or any combination in between

o An individual action (new construction; development, demolition, acquisition, disposition or refinancing) on a
project of 5 or more housing units developed on scattered sites when the sites are more than 2,000 feet
apart and there are not more than four housing units on anyone site.

o Acquisition (inclUding leasing) or disposition of, or equity loans on an existing structure; , or disposition of
an existing structure; or acquisition (including leasing) of vacant land provided that the structure or land
acquired, financed or disposed of will be retained for the same use.

C. Those activities not described in Section A or B requires an ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT. Check
the box below and complete the required documentation for EA activities.

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
afHousing

D. Level of Environmental Review:

o This project is Exempt

o This project is Categorically Excluded not subject to Sec. 58.5 - DOWNGRADED TO EXEMPT.

IZI This project is Categorically Excluded

o This project requires an Environmental Assessment

Compliance Officer (FOR NON-PROFITS ONLY) (insert name and title)

Signature Date

Responsible Entity (insert name and title) Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors

Signature Date

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
of Housing

RecipientGila County
ADOH Contract No.CDBG RA 2014

E-4 - STATUTORY WORKSHEET
[HUD Region IX Recommended Format - Revised 2011- previous versions are obsolete]
Use this worksheet only for projects that are Categorically Excluded per 24 CFR Section 58.35(a).
(NOTE: Compliance with the laws and statutes listed at 24 CFR § 58.6 must also be documented)

24 CFR i58.6 STATUTES, EXECUTIVE ORDERS & REGULATIONS
PROJECT NAME and DESCRIPTION - Include all contemplated actions that logically are either geographically or functionally part of
the project: Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

This proposal is determined to be categorically excluded according to: 24 CFR § 58.35

DIRECTIONS - Write "A" in the Status Column when the proposal, by its scope and nature, requires no mitigation or formal
consultation in order to be in compliance with the related laws and regulations; OR write "B" if the project triggers formal compliance
consultation procedures with the oversight agency, or requires mitigation. Regardless of whether ONor "B" is noted. the compliance
determination must be recorded and credible. traceable and supPOrtivesource documentation must be supplied. (Refer to the
"Statutory Worksheet Instructions")

ComDliance Factors:
Statutes, Executive orders, and Status Compliance Detennination & Documentation (letters, phone
Regulations listed at 24 CFR §58.5 AlB calls, on-slte visit dates, etc.) MUST BE CITED
1. Historic Preservation 0 181 State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) letters received and

(inclUdes archeology & relevant included in project files, as well as ERR File
Tribes)
[36 CFR Part 800]

2. Floodplain Management 0 181 Gila County Community Development, William Hanna
[24 CFR 55. Executive Order Standard Flood Hazard Report A received on two projects ,
11988] induded in project files, as well as, ERR File

3. Wetland Protection ~ 0
[ Executive Order 11990]

4. Coastal Zone Management Act 181 0
[Sections 307(c), (d)]

5. Sole Source Aquifers 181 D
[40 CFR 149]

6. Endangered Species Act 181 0
[50 CFR 402]

7. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act. 181 0
[Sections 7(b), and (c)]

8. Clean Air Act ~ 0
[ Sections 176(c), (d), and

40 CFR 6.51 ,93]

REV. 3-2013



· Arizonara; Department
~ afHousing

9. Farm Land Protection Policy Act ~ 0
[7 CFR 658]

10. Environmental Justice ~ 0
[Executive Order 12898J

11. HUD Environmental Standards 181 0
Noise Abatement and Control
[24 CFR 518]

Explosive &Flammable ~ 0
Operations
[24 CFR 51C]

Hazardous. Toxic or ~ D
Radioactive Materials &
Substances
[24 CFR 58.5(i)(2)]

Airport Clear Zones & I8J D
Accident Potential Zones
[24 CFR 51D]

DETERMINATION:
o This project converts to EXEMPT, per Section 58.34(a)(12), because it does not require any mitigation for compliance with any
listed statutes or authorities, nor requires any formal permit or license (Status ~A~ has been determined in the status column for all
authorities): Funds may be committed and drawn down for this (now) EXEMPT project; OR

181 This project cannot be converted to Exempt status because one or more statutes or authorities require formal consultation or
mitigation. Complete consultation/mitigation protocol requirements. Publish NOIIRROF and obtain Authority to Use Grant Funds
(ADOH E·13/HUD 7015.16) per Section 58.70 and 58.71 before committing or drawing down funds; OR

o The unusual circumstances of this project may' result in a significant environmental impact. This project requires preparation of an
Environmental Assessment (EA). Prepare EA according to 24 CFR Part 58 Subpart E.

prepared~bY,(insert name and~~~s)sa Buzan, Gila County CommunityServicesDivisionDirector

I ) g
J k ?> . ...4Y~---

Signature . 7 (j -D-a-te-----------------

Responsible Entity (insert name and title) Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Signature Date

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
of Housing

E-HR.1 REHABILITATION ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (HUD FORM RER 2011)
Recipient: Gila County
AOOH Contract No.: COSG RA 2014

[This RER tiered review format {per 24CFR §58.15} may only be used for the environmental review of the rehabilitation of existing
single family residential structures per §58.35(a)(3)(i) with or without the acquisition and/or the disposition of the existing structure
per §58.35(a)(5). it may also be used for the acquisition/rehabilitation/disposition of individual units in a multi-family structure, but not
for the rehabilitation/acquisition/disposition of an entire multi-family building per §58.35(a)(3)(ii), where environmental review using a
Statutory Worksheet may be appropriate]. It may not be used for projects involving changes of use or new construction
activities.
program/project name and description: (Include maximum number of units and maximum grantlloan amounts)
Gila County Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation will assist approximately 2 units with a maximum of $40,000 investment
per project.

From (monthlyear): 11/01/13 To (monthlyear): 10/30/2015
Area of Consideration: (Define the geographic area from which applications for this rehabilitation program will be accepted. Attach a
composite map showing target area of consideration andflo~ "I .
Project #1 Is locatedata.-: I -"dProject #2 is located a~

INSTRUCTIONS for completing the RER (2011)

The Factors addressed in this RER review phase apply to the entire area of consideration. Prepare an RER form once for the
maximum scope and magnitude of each program that meets the criteria of rehabilitation/acqUisition/disposition at §58.35(a)(3) and
(5), and retain it in the Environmental Review Record (ERR). A new RER must be completed whenever there is a new Consolidated
Plan, Public Housing Plan or changes in the area of consideration or changes in the environmental conditions which could affect the
program . After completion of the RER, publish or disseminate a Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds (NOIIRROF) according
to §58.70. The NOIIRROF shall identify the issues to be addressed in the site-specific review phase (Appendix A 2012). Do not
commit HUD funds to any specific activity before obtaining the Authority to Use Grant Funds (HUD form 7015.16 {ADOH Form E
13}) for the program or before successfully completing the site-speclfic Appendix A 2012.

Site specific factors listed at Sections 58.5 and 58.6 (inclUdinghistoric preservation, explosivelflammable operations, toxic
substances , airport clear zones and flood insurance) shall be addressed by compteting an Appendix A when an individual loan or grant
application is received. Before approving any site-specific loan or grant, complete the Appendix A before approving any
specific loans or grants. An Appendix A shall be completed for each site to document compliance with these laws and
authorities. Documents supporting compliance as well as the implementation of reqUired mitigation measures shall be
maintained in the ERR.

AREA-WIDE FACTORS

Floodplain Management
Is any part of the area of consideration located in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA, Le. area designated "A" or "V" Zone by FEMA or
best available information if the area is unmapped)?

o YES; complete Part I, Floodplain Management, on page 2 of this form.

IZl NO; provide Source Documentation (FIRM panel number(s) and dates: FIRM Panel #00430 through 25820 dated Dec. 4, 2007.

The entire program is in compliance with Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management.

Coastal Zone Management
Is any part of the area of consideration within the Coastal Zone according to the California Coastal Commission, Hawaii Coastal
Commission, San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission or the Planning Department (for certified Local Coastal
Plans)?

o YES; complete Part II, Coastal Zone Management, on page 2 of this form.

IZl NO; provide Source Documentation: __

REV. 3-2013

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXX



Arizona
Department
of Housing

D Certified local Planning Department
D California Coastal Commission / Hawaii Coastal Commission
D San Francisco Bay Conservation& DevelopmentCommission

Source Documentation(attach permit or determination of consistency):

NOTES: Nonnally. these laws/authorities listed at 24CFR 58.5 are notinvoked byhousing rehabilitation projects:
Executed Order 11990 Protection ofWetlands; Endangered Species Act, 16USC 1531 et seq . asamended, particularly 16USC 1536, 50CFR 402;
WildandScenic Rivers Actof 196B. 16U.S.C.1271 et.seq ., asamended [particularly Sections 7(b) and(c)]; Clean AirAct. 42U.S.C. 7401 et seq. as
amended, particularly section 176(C) and (d). Fannland Protection Act, 7 CFR 65B.3(c); Noise Abatement, 24CFR 51.101 (a)(2); Sole Source Aqyifers.
Memorandum of Agreement between HUD Region IXand U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region IX. dated 4130190. and Executive Order 12898
Environmental Justice. However, if exceptional circumstances requirecompliance stepswith anyof these authorities,such compliance must
be documented prior to approving the site-speclfic loanor grant.

Part I FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT
1. Will this program will involve the following activities within Special Flood Hazard Areas (100 yr. floodplain): a) rehabilitation of single
family units costing more than 50% ofthe market value of the structure before rehabilitation. or b) rehabilitationof unit in multifamily
residential structures.
D Yes, proceed to question #2.
I8J No, compliance with Executive Order 11988 is established by program definition.
2. Comply with Executive Order 11988 by completing the 8-step-decision-makingprocess per 24 CFR §55.20, for the entire area of
consideration, before approving rehabilitation activities within a SFHA. KEEP (and attach) A COpy OF THIS 8~STEP PROCESS
(inclUding copies of all published notices) in the ERR. .
3. Did the 8-step process result in a determination that there is no practicable alternative to carrying out the residential
rehabilitation/acquisition/disposition activities within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA)?
D Yes; proceed D No; proceed
4. Is the community parti~ating in the National Flood Insurance Program?
D Yes; proceed LJ No; proceed
5. Select only one of the following choices:
D Either the answer to questions#3 or #4 (or to both) is "No', therefore, rehabilitationactivities from this program cannot be
approved within a SFHA.
D Both the answer to questions#3 and #4 are "Yes", therefore, rehabilitation activities may proceed in SFHA's, subject to the
implementation of mitigation measures identified in the 8-Step Process. *

«* NOTE: As an alternative to doing the a-step process, the responsible entity may choose to revise the boundaries of the area of
consideration (target area) to exclude all the Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA's). However. propertieswithin the excluded portions
would then be ineligible for HUD-assisted rehabilitation loans or grants under this reView).

WARNING: The Flood Disaster Protection Act (listed at §5B.6) additionally mandates thepurchase of flood insurance forbuildings located inSFHA's
asa condition ofapproval forfederal financial assistance. Flood insurance protection ismandatory foracquisition, construction, reconstruction, repair
and improvement activities, butnot for routine maintenance activities. Recipients with projects located inSFHA's are responsible forensuring that
flood insurance ismaintained forthestatutorily prescribed period and dollar amount. Inthecase of grants, flood insurance must bemaintained forthe
lifeof thebuilding. Inthecase of loans, flood insurance must bemaintained fortheterm ofthe loan. Thenecessary documentation forcompliance is the
Policy Declaration fonn. The amount offlood insurance coverage must beat least equal to thetotal project cost (less theestimated land cost) orto the
maximum limit of coverage made available bytheAd.

Part II COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT
Complete this part if any part of the area of consideration lies within the designated Coastal Zone.
1. Have all rehabilitationactivities under this entire rehabilitation program been found to be consistent with the applicable Coastal Zone
Management Plan? D Yes, proceed to next question; D No; proceed to next question.
Source of this finding is:

a) If question #1 was answered "Yes" and documented, STOP HERE. Compliance with the Coastal Zone ManagementAct is
established.

b) If question #1 was answered "No", obtain the coastal zone permit or determination of consistency.
DO NOT APPROVE the loan or grant within the COASTAL ZONE before doing this.

Preparer Name and Title
Malissa Buzan, Director, GCCSD

Signature

---
Date

REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
o/Housing

E-DD: DETERMINING DATES FOR CE or RER
Complete all shaded BleBS.

NOTE: The ROF date calculated here is for use in the NOIIRROF publication. The actual ROF date may differ depending on
the date notices are actually received. The actual ROF date will be the date indicated on HUD form 7015.16, Authority to Use
Grant Funds.

Days of Reference in
Comment Date Comments NOI/RROF
Periods

:t:: Date of 1019120
Enter Date of publication. Save the entire newspaper page

Top left hand
~..: Publication: 13

to send with the Request for Release of Funds (RROF). Keep
comerofp.1

00 extra CODY for Environmental Review Record (ERR) file.
Qj mJ: Day 1 10/10/2 Day 1 of 1'" comment period is the day after publication .
£Eo 013

"8B~a 2 List successive dates after Dav 1 in the shaded "Date" column."i: "C 0)« 0)0) 0) 0) 0 3 :c0.13£-.
4

m
"'~1Il0) .2c:: ._ .- ,Jg

5 Q.QI"Oljc c.EO).cm
6 «E.g-""

ooE2 7 10/1712 Is day 7 a business day? Yes rgJ No 0 0
tJ-O)~ Z
... ~Ee 013 If yes, enter this date on the next line as the last day of 1st

emec. (Stopl) comment period. If no, enter the next business day after day.- J!3 0) 5
u.c>c 7 on the next line as the last day of 1st comment oenod.0) 0

E OJ m Last day of 10-17- Do not send the RROF prior to close of business on this day.
In 1f entitledEo 1st 13 The public is entitled to 7 full days to make comments

8~ comment
·Public

::::J Comments"period

On or 10/1en Date expected to receive the RROF. RROF may be faxed or
1st sentence of

About Date: 013
mailed. If using U.S. mail, allow extra days for delivery and Noticereceipt.

Ql Day 1 Day 1 of the 200 comment period is the day after the "on or
:5 about date," i.e., the day after RROF is received.
c 2 List successive dates after Day 1 in the shaded "Date" column.:=:.
a 3
=> 4"OJ:

o .... 5.;:: 0
0) I"'" 6Q.o~ 0)
cae 7 :c
0) « c. 8 ~E 0 c :a.E- o 9'Oc c.
00)'0 10 -c
0130)

11 0
"O~1Il Z

8~~ 12
I) .... 13
tn m

14III
'E 15 Is day 15 a business day? Yes D No DQl

E If yes, enter this date on the next line as the last day of 2nd

E
0 (Stopl) comment period. If no, enter the next business day after day
U 15 on the next line as the last day of 2nd comment oenod,

Last day of
The last day of the 2nd comment period must be a business

The last
2nd

sentence in
Comment day. Notice
Period:

The day after last day of 2'''' comment period. This date
Release of does not have to be a business day, but it cannot be a federal

Funds 10-18- holiday. If a federal holiday, use the day after the holiday as
(ROF) Date: 13 the ROF date. This ROF date is calculated here for use in the

publication. DO NOT INCUR PROJECT COSTS until HUD
7015.16 is received.

1



E-P.6 - NOTICE OF INTENT TO REQUEST RELEASE OF FUNDS FOR
RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION PROJECTS USING
RERIAPPENDIX A TIERED REVIEW PROTOCOL

October 9,2013

Name of Responsible Entity [RE]: Gila County Board of Supervisors

Address: 5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200

City, State, Zip Code: Globe, Arizona 85501

Telephone Number of RE: 928-425-7631

REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS

On or about October 17, 2013 the Gila County will authorize Gila County Housing Services to submit a
request to the Arizona Department of Housing for the release of CDSG funds under Cranston
Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, as amended, to undertake a project known
asOwner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation, for the purpose of:
conducting an owner-occupied housing rehabilitation program for two projects with
approximately $112,007 in COBG Program funds.

During the period January'1, 2013 through June 30,2015 approximately $112,007.00 will be used by
Gila County Housing Services to rehabilitate approximately two homes/units. The area of consideration
for this program is: project #1 is located within the Town of Miami boundaries, and the project #2 is
located in the Town of Payson.

The activities proposed are categorically excluded under HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 58 from
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). An Environmental Review Record (ERR) that documents
the environmental determinations for this project is on file at Gila County Community Services Division 
5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200, Globe, Arizona 85501and may be examined or copied weekdays from
8:00 A.M to 5:00 P.M. Gila County will use the Appendix A format to supplement this ERR with
additional site-specific reviews further addressing Historic Preservation, Explosive and Flammable
Operations, Airport Clear Zones, Flood Insurance, Toxic Substances and Hazardous Materials prior to
approving any loan or grant under these programs.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any individual, group, or agency may submit written comments on the ERR to the Gila County
Community Services Division, Malissa Buzan, Director, at 5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200, Globe,
Arizona 85501. All comments received by [insert date - if published, date must be 7 days'after (not
including the) day of publication. If posted, the date must be 10 days after (not including the) day of
posting] will be considered by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to authorizing submission of a
request for release of funds.

Page 1 of2
REV.3-2013



ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION

The Gila County Board of Supervisors certifies to Arizona Department of Housing that Michael A.
Pastor in his capacity as Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors consents to accept the
jurisdiction of the Federal Courts if an action is brought to enforce responsibilities in relation to the
environmental review process and that these responsibilities have been satisfied. Arizona Department
of Housing's approval of the certification satisfies its responsibilities under NEPA and related laws and
authorities and allows the Gila County Housing Services to use Program funds.

OBJECTIONS TO RELEASE OF FUNDS

Arizona Department of Housing will consider objections to its release of funds and the Gila County
Board of Supervisors certification received by [insert date - must be at least 15 days after date of
submission] or for a period of fifteen days following its actual receipt of the request (whichever is later)
only if they are on one of the following bases: (a) the certification was not executed by the Certifying
Officer of the Gila County Board of Supervisors ;( b) the Gila County Board of Supevisors has omitted a
step or failed to make a decision or finding required by HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 58; (c) the
grant recipient or other participants in the project have committed funds or incurred costs not authorized
by 24 CFR Part 58 before approval of a release of funds by Arizona Department of Housing; or (d)
another Federal agency acting pursuant to 40 CFR Part 1504 has submitted a written finding that the
project is unsatisfactory from the standpoint of environmental quality. Objections must be prepared and
submitted in accordance with the required procedures (24 CFR Part 58) and shall be addressed to
Arizona Department of Housing at 1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 310, Phoenix, Arizona 85007.
Potential objectors should contact the Arizona Department of Housing to verify the actual last day of the
objection period.

Signature of RE Certifying Officer

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila CountyBoard of Supervisors

Page2 of2
REV. 3-2013



Arizona
Department
of Housing E-12 Request for Release of Funds and Certification

(HUD Form 7015.15/ OMS No. 2506-0087 expo1013112014)

This form istobe used by Responsible Entities and Recipients (as defined in 24CFR 58.2) when requesting the release offunds, and
requesting the authority to use such funds, forHUD programs identified bystatutes that provide forthe assumption ofthe environmental review
responsibility byunitsofgeneral local government and States. Public reporting burden for this collection ofinformation isestimated to average
36minutes per response, including the time forreviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection ofinformation. This agency may not conduct orsponsor, and a person isnotrequired to
respond to, acollection ofinformation unless that collection displays a valid OMB control number.

Part 1. Program Description and Request for Release ofFunds (to be completed by Responsible Entity)
1. Program Tnle(s) Number (Optional) I2. HUD/State Identification Number I3. Recipient Identification
CDBGRA2013 86-6004791 Gila County Community Services Div.
4. OMB Catalog Number(s) (CFDA #) 5. Name and Address ofResponsible Entity
25006~87 Michael A. Pastor

Gila County Board ofSupervisors
6. For information about this request, contact (name and phone number) 1400 E.Ash Street
Malissa Buzan Phone: 928-425-7631 Globe, AZ. 85501

7. HUD orSlate Agency and office unit toreceive request 8. Name and address ofRecipient (if different than Responsible Entity)
Arizona Department ofHousing Gila County Community Services

5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200
Globe, AZ 85501

The reciplent(s) ofassistance under the program listed above requests the release offunds and removal of
environmental grant conditions governing the use ofthe assistance for the following:

9. Program Activity{ies)Project Name(s)
OOHR Project #1
OOHR Project #2

10_Location (Street address, city, county state)

11. Program AclivitylProject Description

We will provide Owner OCCupied Housing Rehabilitationto two projects inGila County utilizing CDBG Regional Account FY 2014 funds.

Rev. 1212012 1

cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



Part 2.Environmental Certification (to be completed by Responsible Entity)

With reference tothe above Program Aclivity(ies)/Project(s), I, the undersigned officer ofthe Responsible Entity, cet1ify that:

1. The Responsible Entity has fully carried out itsresponsibil~ies forenvironmental review, decision-making and action pertaining tothe Project(s)
named above.

2. The Responsible Entity has assumed responsibility forand complied with and will continue tocomply with, the National Environmental Policy Act
of1969, asamended, and the environmental procedures, permit requirements and statutory obligations ofthe laws cited in24 CFR 58.5; and
also agrees tocomply with the authorities in24CFR 58.6and applicable State and local laws.

3. The responsible entity has assumed responsibility forand complied with and will continue tocomply with Section 106 ofthe National Historic
Preservation Act, and itsimplementing regulations 36CFR 800, including consu~ation with the State Historic Preservation Officer, Indian tribes
and Native Hawaiian organizations, and the public.

4, After considering the type and degree ofenvironmental effects identified bythe environmental review completed for the proposed project
described inPart 1ofthis request, I have found that the proposal 0 did 181 did not require the preparation and dissemination ofan
environmental impact statement.

5. The Responsible Entity has disseminated and/or pUblished In the manner prescribed by 24CFR 58.43 and 58.55 anotice tothe public in
accordance with 24 CFR 58.70 and asevidenced bythe attached copy (copies) orevidence ofposting and mailing procedure.

6. The dates forall statutory and regulatory time periods for review, comment orother action are incompliance with procedures and requirements
of24 CFR Part 58.

7. Inaccordance with 24 CFR 58.71(b), the Responsible Entity will advise the recipient (ifdifferent from the Responsible Entity) ofany special
environmental conditions that must beadhered toincarrying out the project.

As the duly designated Certifying Official ofthe Responsible Entity, I also certify that

8. I am authorized toand doconsent toassume the status ofFederal official under the National Environmental Policy Act of1969 and each
provision oflaw designated inthe 24CFR 58.5list ofNEPMelated authorities insofar as the provisions ofthese laws apply tothe HUD
responsibilities forenvironmental review, decision-making and action that have been assumed by the Responsible Entity,

9. I am authorized toand do accept, on behalf ofthe recipient personally, the jurisdiction ofthe Federal courts for the enforcement ofall these
responsibilities, inmy capacity as Certifying Officer ofthe Responsible Entity.

Signature ofCertifying Officer ofthe Responsible Entity

x

Address ofCertifying Officer
1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501

Title ofCertifying Officer
Chairman, Gila County Board ofSupeNisors

Date Signed
October 1,2013

Part 3. To be completed when the Recipient isnot the Responsible Entity
The recipient requests the release offunds forthe programs and activities identified inPart 1and agrees toabide by the special conditions procedures and
requirements ofthe environmental review and toadvise the responsible entity ofany proposed change inthe scope ofthe project orany change inenvironmental
conditions inaccordance with 24CFR 58.71 (b).

Signature ofAuthorized Officer ofthe Recipient

x

Title of AuthorizedOfficer

Date Signed

WARNING: HUD will prosecute false daims and statements. Conviction may result incriminal and/or civil penalties, (18 U.S,C. 1001 , 1010, 1012; U.S.C.
3729,3802)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE

Rev. 1212012 2





































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2109     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 Arizona Department of Housing.

Background Information
Funding Agreement No. 308-11 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 28, 2011.  Funding
was awarded in the amount of $330,000 to the Gila County Housing Program to provide
owner-occupied housing rehabilitation to approximately 7 owner-occupied single-home family homes
located throughout Gila County.

Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June
25, 2013.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 2 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 will extend the contract end date from September
30, 2013, to November 30, 2013.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this Amendment, the Gila County Community Services Housing
Program will receive an extension which will allow the completion of rehabilitation services to homes
located in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 between the Arizona Department of
Housing and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Department, extending the
contract end date from September 30, 2013, to November 30, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 Funding Agreement 308-11 ADOH
Amendment No 1 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 ADOH
Original Contract 308-11 ADOH
Legal Explanation

































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2114     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department
Program Manager, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program Year 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2010 - 12/31/2014 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111006001) with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
The Governor's Council on Workforce Policy determines each program year the amount of Governor's
discretionary funds to set aside for incentives for the State's Local Workforce Investment Area. 
Incentive funds will awarded to a Local Workforce Investment Area based on each core measure that is
exceeded.

September 21, 2010 - Board of Supervisors approved the initial Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. DE111006001.)

January 18, 2010 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 which adds Section 48.0
Background Checks for Employment throughout the Central Registry.

February 1, 2011 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 which amended Section 6.2
Compensation which adds $356,626 to the Dislocated Worker Program.

February 1, 2011 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 which amended 6.1 Compensation
which adds PY10 set-a-side dollars for contract performance in the amount of $37,809.

August 2, 2011 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 which amended Section 3.1, Section
6.2, Section 7.7, Section 8, Section 12.4 and Section 48.

On November 1, 2011 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 5 which was amended to
include paragraphs - Section 34.2, Section 35.2

On April 3, 2012 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 6 which was amended to reduced the
Dislocated Worker funds from $979,412 to $964,412.

July 17, 2012 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 7 which was amended to increase the
contract from $5,847,242 to $8,642,496.

September 4, 2012 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 8 which was amended to increase
the contract from $8,642,496 to $8,699,003.

February 5, 2013 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 9 which was amended to reduce the



February 5, 2013 - Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 9 which was amended to reduce the
contract from $8,699,003 to $8,549,003 which reflect a reduction of $150,000 to the Dislocated Worker
funds.

Evaluation
Under the Local Workforce Investment Area there are a total 15 performance measures for the Youth (7
measures), Dislocated Worker (4 measures), and Adult Program (4 measures).  To exceed a performance
measure means the local area must have achieved over 100% of the negotiated level.  The Gila/Pinal
Workforce Investment Area has met 4 performance measures with over 100% of the negotiated level.

Pursuant to Section 6.0 Manner of Financing, Paragraph 6.2, the following allocation of funds by
Program and Fiscal Year are added:

PY12 WIA Section 503 Incentive Funds $28,407.00 (CFDA#17.267).
The above funds are to be reported separately and expire on 12/31/2014.
Final expenditure report for these funds must be submitted by 1/31/2015.
The reimbursement ceiling is increased from $8,549,00.00 to $8,577,410

Conclusion
Additional dollars in the amount of $28, 407.00 have been added to Contract No. DE111006001
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors which
increases the contract from $8,549,003 to $8,577,410.

Recommendation
Recommendation to approve Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE111006001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of
Supervisors which increases the contract from $8,549,003.00 to $8,577.410.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE111006001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of
Supervisors which increases the contract amount from $8,549,003 to $8,577,410 due to receiving
incentive funds for the Gila-Pinal Workforce Investment Area from the Governor's Council on Workforce
Policy.

Attachments
Amendment 10 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 9 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 8 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 7 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 6 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment No. 5 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 4 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 3 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 2 - Contract DE111006001
Amendment 1 - Contract DE111006001
Original Contract DE111006001
Legal Explanation



































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2098     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA
Department Program
Manager

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department
Program Manager, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Fiscal Year: Program Year 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013 - June 30,
2014

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Co-Location Resource Sharing Agreement between Gila County (dba Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment
Board) and Central Arizona College.

Background Information
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the required One-Stop services outlined in the Workforce
Investment Act of 1998.  As a mandated partner in the One-Stop Delivery System, Central Arizona
College will be provided the necessary office space to perform work duties.

Evaluation
Central Arizona College will reimburse Gila County (dba Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board) for its
share of the costs associated with co-locating at the Pinal County Comprehensive One-Stop Center as
per breakdown in the Co-Location Resource Sharing Agreement.  Office space is 64 sq. ft and common
space is 52 sq. ft.  Total annual cost is $4,788.

Conclusion
The Agreement between Gila County and Central Arizona College for office space and common space is
to perform work duties at the Gila County Comprehensive One-Stop Center in Globe.

Recommendation
The WIB Program Manager is recommending that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the
Co-location Resource Sharing Agreement between Gila County (dba Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment
Board) and Central Arizona College for work space at the Gila County Comprehensive One-Stop Center
in Globe in the amount of $4,788 for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Co-Location Resource Sharing Agreement between Gila County (dba Gila/Pinal Workforce
Investment Board) and Central Arizona College (CAC) to provide CAC with work space at the Gila
County Comprehensive One-Stop Center in Globe in the amount of $4,788 per year for the period July
1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

Attachments
CAC Co-Location Agreement
Legal Explanation



























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2112     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of
Prevention Services

Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of
Prevention Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-01-13 through 09-30-18 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with the Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information
This contract replaces Contract No. ADHS11-004485. The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is for
the Arizona Department of Helath Services (ADHS) to provide continued funding for the Gila County Nutrition
Services Program of which the following program services are provided to qualified families:  Women, Infant and
Child (WIC), Breastfeeding Peer Counseling (BFPC), and Farmers Market Nutrition Program (FMNP).

Evaluation
Attachment A to the IGA is the Price Sheet of which prices have been established for the period October 1, 2013,
through September 30, 2014, as follows:  WIC services in the amount of $268,575, and BFPC services in
the amount of $40,000.  FMNP services are also included at $1.25 per WIC participant on as as-needed basis.  This
funding will allow Gila County to continue to provide nutrition education services to qualified families.

Conclusion
Without this funding, Gila County would be unable to provide nutrition education services to qualified families.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health and Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
this IGA with ADHS in the total amount of $308,575 to provide services for the period of October 1, 2013, through
September 30, 2018.  The Price Sheet is subject to change after September 30, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) between the Gila County Division of
Health and Emergency Services and the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the amount of $308,575
to allow for the continued provision of Nutrition Program Services for the period of October 1, 2013, through
September 30, 2018.  (This Contract replaces ADHS Contract No. ADHS11-004485.)

Attachments
ADHS Contract No. ADHS14-053062
Legal Explanation



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT(IGA) 

 
Contract No.  ADHS14-053062 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

 

 
 

1 

Project Title:  WIC, BFPC, FMNP Services 
 
Geographic Service Area: Gila County 

Begin Date:    October 1, 2013 
 
Termination Date: September 30, 2018 
 

 
Arizona Department of Health Services has authority to contract for services specified herein in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, 36-
104 and 36-132.  The Contractor represents that it has authority to contract for the performance of the services provided herein pursuant to:  

X Counties: A.R.S. §§ 11-201, 11-951, 11-952 and 36-182. 
 Indian Tribes: A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952 and the rules and sovereign authority of the contracting Indian Nation. 
 School Districts:   A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, and 15-342. 
 City of Phoenix:    Chapter II, §§ 1 & 2, Charter, City of Phoenix. 
 City of Tempe: Chapter 1, Article 1, §§ 1.01 & 1.03, Charter, City of Tempe. 

 
Amendments signed by each of the parties and attached hereto are hereby adopted by reference as a part of this Contract, from the effective 
date of the Amendment, as if fully set out herein.                              

Arizona Transaction (Sales) Privilege:   
 
Federal Employer Identification No.:  
 
Tax License No.:  
 
Contractor Name:  
Gila County Health Services 
Address:  
5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 FOR CLARIFICATION, CONTACT: 
 

Name:    
 
Phone: 
 
FAX No: 
 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE: 
The Contractor agrees to perform all the services set forth in the 
Agreement and Work Statement.   
 

 This Contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract  
 
No.  ADHS14-053062                                            The Contractor 
is hereby cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide 
any material, service or construction under this Contract until 
Contractor receives a fully executed copy of the Contract. 
 

 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
 

State of Arizona 

Signed this   day of   , 2013 
 
 

Print Name and Title 

Procurement Officer 
CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE: 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned Contractor’s 
Attorney has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is 
in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of Arizona.  
 
 

  
RESERVED FOR USE BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
 
 
Under House Bill 2011, A.R.S. § 11-952 was 
amended to remove the requirement that 
Intergovernmental Agreements be filed with the 
Secretary of State. 
 
 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
 
Print Name and Title 

 
Attorney General Contract, No.P0012012000033, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant 
to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney 
General, who has determined that it is in the proper form and is 
within the powers granted under the laws of the State of Arizona 
to those parties to the Agreement represented by the Attorney 
General. 
The Attorney General, BY: 
 
 

 

Signature                           Date 
Assistant Attorney General:   



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

2 

1. Definition of Terms.  As used in this Contract, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 
 

1.1 “Attachment” means any document attached to the Contract and incorporated into the Contract. 
 
1.2 “ADHS” means Arizona Department of Health Services. 
 
1.3 “Budget Term” means the period of time for which the contract budget has been created and during 

which funds should be expended.  
 
1.4 “Change Order” means a written order that is signed by a Procurement Officer and that directs the 

Contractor to make changes authorized by the Uniform Terms and Conditions of the Contract. 
 
1.5 “Contract” means the combination of the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, the 

Specifications and Statement or Scope of Work, Attachments, Referenced Documents, any 
Contract Amendments and any terms applied by law. 

 
1.6 “Contract Amendment” means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer and the 

Contractor that is issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract. 
 
1.7 “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the Arizona Department of Health 

Services. 
 
1.8 “Cost Reimbursement” means a contract under which a contractor is reimbursed for costs, which 

are reasonable, allowable and allocable in accordance with the contract terms and approved by 
ADHS.  

 
1.9 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 
 
1.10 “Fixed Price” establishes a set price per unit of service.  The set price shall be based on costs, 

which are reasonable, allowable and allocable. 
 
1.11 “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or anything 

of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or 
greater value is received. 

 
1.12 “Materials” unless otherwise stated herein, means all property, including but not limited to 

equipments, supplies, printing, insurance and leases of property. 
 
1.13 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized by the State to enter into and administer 

Contracts and make written determinations with respect to the Contract. 
 
1.14 “Purchase Order” means a written document that is signed by a Procurement Officer, that requests 

a vendor to deliver described goods or services at a specific price and that, on delivery and 
acceptance of the goods or services by ADHS, becomes an obligation of the State. 

 
1.15 “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a Contractor or Subcontractor. 
 
1.16 “Subcontract” means any contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and another party or 

between a subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making 
or furnishing of any material or any service required for the performance of this Contract. 

 
1.17 “State” means the State of Arizona and/or the ADHS.  For purposes of this Contract, the term 

“State” shall not include the Contractor. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

3 

 
2. Contract Type. 
  
 This Contract shall be: (check one)  
  
    X       Cost Reimbursement 
  
3. Contract Interpretation. 
 

3.1 Arizona Law. The law of Arizona applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the Uniform 
Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Arizona. 

 
3.2 Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Contract are a 

part of this Contract as if fully stated in it. 
 
3.3 Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by 

the State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below: 
 

3.3.1 Terms and Conditions; 
 
3.3.2 Statement or Scope of Work; 
 
3.3.3 Attachments; 
 
3.3.4 Referenced Documents. 

 
3.4 Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent Contractor.  Neither party to 

this Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other party to the Contract. 
 
3.5 Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 

shall not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 
 
3.6 No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 

agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall supplement or 
explain any terms used in this document. 

 
3.7 No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or acquiescing in the 
nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 

 
3.8 Headings.  Headings are for organizational purposes only and shall not be interpreted as having legal 

significance or meaning. 
 
4. Contract Administration and Operation. 
  

4.1 Term.  As indicated on the signature page of the Contract, the Contract shall be effective as of the Begin 
Date and shall remain effective until the Termination Date.  

 
4.2 Contract Renewal.  This Contract shall not bind, nor purport to bind, the State for any contractual 

commitment in excess of the original Contract period.  The term of the Contract shall not exceed five years.  
However, if the original Contract period is for less than five years, the State shall have the right, at its sole 
option, to renew the Contract, so long as the original Contract period together with the renewal periods does 
not exceed five years.  If the State exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of the original 
Contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with the exception of price and Scope 
of Work, which may be renegotiated.   

 
4.3 New Budget Term.   If a budget term has been completed in a multi-term Contract, the parties may agree to 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

4 

change the amount and type of funding to accommodate new circumstances in the next budget term. Any 
increase or decrease in funding at the time of the new budget term shall coincide with a change in the 
Scope of Work or change in cost of services as approved by the Arizona Department of Health Services. 

 
4.4 Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-09 and all other 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
4.5 Records and Audit.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and A.R.S. § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records (“records”) relating to the 
acquisition and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the completion of the Contract.  
All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by the State and where applicable the Federal 
Government at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of any or all 
such records. 

 
4.6 Financial Management.  For all contracts, the practices, procedures, and standards specified in and 

required by the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS funded programs shall be used 
by the Contractor in the management of Contract funds and by the State when performing a Contract audit.  
Funds collected by the Contractor in the form of fees, donations and/or charges for the delivery of these 
Contract services shall be accounted for in a separate fund.   

 
4.6.1 Federal Funding. Contractors receiving federal funds under this Contract shall comply with the 

certified finance and compliance audit provision of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, if applicable.  The federal financial assistance information shall be stated in a 
Change Order or Purchase Order. 

 
4.6.2 State Funding.  Contractors receiving state funds under this Contract shall comply with the certified 

compliance provisions of A.R.S. § 35-181.03. 
 

4.7 Inspection and Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access, at reasonable times, to its facilities. 
 
4.8 Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State to the person 

indicated on the signature page by the Contractor, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the 
State required by the Contract shall be made by the Contractor to an ADHS Procurement Officer, unless 
otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized ADHS Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor 
representative may change their respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice, and an 
amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

 
4.9 Advertising and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not advertise or publish information for 

commercial benefit concerning this Contract without the prior written approval of an ADHS Procurement 
Officer. 

 
4.10 Property of the State.   

 
4.10.1 Equipment.  Except as provided below or otherwise agreed to by the parties, the title to any and all 

equipment acquired through the expenditure of funds received from the State shall remain the 
property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under the sole direction, 
management and control of the ADHS.  When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all 
such property shall be determined by the ADHS.  For Fixed Price contracts, when the Contractor 
provides the services/materials required by the Contract, any and all equipment purchased by the 
Contractor remains the property of the Contractor.  All purchases of equipment need to be reported 
to the ADHS Office of Inventory Control.  

 
4.10.2 Title and Rights to Materials.  As used in this section, the term “Materials” means all products 

created or produced by the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to: written and 
electronic information, recordings, reports, research, research findings, conclusions, abstracts, 
results, software, data and any other intellectual property or deliverables created, prepared, or 
received by the Contractor in performance of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that all 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

5 

Materials are the property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under 
the sole direction, management and control of the ADHS.  The Contractor is not entitled to a patent 
or copyright on these Materials and may not transfer a patent or copyright on them to any other 
person or entity.  To the extent any copyright in any Materials may originally vest in the Contractor, 
the Contractor hereby irrevocably transfers to the ADHS, for and on behalf of the State, all 
copyright ownership.  The ADHS shall have full, complete and exclusive rights to reproduce, 
duplicate, adapt, distribute, display, disclose, publish, release and otherwise use all Materials.  The 
Contractor shall not use or release these Materials without the prior written consent of the ADHS.  
When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all such Materials shall be determined by the 
ADHS.  Further, the Contractor agrees to give recognition to the ADHS for its support of any 
program when releasing or publishing program Materials. 

 
4.10.3 Notwithstanding the above, if the Contractor is a State agency, the following shall apply instead:  It 

is the intention of ADHS and Contractor that all material and intellectual property developed under 
this Agreement be used and controlled in ways to produce the greatest  benefit to the parties to this 
Contract and the citizens of the State of Arizona.  As used in this paragraph, “Material” means all 
written and electronic information, recordings, reports, findings, research information, abstracts, 
results, software, data, discoveries, inventions, procedures and processes of services developed 
by the Contractor and any other materials created, prepared or received by the Contractor and 
subcontractors in performance of this Agreement.  “Material” as used herein shall not include any 
pre-existing data, information, materials, discoveries, inventions or any form of intellectual property 
invented, created, developed or devised by Contractor (or its employees, subcontractors or agents) 
prior to the commencement of the services funded by this Agreement or that may result from 
Contractor’s involvement in other service activities that are not funded by the Agreement. 

 
 4.10.4 Title and exclusive copyright to all Material shall vest in the State of Arizona, subject to any rights 

reserved on behalf of the federal government.  As State agencies and instrumentalities, both ADHS 
and Contractor shall have full, complete, perpetual, irrevocable and non-transferable rights to 
reproduce, duplicate, adapt, make derivative works, distribute, display, disclose, publish and 
otherwise use any and all Material.  The Contractor’s right to use Material shall include the 
following rights:   the right to use the Material in connection with its internal, non-profit research and 
educational activities, the right to present at academic or professional meetings or symposia and 
the right to publish in journals, theses, dissertations or otherwise of Contractor’s own choosing.  
Contractor agrees to provide ADHS with a right of review prior to any publication or public 
presentation of the Material, and ADHS shall be entitled to request the removal of its confidential 
information or any other content the disclosure of which would be contrary to the best interest of 
the State of Arizona.  Neither party shall release confidential information to the public without the 
prior expressly written permission of the other, unless required by the State public records statutes 
or other law, including a court order.  Each party agrees to give recognition to the other party in all 
public presentations or publications of any Material, when releasing or publishing them.  

 
4.10.5 In addition, ADHS and Contractor agree that any and all Material shall be made freely available to 

the public to the extent it is in the best interest of the State.  However, if either party wants to 
license or assign an intellectual property interest in the material to a third-party for monetary 
compensation, ADHS and Contractor agree to convene to determine the relevant issues of title, 
copyright, patent and distribution of revenue.  In the event of a controversy as to whether the 
Material is being used for monetary compensation or in a way that interferes with the best interest 
of the state or ADHS, then the Arizona Department of Administration shall make the final decision.  
Notwithstanding the above, “monetary compensation’ does not include compensation paid to an 
individual creator for traditional publications in academia (the copyrights to which are Employee-
Excluded Works under ABOR Intellectual Property Policy Section 6-908C.4.), an honorarium or 
other reimbursement of expenses for an academic or professional presentation, or an unprofitable 
distribution of Material.  

 
4.11 E-Verify Requirements  In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants compliance with all 

Federal immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with Section 
A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

6 

4.12 Federal Immigration and Nationality Act The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local 
immigration laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of their employees during the term of the 
Contract. Further, the Contractor shall flow down this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the 
term of the Contract. The State shall retain the right to perform random audits of Contractor and 
subcontractor records or to inspect papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the State 
determine that the Contractor and/or any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the State may pursue all 
remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to; suspension of work, termination of the Contract for 
default and suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 

 
5. Costs and Payments. 
 

 5.1 Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, net 30 days. Upon 
receipt and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate 
Contractor’s Expenditure Report for payment from the State within thirty (30) days, as provided in the 
Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS. 

 
5.2 Recoupment of Contract Payments.  

 
5.2.1 Unearned Advanced Funds.  Any unearned State funds that have been advanced to the Contractor 

and remain in its possession at the end of each budget term, or at the time of termination of the 
Contract, shall be refunded to the ADHS within forty-five (45) days of the end of a budget term or of 
the time of termination. 

 
5.2.2 Contracted Services.  In a fixed price contract, if the number of services provided is less than the 

number of services for which the Contractor received compensation, funds to be returned to the 
ADHS shall be determined by the Contract price.  Where the price is determined by cost per unit of 
service or material, the funds to be returned shall be determined by multiplying the unit of service 
cost by the number of services the Contractor did not provide during the Contract term.  Where the 
price for a deliverable is fixed, but the deliverable has not been completed, the Contractor shall be 
paid a pro rata portion of the completed deliverable.  In a cost reimbursement contract, the ADHS 
shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as having been paid by the Contractor 
and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be paid its reasonable actual costs for 
work in progress as determined by Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures up to the date of 
contract termination.   

 
5.2.3 Refunds.  Within forty-five (45) days after the end of each budget term or of the time of termination 

of the Contract, the Contractor shall refund the greater of:  i) the amount refundable in accordance 
with paragraph 4.2.1, Unearned Advanced Funds; or ii) the amount refundable in accordance with 
paragraph 5.2.2, Contracted Services.   

 
5.2.4 Unacceptable Expenditures.  The Contractor agrees to reimburse the ADHS for all Contract funds 

expended, which are determined by the ADHS not to have been disbursed by the Contractor in 
accordance with the terms of this Contract.  The Contractor shall reimburse ADHS within 45 days 
of the determination of unacceptability. 

 
5.3 Unit Costs/Rates or Fees.  Unit costs/rates or fees shall be based on costs, which are determined by ADHS 

to be reasonable, allowable and allocable as outlined in the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual 
for the ADHS. 

 
5.4 Applicable Taxes. 

 
5.4.1 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state 

and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 
responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does not relieve the 
seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 
5.4.2 Tax Indemnification.  The Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all federal, state and local 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

7 

taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall 
require all subcontractors to hold the State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages 
and interest, if applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and 
regulations and any other costs, including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation 
insurance, Social Security and Worker’s Compensation. 

 
5.4.3 I.R.S. W9 Form.  In order to receive payment under any resulting Contract, the Contractor shall 

have a current I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona.   
 

5.5 Availability of Funds for the Next Fiscal Year.  Funds may not be presently available for performance under 
this Contract beyond the first year of the budget term or Contract term.  The State may reduce payments or 
terminate this Contract without further recourse, obligation or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are 
appropriated in the subsequent budget term.  The State shall not be liable for any purchases or 
Subcontracts entered into by the Contractor in anticipation of such funding. The Procurement Officer shall 
have the discretion in determining the availability of funds.    

 
5.6 Availability of Funds for the Current Contract Term.  Should the State Legislature enter back into session 

and decrease the appropriations through line item or general fund reductions, or for any other reason these 
goods or services are not funded as determined by ADHS, the following actions may be taken by ADHS: 

 
5.6.1 Accept a decrease in price offered by the Contractor; 

5.6.2 Reduce the number of goods or units of service and reduce the payments accordingly; 

5.6.3 Offer reductions in funding as an alternative to Contract termination; or 

5.6.4 Cancel the Contract.    

6. Contract Changes. 
 

6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the 
Procurement Officer who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment, Purchase Order and/or Change Order within the scope of the Contract, unless the change is 
administrative or otherwise permitted by the Special Terms and Conditions.  Changes to the Contract, 
including the addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or 
materials, directed by an unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations 
of the Contract and of applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized Contract Amendments, 
Purchase Orders and/or Change Orders, shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be 
entitled to any claim under this Contract based on those changes. 

 
6.2 Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract under this Contract without the advance 

written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The subcontract shall incorporate by reference all material 
and applicable terms and conditions of this Contract. 

 
6.3  Assignments and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 

Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The State shall not unreasonably 
withhold approval. 

 
7.  Risk and Liability. 
 

7.1 Risk of Loss.  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this Contract until 
received and accepted by authorized personnel at the location designated in the Purchase Order, Change 
Order or Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk of loss for nonconforming 
materials shall remain with the Contractor regardless of receipt. 

 
7.2 Mutual Indemnification.  Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

other party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs or expenses 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

8 

(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) arising out of bodily 
injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such claims, which 
result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers. 

 
7.3 Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and A.R.S. § 35-154, 

the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs and 
expenses, for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of performance of the Contract 
or use by the State of materials furnished by or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall 
reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be liable under this paragraph. 

 
7.4 Force Majeure. 

 
7.4.1 Liability and Definition.  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other 

nor deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this 
Contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence 
that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without 
limiting the foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of 
terrorism; war; riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; 
injunctions-interventions not caused by or resulting from the act or failure to act of the parties; 
failures or refusals to act by government authority not caused by or resulting from the act or failure 
to act of the parties; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force 
majeure, which such party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 
7.4.2 Exclusions.  Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 
7.4.2.1 Late delivery of Materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or 

an oversold condition of the market; 
 
7.4.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or 
 
7.4.2.3 Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required 

insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 
 

7.4.3 Notice.  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the 
delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practicable and no 
later than the following working day of the commencement thereof, and shall specify the causes of 
such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and 
shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party 
shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing 
when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a 
period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 
7.4.4 Default.  Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default 

hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent 
that, such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

7.5 Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting 
from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or services supplied by third 
parties to the Contractor for or toward the fulfillment of this Contract. 

 
8. Description of Materials. 
  
 The following provisions shall apply to Materials only: 
 

8.1 Liens. The Contractor agrees that the Materials supplied under this Contract are free of liens.  In the event 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

9 

the Materials are not free of liens, Contractor shall pay to remove the lien and any associated damages or 
replace the Materials with Materials free of liens. 

 
8.2 Quality. Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the Contractor agrees that, for 

one year after acceptance by the State of the Materials, they shall be: 
 

8.2.1  Of a quality to pass without objection in the Contract description; 
 
8.2.2 Fit for the intended purposes for which the Materials are used; 
 
8.2.3 Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, and quality within 

each unit and among all units; 
 
8.2.4 Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and  
 
8.2.5 Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 

 
8.3 Inspection/Testing.  Subparagraphs 8.1 through 8.2 of this paragraph are not affected by inspection or 

testing of or payment for the Materials by the State. 
 
8.4 Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The Materials and services supplied under this Contract shall comply 

with all applicable federal, state and local laws, and the Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and 
permit requirements. 

 
8.5 Survival of Rights and Obligations After Contract Expiration and Termination. 
 

8.5.1 Contractor’s Representations.  All representations and warranties made by the Contractor under 
this Contract in paragraphs 7 and 8 shall survive the expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, 
the parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12.510, except as provided in A.R.S. § 
12-529, the State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in A.R.S. Title 
12, Chapter 5. 

 
8.5.2 Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  Unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement 

Officer, the Contractor shall fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with all Purchase Orders 
and Change Orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or termination hereof, 
including, without limitation, all Purchase Orders and Change Orders received prior to but not fully 
performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of this Contract. 

 
9. State’s Contractual Remedies. 
 

9.1 Right to Assurance.  If the State, in good faith, has reason to believe that the Contractor does not intend to, 
or is unable to, perform or continue performing under this Contract, the Procurement Officer may demand 
in writing that the Contractor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to 
provide written assurance within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be 
the basis for terminating the Contract. 

 
9.2 Stop Work Order. 

 
9.2.1 Terms.  The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to 

stop all or any part of the work called for by this Contract for a period up to ninety (90) Days after 
the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  
The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  Upon 
receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable 
steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the 
period of work stoppage. 

 
9.2.2 Cancellation or Expiration.  If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

10 

of the order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work. The Procurement Officer 
shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule or Contract price, or both, and the 
Contract shall be amended in writing accordingly.  

 
9.3 Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of ADHS under this Contract are not exclusive, and 

ADHS is entitled to all rights and remedies available to it, including those under the Arizona Uniform 
Commercial Code and Arizona common law. 

 
9.4 Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Contractor in any Contract 

with the State or damages assessed by the State because of the Contractor’s non-conforming performance 
or failure to perform this Contract.  The right to offset may include, but is not limited to, a deduction from an 
unpaid balance and a collection against the bid and/or performance bonds.  Any offset taken for damages 
assessed by the State shall represent a fair and reasonable amount for the actual damages and shall not 
be a penalty for non-performance.  
 

10. Contract Termination. 
 

10.1 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Contract within 
three (3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly 
involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is, or 
becomes at any time while the Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of or a 
consultant to any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The 
cancellation shall be effective when the Contractor receives written notice of the cancellation, unless the 
notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this 
Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
10.2 Gratuities.  The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if the State 

determines that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the Contractor or a representative of the 
Contractor to any officer or employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the 
procurement, securing the Contract or an Amendment to the Contract, or receiving favorable treatment 
concerning the Contract, including the making of any determination or decision about Contract 
performance.  The State, in addition to any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary 
damages in the amount of three times the value of the Gratuity offered by the Contractor. 

 
10.3 Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate this 

Contract if the State determines that the Contractor or its subcontractor has been debarred, suspended or 
otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity, including but not limited 
to, being disapproved as a subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.   

 
10.4 Termination Without Cause. 
 
 10.4.1 Both the State and the Contractor may terminate this Contract at any time with thirty (30) days 

notice in writing specifying the termination date.  Such notices shall be given by personal delivery 
or by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
 10.4.2 If the Contractor terminates this Contract, any monies prepaid by the State, for which no service 

or benefit was received by the State, shall be refunded to the State within 5 days of the 
termination notice.  In addition, if the Contractor terminates the Contract, the Contractor shall 
indemnify the State for any sanctions imposed by the funding source as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to complete the Contract. 

 
 10.4.3 If the State terminates this Contact pursuant to this Section, the State shall pay the Contractor the 

Contract price for all Services and Materials completed up to the date of termination.  In a fixed 
price contract, the State shall pay the amount owed for the Services or Materials by multiplying 
the unit of service or item cost by the number of unpaid service units or items.  In a cost 
reimbursement contract, the ADHS shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as 
having been paid by the Contractor and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

11 

paid its reasonable actual costs for work in progress as determined by GAAP up to the date of 
termination.  Upon such termination, the Contractor shall deliver to the ADHS all deliverables 
completed.  ADHS may require Contractor to negotiate the terms of any remaining deliverables 
still due. 

 
10.5 Mutual Termination.  This Contract may be terminated by mutual written agreement of the parties 

specifying the termination date and the terms for disposition of property and, as necessary, submission of 
required deliverables and payment therein. 

 
10.6 Termination for Default.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part due to 

the failure of the Contractor to comply with any material obligation, term or condition of the Contract, to 
acquire and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory 
progress in performing the Contract.  In the event the ADHS terminates the Contract in whole or in part as 
provided in this paragraph, the ADHS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as deemed 
appropriate, Services or Materials, similar to those terminated, and Contractor shall be liable to the ADHS 
for any excess costs incurred by the ADHS in obtaining such similar Services or Materials. 

 
10.7 Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  Upon receipt of the notice of termination and until the 

effective date of the notice of termination, the Contractor shall perform work consistent with the 
requirements of the Contract and, if applicable, in accordance with a written transition plan approved by the 
ADHS.  If the Contract is terminated in part, the Contractor shall continue to perform the Contract to the 
extent not terminated.  After receiving the notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately notify all 
subcontractors, in writing, to stop work on the effective date of termination, and on the effective date of 
termination, the Contractor and subcontractors shall stop all work.  

 
10.8 Disposition of Property.  Upon termination of this Contract, all property of the State, as defined herein, shall 

be delivered to the ADHS upon demand. 
 
11. Arbitration. 
 
 Pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-1518, disputes under this Contract shall be resolved through the use of arbitration when 

the case or lawsuit is subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to rules adopted under A.R.S. § 12 -133. 
  
12. Communication. 
 

12.1 Program Report.  When reports are required by the Contract, the Contractor shall provide them in the 
format approved by ADHS.  

 
12.2 Information and Coordination.  The State will provide information to the Contractor pertaining to activities 

that affect the Contractor’s delivery of services, and the Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating 
their activities with the State’s in such a manner as not to conflict or unnecessarily duplicate the State’s 
activities.  As the work of the Contractor progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the 
Contract shall be made available by the Contractor to the State throughout the effective period of the 
Contract. 

 
13. Client Grievances. 
 
 If applicable, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall use a procedure through which clients may present 

grievances about the operation of the program that result in the denial, suspension or reduction of services 
provided pursuant to this Contract and which is acceptable to and approved by the State.  

 
14. Sovereign Immunity. 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621(O), the obtaining of insurance by the State shall not be a waiver of any sovereign 
immunity defense in the event of suit. 

  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

12 

15. Fingerprint and Certification Requirements/Juvenile Services. 
 

15.1 Paid and Unpaid Personnel.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 36-425.03, the Contractor shall ensure that all paid and 
unpaid personnel who are required or are allowed to provide Services directly to juveniles have obtained 
fingerprint clearance cards in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1758 et. seq. 

 
15.2 Costs.  The Contractor shall assume the costs of fingerprint certifications and may charge these costs to its 

fingerprinted personnel. 
 

16. Administrative Changes. 
 
 The Procurement Officer, or authorized designee, reserves the right to correct any obvious clerical, typographical 

or grammatical errors, as well as errors in party contact information (collectively, “Administrative Changes”), prior 
to or after the final execution of a Contract or Contract Amendment.  Administrative Changes subject to 
permissible corrections include: misspellings, grammar errors, incorrect addresses, incorrect Contract 
Amendment numbers, pagination and citation errors, mistakes in the labeling of the rate as either extended or 
unit, and calendar date errors that are illogical due to typographical error.  The Procurement Office shall 
subsequently send to the Contractor notice of corrections to administrative errors in a written confirmation letter 
with a copy of the corrected Administrative Change attached. 

 
17.   Survival of Terms After Termination or Cancellation of Contract. 
 
 All applicable Contract terms shall survive and apply after Contract termination or cancellation to the extent 

necessary for Contractor to complete and for the ADHS to receive and accept any final deliverables that are due 
after the date of the termination or cancellation. 

 
18. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). 

 
18.1 The Contractor warrants that it is familiar with the requirements of HIPAA, as amended by the Health 

Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) of 2009, and accompanying 
regulations and will comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements in the course of this 
Contract.  Contractor warrants that it will cooperate with the Arizona Department of Health Services 
(ADHS) in the course of performance of the Contract so that both ADHS and Contractor will be in 
compliance with HIPAA, including cooperation and coordination with the Arizona Strategic Enterprise 
Technology (ASET), Statewide Information Security and Privacy Office (SISPO) Chief Privacy Officer and 
HIPAA Coordinator and other compliance officials required by HIPAA and its regulations.  Contractor will 
sign any documents that are reasonably necessary to keep ADHS and Contractor in compliance with 
HIPAA, including, but not limited to, business associate agreements. 

 
18.2 If requested by the ADHS Procurement Office, Contractor agrees to sign a “Pledge To Protect Confidential 

Information” and to abide by the statements addressing the creation, use and disclosure of confidential 
information, including information designated as protected health information and all other confidential or 
sensitive information as defined in policy.  In addition, if requested, Contractor agrees to attend or 
participate in HIPAA training offered by ADHS or to provide written verification that the Contractor has 
attended or participated in job related HIPAA training that is: (1) intended to make the Contractor proficient 
in HIPAA for purposes of performing the services required and (2) presented by a HIPAA Privacy Officer or 
other person or program knowledgeable and experienced in HIPAA and who has been approved by the 
ASET/SISPO Chief Privacy Officer and HIPAA Coordinator. 

 
19. Comments Welcome. 

 
The ADHS Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions and welcomes any 
comments you may have. Please submit your comments to: ADHS Procurement Administrator, Arizona 
Department of Health Services, 1740 West Adams, Suite 303, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007. 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

13 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) Bureau of Nutrition and Physical Activity (BNPA) 

administers funds provided by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) for the operation of 
the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC), Breastfeeding 
Peer Counseling Program (BFPC), and the Women and Children's Farmers Market Nutrition Programs 
(FMNP) for the State of Arizona. The USDA nutrition programs are discretionary, and each provides a 
specific service to women, infants, and children who are low income and at nutrition risk. The overall 
goal of all the USDA Nutrition Programs is to improve the health status of eligible participants through 
adoption of healthy behavioral lifestyle changes and to help prevent the occurrence of health problems. 

 
1.1.1 WIC Nutrition Services  

 
1.1.1.1 The WIC Program accomplishes this goal by providing participant-centered services 

(PCS) including nutrition and breastfeeding information and support, specific 
supplemental healthy foods through the issuance of food instruments/benefits that 
can be used at ADHS-approved grocery stores and farmers’ markets, and referrals to 
other health and human services as an adjunct to good health care during critical 
times of growth and development. Service population eligibility for the WIC Program 
is based upon federal regulations such as participant category (pregnant and 
breastfeeding woman, infant or child under five (5) years of age), a household 
income at or below 185% of federal poverty guidelines, residence within the service 
area, and nutrition risks. 

 
1.1.1.2 To be considered as a WIC Local Agency, the organization must be a local public or 

private non-profit organization, County health department, or tribal entity under 
contract with ADHS to provide WIC services according to the WIC Program federal 
regulations and state policies and procedures. The State awards a WIC Contract 
based on the ability of the organization to provide WIC services, potential eligible 
population, need, response to the Scope of Work, information technology capacity, 
and available funds. The State determines and awards the WIC contract amount 
based on a funding formula using several factors such as a base level for a program 
to function, the amount of caseload negotiated with each Local Agency, and quality 
of performance. 

 
1.1.1.2.1 Specific objectives for nutrition services (based on Healthy People 2020 

goals) are: 
 

1.1.1.2.1.1 To increase the incidence of breastfeeding to eighty-two 
percent (82%) of women initiating breastfeeding; 

 
1.1.1.2.1.2 To increase the duration of breastfeeding to sixty-one 

percent (61%) of women breastfeeding for the first six (6) 
months of their baby’s life; 

 
1.1.1.2.1.3 To increase the duration of breastfeeding to thirty-four 

percent (34%) of women breastfeeding for the first (1st) year 
of their baby’s life; 

 
1.1.1.2.1.4 To increase the rate infants are exclusively breastfed to 

forty-four percent (44%) at three (3) months and twenty-four 
percent (24%) at six (6) months; 

 
1.1.1.2.1.5 To reduce the proportion of adults who are considered 

obese to thirty-one percent (31%); 
  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

14 

 
1.1.1.2.1.6 To reduce the proportion of children ages two through five 

(2-5) who are considered obese to ten percent (10%); 
 

1.1.1.2.1.7 To increase the consumption and variety of fruits and 
vegetables by those two (2) and older; 

 
1.1.1.2.1.8 To increase the consumption of whole grains by those two 

(2) and older; and 
 
1.1.1.2.1.9 To increase the proportion of children ages zero through two 

(0-2) who view no television or videos on an average day to 
forty-five (45%). 

 
2. Breastfeeding Peer Counseling (BFPC) 

 
2.1 In 2003, the USDA Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) entered into a cooperative agreement with Best 

Start Social Marketing (Best Start) to gather information to obtain a clear understanding of the 
components that are necessary to sustain effective peer counseling programs and how to structure 
these programs so they are cost effective and manageable They developed the program "Using Loving 
Support to Implement Best Practices in Peer Counseling", which is a training and technical assistance 
project that will be used as a model to aid WIC in designing, building, maintaining, and sustaining peer 
counseling programs that will improve breastfeeding initiation and duration rates. Arizona will be using 
this program to guide and develop the state peer counseling program. 

 
2.2 The discretionary peer counseling services are considered an adjunct support to WIC breastfeeding 

services to help achieve the WIC Nutrition Services objectives regarding breastfeeding. 
 
2.3 Peer counseling has been a significant factor in improving initiation and duration rates of breastfeeding 

among women in a variety of settings, including disadvantaged and WIC populations representing 
diverse cultural backgrounds and geographical locations. Peer counselors are especially effective in 
communities where role models for breastfeeding behaviors, knowledgeable health care providers, and 
cultural practices that include breastfeeding as the norm, are scarce. Combining peer counseling with 
the ongoing WIC breastfeeding promotion and support efforts has the potential to significantly impact 
breastfeeding rates among WIC participants, and most significantly, increase the harder to achieve 
breastfeeding duration rates. WIC Local Agencies are strongly encouraged to provide peer counseling 
services in addition to the ongoing breastfeeding support to their WIC participants. Contractors must 
provide a breastfeeding friendly environment and have policies to accommodate participants and staff 
who are breastfeeding. 

 
3. Farmer's Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) 

 
3.1 The Women and Children Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) is intended to increase 

consumption of locally grown fresh fruits and vegetables by providing FMNP checks to a limited number 
of WIC women and children to purchase these items directly from growers at ADHS-approved farmers' 
markets. FMNP is also intended to support local agriculture by expanding the awareness, use of, and 
sales at farmers' markets. 

 
4. Objective 

 
At a minimum, to provide WIC services while allowing each Local Agency to provide, at their discretion, 
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Services and / or Farmers’ Market Nutrition Program Services. 
 

5. Scope of Work 
 
5.1 WIC Services 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

15 

5.1.1 The WIC Program Contractor shall perform all the work required to administer and provide WIC 
services to eligible participants according to the Arizona WIC Program Policies and Procedures 
Manual (WIC PPM). These include, but are not limited to the following activities: 
 
5.1.1.1 Perform WIC certification procedures such as categorical and income screening and 

health and nutrition assessments; 
 

5.1.1.2 Provide participant centered nutrition and breastfeeding support services to WIC 
participants;  

 
5.1.1.3 Provide the mandatory and appropriate additional referrals reflecting the needs of the 

individual WIC participants; 
 

5.1.1.4 Issue WIC food instruments/benefits; 
 

5.1.1.5 Ensure the collection and recording of accurate information; 
 

5.1.1.6 Provide professional training, mentoring and monitoring of WIC staff competencies 
necessary for delivery of required services; 

 
5.1.1.7 Provide administrative functions for operation of the WIC Program; and 

 
5.1.1.8 Prepare and submit all required plans/reports in accordance with this contract and 

the WIC PPM.  
 

5.2 Breastfeeding Peer Counseling (BFPC) 
 
WIC BFPC Contractors shall perform all the work required to administer and provide additional 
breastfeeding support services to WIC mothers following the Loving Support best practice guidelines for 
peer counseling services and according to the according to the WIC Policy and Procedure Manual in 
order to increase the breastfeeding rate and duration of breastfeeding. 

 
5.3 Farmer's Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) 

 
5.3.1 WIC FMNP Contractors shall perform all the work required to administer and provide WIC 

FMNP services to eligible participants including but not limited to: 
 

5.3.1.1 Identifying participants and offering program services; 
 
5.3.1.2 Distributing information to participants; 
 
5.3.1.3 Providing competent staff to perform certification; 
 
5.3.1.4 Issuing of FMNP checks; 
 
5.3.1.5 Safeguarding FMNP checks; 
 
5.3.1.6 Documenting accurately all required information; 
 
5.3.1.7 Providing administrative functions necessary for operation of the FMNP; 
 
5.3.1.8 Preparing and submitting all required reports in accordance with this Contract; and 
 
5.3.1.9 Adhering to all provisions of the Arizona Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Policies 

and Procedures Manual. 
  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

16 

6. Tasks and Requirements 
 
6.1 WIC Services Outreach and Referrals 

 
6.1.1 The Contractor shall:  

 
6.1.1.1 Conduct outreach activities targeting high risk and underserved populations by 

developing written and verbal presentations or utilizing available materials to inform 
potentially WIC eligible individuals of the availability of the WIC Program and to 
explain the benefits of participation according to the outreach plan proposal 
submitted and accepted with this Contract; 

 
6.1.1.2 Establish community partnerships with, at a minimum, the mandatory referral 

agencies, local hospitals, OB/GYN and pediatricians offices, and provide regular 
contacts according to the outreach and plan proposal submitted and accepted with 
this Contract; 

 
6.1.1.3 Establish community partnerships with community organizations such as food banks, 

community organizations, human and social services, school districts, etc. according 
to the outreach and referral plan proposal submitted and accepted with this Contract; 
and 

 
6.1.1.4 Establish a referral system with breastfeeding/lactation specialists, including but not 

limited to, International Board Certified Lactation Consultants (IBCLC), Certified 
Lactation Counselors (CLC), Certified Breastfeeding Counselors (CBC), and Certified 
Lactation Educators (CLE) according to the outreach and referral plan proposal 
submitted and accepted with this Contract. 

 
6.2 BFPC Outreach 

 
6.2.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.2.1.1 Develop and document an internal referral link between WIC Program and WIC Peer 

Counseling Program when applicable. Interaction between WIC Program and WIC 
Peer Counseling Program shall occur at least monthly and may be in the form of site 
visits from Peer Counselors, participation of Peer Counselors in WIC clinic meetings, 
and/or additional training for WIC clinic staff and Peer Counselors. 
 

6.3 Participant Records 
 
6.3.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.3.1.1 Follow and maintain documentation of participant centered certification and 

administrative procedures as described in the WIC PPM, including but not limited to: 
 
6.3.1.1.1 Eligibility and ineligibility determinations; 

 
6.3.1.1.2 Complete nutrition assessments; 

 
6.3.1.1.3 Nutrition  and breastfeeding education and support; 

 
6.3.1.1.4 Nutrition and breastfeeding counseling; 

 
6.3.1.1.5 Encourage participants in setting behavioral goals; 

 
6.3.1.1.6 Appropriate referrals; 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

17 

6.3.1.1.7 Program abuse; and 
 

6.3.1.1.8 Food instrument issuances. 
 

6.3.1.2 Maintain inventory and accountability records, as set forth in the WIC PPM, of paper 
food instrument stock and food instruments issued by the Contractor. 
 

6.3.1.3 Assure participant confidentiality by obtaining written permission from affected 
program participant(s) prior to the release of participant information to any agency. 
The Contractor shall have a written agreement, completed in accordance with 7 CFR 
(Code of Federal Regulations) 24626 (h)(3), and the Arizona WIC Policy and 
Procedure Manual, with any agency or program that will share participant 
information. The above federal regulation details the implementation of a written 
agreement and state plan to regulate use and disclosure of confidential applicant and 
participant information. 

 
6.3.1.4 Ensure staff only has access to the WIC Computer Data System and client files for 

business related reason(s). 
 

6.3.1.5 Ensure paper files containing confidential participant information are stored in a 
secure location in the clinic, archived when appropriate, and destroyed according to 
the retention schedule.  All files should be destroyed according to the WIC PPM. 

 
6.3.1.6 Notify the State Agency immediately by telephone call and email upon the discovery 

of a breach of a participant’s confidentiality. 
 

6.3.1.7 Immediately investigate such security incident, breach, or unauthorized use or 
disclosure of participant information, including: 

 
6.3.1.7.1 What data elements were involved and the extent of the data involved in 

the breach; 
 

6.3.1.7.2 A description of the unauthorized person(s) known or reasonably 
believed to have improperly used or disclosed the protected information; 

 
6.3.1.7.3 A description of where the protected information is believed to have been 

improperly transmitted, sent, or utilized; 
 

6.3.1.7.4 A description of the probable causes of the improper use or disclosure; 
and 

 
6.3.1.7.5 Whether Arizona Revised Statues (A.R.S) § 44-7501 or any other federal 

or state laws requiring individual notifications of breaches are triggered. 
 

6.3.1.8 Provide a written report of the investigation to the Chief of the Bureau of Nutrition and 
Physical Activity (BNPA)/WIC Director and Program Integrity Manager within ten (10) 
working days of the discovery of the breach or unauthorized use or disclosure.  The 
report shall include the information specified above, as well as a full, detailed 
corrective action plan, including information on measures that were taken to halt 
and/or contain the improper use or disclosure. 
 

6.3.1.9 Notify individuals of the breach or unauthorized use or disclosure when notification is 
required under state or federal law and shall pay any costs of such notifications, as 
well as any costs associated with the breach. The BNPA Chief/WIC Director, 
Program Integrity Manager, and Assistant Attorney General shall approve the time, 
manner and content of any such notifications. Obtain approval of content and 
timeline from ADHS prior to sending out of notification to affected individuals. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

18 

 
6.3.1.10 Arrange and pay for any mitigation (e.g. credit monitoring services) for participants at 

risk of identity theft because of breach of security of information. 
 

6.4 FMNP Participant Records Tasks: 
 
6.4.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.4.1.1 Document certification and distribution of FMNP checks and submit reports to ADHS 

according to the Arizona Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Policies and Procedures 
Manual. 
 

6.5 Service Delivery and Program Rules 
 
6.5.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.5.1.1 Determine eligibility of persons requesting WIC services by screening individuals in 

accordance with procedures set forth in the WIC PPM;  To be eligible, program 
participants shall meet the following requirements: 
 
6.5.1.1.1 Household income does not exceed 185% of the current designated 

federal poverty guidelines or are adjunctively eligible; 
 

6.5.1.1.2 Have a nutritional risk as defined in the WIC PPM; and 
 

6.5.1.1.3 Reside in Arizona as defined by the WIC PPM. 
 

6.5.1.2 Ensure that the program participants are in one (1) of the following categories: 
 

6.5.1.2.1 Pregnant women, 
 

6.5.1.2.2 Breastfeeding women up to twelve (12) months post-partum, 
   

6.5.1.2.3 Non-breastfeeding women up to six (6) months post-partum,  
 

6.5.1.2.4 Infants from birth to age one (1), or 
 

6.5.1.2.5 Children from age one (1) year through the end of the month in which 
they turn five (5) years. 

 
6.5.1.3 Provide complete nutrition assessment and document results and follow-up in 

accordance with Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment (VENA) initiative as outlined 
in Chapter 2 and 7 of the Arizona WIC Policy and Procedure Manual;   
 

6.5.1.4 Provide participant-centered nutrition education to participants and appropriately 
utilize emotion-based materials  provided by the State; 

 
6.5.1.5 Assist participants in setting goals for behavioral change and follow-up on goals set; 

 
6.5.1.6 Promote breastfeeding to WIC participants and provide breastfeeding education and 

support, and refer to and promote BFPC Program, when appropriate; 
 

6.5.1.7 Prescribe a food package appropriate to the participant's nutritional risk(s) and 
category, and issue food instruments/benefits as set forth in the WIC PPM; 

 
6.5.1.8 Provide program participants with information about available health and social 

services to which the participant could be referred. The participant shall be provided 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

19 

with written information regarding community services and referrals in accordance 
with the WIC PPM and Local Agency referral procedures; 

 
6.5.1.9 Coordinate WIC Services with other health and social services available within the 

service area, including but not limited to immunizations, voter registration, and 
breastfeeding support;  

 
6.5.1.10 Provide information, check for understanding, and document training to participants 

on program rules, regulations, WIC approved foods, food instrument/benefit use and 
redemption including the WIC Cash Value Vouchers (CVV), and if applicable, FMNP 
checks. The training shall be documented in the participant's record as set forth in 
the WIC PPM and/or Arizona Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Policies and 
Procedures  Manual;  

 
6.5.1.11 Distribute information to all participants regarding the authorized WIC vendors and 

the location and hours of ADHS approved Arizona Farmers' Markets; and 
 

6.5.1.12 Explain to all WIC participants that, in addition to FMNP checks, WIC CVVs may be 
used to purchase locally grown fresh fruits and vegetables at FMNP approved 
farmers' markets in Arizona and provide instructions as to how to redeem both types 
of food instruments. 

 
6.6 Additional BFPC Service Delivery Tasks 

 
6.6.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.6.1.1 Accept referrals generated from calls to the ADHS Pregnancy and Breastfeeding 

Hotline into the Peer Counseling Program; 
 

6.6.1.2 Provide peer counseling services. Services shall be made available outside of usual 
clinic hours and outside of the WIC clinic, but may also be available during usual 
clinic hours and in the WIC clinic; and 

 
6.6.1.3 Provide supervision, mentoring, monitoring, and evaluation of peer counselors. 

 
6.7 Additional FMNP Delivery Tasks 

 
6.7.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.7.1.1 Identify eligible participants, offer FMNP checks, and provide services to participants 

in accordance with the Arizona Farmers' Market Nutrition Program Policies and 
Procedures Manual; 
 

6.7.1.2 Issue a unique series of ADHS-provided FMNP check numbers after participant has 
been certified as an eligible WIC participant and has expressed a desire to participate 
in the program, through the Arizona electronic participant record system; 

 
6.7.1.3 Submit a written request to the ADHS FMNP Manager for authorization to utilize a 

Local Agency WIC staff to train and certify local growers at no extra cost to ADHS. 
Grower training shall be conducted only by ADHS authorized individuals. Each 
request to conduct training will be granted on a case-by-case basis, and shall not be 
performed without receipt of prior written approval from the ADHS FMNP Manager; 

 
6.7.1.4 Distribute to participants a brief description of non-allowable and allowable items 

(Participant Guide and other information provided by ADHS) and the time period for 
redeeming FMNP checks and WIC CVV's; 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

20 

6.7.1.5 Notify ADHS within five (5) working days of receipt of any notification of change to the 
date, time or location of an individual Farmers' Market; and 

 
6.7.1.6 If funding for additional FMNP checks becomes available and the contract budget (as 

shown on the Contract Price Sheet) has been fully expended, the Contractor may 
choose whether or not to distribute the additional checks with no increase in the 
Contract budget. 
 

6.8 Participant-Centered Nutrition Education 
 
6.8.1 The Contractor shall:  

 
6.8.1.1 Prepare and submit a two (2) year Nutrition Services Plan for participants to include, 

but not be limited to: 
 
6.8.1.1.1 Adoption and Implementation of ADHS goals for nutrition services. In 

addition, Local Agencies will identify their own goals for nutrition services 
in this plan,  
 

6.8.1.1.2 Adoption and implementation of the State objectives for staff training and 
client interventions related to the goals for nutrition services. In addition, 
Local Agencies are required to provide at least one additional objective 
for each goal, 

 
6.8.1.1.3 Provide and document participant-centered nutrition education to all WIC 

adult participants, and to parents or caretakers of participants according 
to the guidelines of the State Nutrition Services Plans. A minimum of two 
(2) nutrition education contacts in each six (6) month certification period 
shall be made and documented in the participant's record. Breastfeeding 
women, infants and migrants from any eligibility category are certified for 
one (1) year and will receive one (1) nutrition education contact for each 
three (3) month period.  Pregnant women certified through six (6) weeks 
postpartum will receive one (1) nutrition education contact for each three 
(3) month period, 

 
6.8.1.1.4 Provide and document professional supervision, mentoring and 

monitoring of paraprofessional staff at the clinic level on a regular basis, 
as often as necessary, to ensure competence, 

 
6.8.1.1.5 Provide, as often as necessary, high- and medium-risk nutrition 

education/counseling by a Registered Dietitian RD to all participants 
deemed high-risk upon assessment. As defined in the WIC PPM Local 
Agencies may designate a Bachelor's degree nutritionist or Dietetic 
Technician Registered to provide medium-risk counseling to participants 
under the supervision of the RD, 

 
6.8.1.1.6 Expend for nutrition education activities an aggregate amount that is not 

less than the sum of one-sixth (1/6) of the amount the Contractor 
receives for provision of WIC services each contract year. If the one- 
sixth (1/6) amount is not expended for nutrition education activities, the 
Contractor shall return to ADHS an amount equal to the difference 
between the one-sixth (1/6) requirement and the actual amount 
expended. Costs that can be applied to meet the one-sixth (1/6) 
requirement for nutrition education include: 

 
6.8.1.1.6.1 Salary and other costs for time spent on nutrition 

education, whether with an individual or group;  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

21 

 
6.8.1.1.6.2 The cost of procuring and producing nutrition education 

materials; 
 

6.8.1.1.6.3 The cost of training nutrition educators, including costs 
related to conducting training sessions and purchasing and 
producing training materials;  

 
6.8.1.1.6.4 The cost of conducting participant evaluations of nutrition 

education; 
 

6.8.1.1.6.5 The salary and other costs incurred in developing the 
nutrition education plan; and  

 
6.8.1.1.6.6 Other ADHS-approved costs. 

 
6.8.1.2 Coordinate nutrition education activities and messages.  Wherever possible, the 

Contractor shall utilize USDA and/or Arizona Nutrition Network (AZNN) materials and 
messages to ensure common nutrition messages; and  

 
6.8.1.3 Provide documentation that a minimum of four percent (4%) of its annual WIC 

expenditures have been used to support breastfeeding promotion and education, If 
the four percent (4%) is not expended for breastfeeding promotion and education 
activities, the Contractor shall return to ADHS an amount equal to the difference 
between the four percent (4%) and the actual amount expended. 

 
6.9 Staffing 

 
6.9.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.9.1.1 Designate a WIC Program Director/Manager who is an RD, with previous WIC and/or 

community health experience to manage and administer the WIC Program and 
provide high-risk nutrition counseling and/or formula authorization to WIC 
participants.  If an RD is on staff to provide the WIC RD services and with prior 
approval from ADHS, the Local Agency shall designate a Director with a minimum of 
an undergraduate degree from an accredited institution in nutrition (community 
nutrition, public health nutrition, nutrition education, human nutrition or nutrition 
science) or a related field such as home economics or biochemistry with an emphasis 
in nutritional science or public health administration; 
 

6.9.1.2 Identify an RD to serve as the Local Agency Nutrition Coordinator as defined in the 
WIC PPM. The Nutrition Coordinator will oversee all WIC nutrition services for the 
Local Agency.  If the Local Agency has barriers to this staffing standard, the 
Contractor shall submit in writing to ADHS its plan for coordination of nutrition 
services within the Local Agency to be approved by ADHS; 

 
6.9.1.3 Provide an appropriate number of RDs to perform high-risk and medium-risk 

counseling, formula authorization, and as necessary, certification of participants. The 
Contractor shall provide the RD services in a number proportional to the agency's 
high-risk caseload in accordance with the WIC PPM, The Contractor may hire 
nutrition degree graduates or Registered Dietetic Technicians, to do medium-risk 
counseling, formula authorization, and as necessary participant certification under the 
direction of an RD. If a Local Agency has a barrier to having an RD on staff, the 
agency must submit in writing to ADHS with their plan for providing high risk nutrition 
counseling to participants; 

  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

22 

 
6.9.1.4 Provide staff to conduct outreach activities targeting high risk and underserved 

populations by developing written and verbal presentations or utilizing available 
materials to inform the potentially eligible individuals of the availability of WIC 
Program and explain the benefits of participation; 

 
6.9.1.5 Provide an appropriate number of adequately trained, competent, certification 

specialists to provide categorical and financial eligibility screening, pre-certification 
and record required documentation, in accordance with the WIC PPM, as well as 
administrative support services when necessary. Such individuals shall have the 
minimum of a high school degree or equivalent and must complete the state training 
requirements and be certified by the Contractor as competent according to the 
competencies for the position. Previous nutrition or health related job experience is 
desirable. These individuals shall meet individual competencies as set forth in the 
ADHS WIC PPM prior to providing each service such as certifying applicants for 
participation and/or providing health assessments in the Arizona WIC Program Staff 
must be observed and certified by the supervising authority to be competent in an 
activity before being allowed to perform on their own without supervision;  

 
6.9.1.6 Provide an appropriate number of adequately trained, competent, nutrition education 

specialists to provide certification and nutrition education services to participants in 
accordance with the WIC PPM. Such individuals will have the minimum of a high 
school diploma with nutrition experience, education, and training that have been 
certified by local or state agencies to be competent for the position. An Associate or 
Bachelor's degree is highly preferred. These individuals shall meet the competencies 
for Nutrition Education Specialists as set forth in the ADHS WIC PPM prior to 
certifying applicants for participation and/or providing nutrition education in the 
Arizona WIC Program. Staff must be observed and certified by the supervising 
authority to be competent in an activity before being allowed to perform on their own 
without supervision; 

 
6.9.1.7 Identify an International Board Certified Lactation Consultant (IBCLC) to serve as the 

local agency Breastfeeding Coordinator as defined in the WIC PPM. The 
Breastfeeding Coordinator will oversee all WIC breastfeeding services for the local 
agency to ensure all participants have access to breastfeeding promotion and 
support services. If a local agency has barriers to this staffing standard, they must be 
submitted in writing to ADHS with their plan for coordination of breastfeeding services 
within the local agency to be approved by ADHS; 

 
6.9.1.8 Identify a Training Coordinator as defined in the WIC PPM.  The Training Coordinator 

will oversee and facilitate both new employee and ongoing WIC training for the Local 
Agency including certifying that staff has met competencies prior to providing 
services without supervision.  If a Local Agency has barriers to this staffing standard, 
they must submit in writing to ADHS their plan for coordination of training services 
within the Local Agency to be approved by ADHS; 

 
6.9.1.9 Provide WIC Clerks to perform administrative support within WIC clinics at the option 

of the Contractor. Such individuals shall have the minimum of a high school degree 
or equivalent. They must meet WIC Program competencies. Previous clerical or work 
experience is desirable; and  

 
6.9.1.10 Maintain a record of training provided, monitoring, and observation results of staff 

competencies in each staff file and/or the state Learning Management System (LMS). 
 

6.10 Additional BFPC Service Staffing 
 
6.10.1 The Contractor shall: 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

23 

 
6.10.1.1 Employ a BFPC Program Manager to plan, direct and coordinate general operation of 

Peer Counseling Program Ideal candidate will be an International Board Certified 
Lactation Consultant (IBCLC), have WIC experience, and be familiar with community 
resources;  
 

6.10.1.2 Develop a support referral system for peer counselors with community Lactation 
Consultants, including IBCLCs, if the BFPC Program Manager is not an IBCLC or is 
unable to fulfill consultation duties for any reason; and 

 
6.10.1.3 Employ Breastfeeding Peer Counselors to provide services. Qualifications for peer 

counselors shall be previous personal experience with breastfeeding, enthusiasm for 
helping others to succeed at breastfeeding, and similarities with the WIC population 
the program serves (including similar age, ethnic background, and language spoken). 
Exemptions to the peer counselor qualifications must be approved by ADHS before 
hire. When possible, peer counselors should be current or previous WIC participants. 

 
6.11 Staff Training 

 
6.11.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.11.1.1 Implement the Blended Learning ADHS training plan for new staff; 

 
6.11.1.2 Ensure all WIC staff are registered and complete all ADHS required WIC on-line 

courses according to the time requirements set forth by the State through ADHS LMS 
at www.azdhslearn.gov, in accordance with the ADHS WIC PPM; 

 
6.11.1.3 In addition to state requirements for competency trainings, implement and adopt the 

state training standards as reflected in the Nutrition Education Plan and the ADHS 
WIC PPM. In addition, Local Agencies must participate in any mandatory training 
provided by ADHS due to changes in policy, procedures, and / or federal regulations; 

 
6.11.1.4 Provide training for all new staff members regarding Civil Rights and Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) during their orientation and, annually, provide all staff with 
training on Civil Rights and ADA issues by completing the ADHS LMS course on Civil 
Rights or other courses that will be required by ADHS; 

 
6.11.1.5 Provide one (1) representative for a maximum of six (6) mandatory, face-to-face, two 

(2) day meetings or trainings session in Phoenix, as scheduled by ADHS on a yearly 
basis. These meetings will be opportunities for the Local Agency to discuss issues 
with regards to WIC policies and procedures, federal rules and regulations, and 
nutrition standards; and 

 
6.11.1.6 Provide one (1) representative for a maximum of 12 iLinc teleconference meetings to 

receive information updates on WIC operations, policies and procedures, and other 
relevant materials being held in lieu of face to face meetings. 

 
6.12 Additional BFPC Staff Training 

 
6.12.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.12.1.1 Send the WIC Director and the Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Program Manager to a 

two (2) day training at the ADHS office in Phoenix during each Peer Counseling 
Program contract term; 
 

6.12.1.2 Provide training of Breastfeeding Peer Counselors using the Loving Support through 
Peer Counseling curriculum within one (1) month of employment; 

http://www.azdhslearn.gov/


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

24 

 
6.12.1.3 Provide continual education and adequate resources to peer counselors. Continual 

education shall include basic and continuing breastfeeding training, and may include 
opportunities to shadow lactation consultants, opportunities to meet with other peer 
counselors, and related training such as counseling skills, adult learning styles, and 
others; and 

 
6.12.1.4 Provide WIC clinic staff the PowerPoint presentation "Peer Counseling: Making a 

Difference for WIC Families" through the Loving Support curriculum at least once per 
partnering clinic during each Peer Counseling Program contract term. 

 
6.13 Data Collection 

 
6.13.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.13.1.1 Utilize the hardware, software, and training provided by the Arizona WIC Program to 

operate the Contractor's portion of the WIC Computer Data System;  
 

6.13.1.2 Complete all data elements required on the WIC Computer Data System as outlined 
in the WIC PPM; and 

 
6.13.1.3 Ensure WIC Computer Data System users maintain integrity by keeping their 

username and password secure; and 
 

6.13.1.4 Ensure users do not share their login information with others. 
 

6.14 Administrative Services 
 
6.14.1 The Contractor shall: 

 
6.14.1.1 Comply with the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for Contractors of 

ADHS Funded programs; 
 
6.14.1.2 Maintain a formal inventory listing or subsidiary record of all equipment owned by the 

Contractor in an organized manner as an official part of the official accounting 
system;   

 
6.14.1.3 Ensure the capital equipment listing includes the following:  

 
6.14.1.3.1 Tag or ID number, 
  
6.14.1.3.2 Description,  
 
6.14.1.3.3 Purchase cost or fair market value on date of donation,  
 
6.14.1.3.4 Purchase or donation date, 
 
6.14.1.3.5 Location, and 
 
6.14.1.3.6 Disposal date. 

 
6.14.1.4 Provide maintenance and upkeep for all equipment purchased with WIC funds.  

Maintenance may be provided through the Contractor's own organization or the 
Contractor may participate in State maintenance contracts where available; 
 

6.14.1.5 Obtain written permission from ADHS prior to expending WIC funds to purchase 
equipment with a value of $5,000 or more; 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

25 

 
6.14.1.6 Obtain written permission from ADHS prior to expending WIC funds for the purchase 

of any non-disposable automated data processing related item: hardware (e.g. 
computers, printers) or software, regardless of cost as well as their transfer or 
disposal; 

 
6.14.1.7 Obtain specific approval from ADHS prior to the transfer or disposal of any equipment 

purchased with WIC funds exceeding $2,500 if purchased prior to October 1, 2010, 
and $5,000 or more beginning on October 1, 2010; 

 
6.14.1.8 Submit to ADHS for approval any policy or procedure that deviates from those set 

forth in the Arizona WIC PPM; 
 

6.14.1.9 Update the Local Agency information on a timely basis on the www.azwic.gov  
website including but not limited to: 

 
6.14.1.9.1 Names of WIC Directors,  
 
6.14.1.9.2 RDs, 
 
6.14.1.9.3 Nutritionists,  
 
6.14.1.9.4 Clinic staff,  
 
6.14.1.9.5 Clinic names,  
 
6.14.1.9.6 Addresses, 
 
6.14.1.9.7 Phone numbers, 
 
6.14.1.9.8 Days and hours of operations, closure days, and  
 
6.14.1.9.9 Other pertinent information for the public to know. 

 
6.14.1.10 Provide at least a six (6) month written notice when planning on suspending WIC 

services at any location; 
 

6.14.1.11 Read, timely, all ADHS posted documents and provide requested response on the 
ADHS SharePoint site; 

 
6.14.1.12 Ensure the State Agency has its most recent contact information in an effort to 

maintain current and accurate information in the Arizona Health Alert Network 
(AzHAN) account; and 

 
6.14.1.13 Maintain documentation records of WIC services according to the WIC PPM, 

including but not limited to: 
 

6.14.1.13.1 Signed consent forms for anemia screening and anthropometrics, 
  
6.14.1.13.2 Signed Rights and Obligations Form for enrolled participant files 

(active and inactive), 
 
6.14.1.13.3 Eligible participant files (active and inactive), 
 
6.14.1.13.4 Ineligible applicant forms/files, 
 
6.14.1.13.5 Monthly Participation Reports by Category and Ethnicity, 

http://www.azwic.gov/


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

26 

 
6.14.1.13.6 Outreach files, 
 
6.14.1.13.7 Medical documentation, 
 
6.14.1.13.8 Staff files:  

 
6.14.1.13.8.1 Trainings attended; 
 
6.14.1.13.8.2 Skill observations; and  
 
6.14.1.13.8.3 Annual evaluations. 

 
6.14.1.13.9 Documentation of dual participation actions,  

 
6.14.1.13.10 Waiting lists (when applicable), 

 
6.14.1.13.11 Reconciliation of voided food instruments, 

 
6.14.1.13.12 Civil rights file to include documentation and resolution of all civil 

rights complaints, 
 

6.14.1.13.13 Documentation of annual civil rights training of all employees, and  
 

6.14.1.13.14 Documentation of WIC Confidentiality and Conflict of Interest forms. 
 

6.14.1.14 Correct and resolve inappropriate or missing participant information, improbable 
assessment values, duplicate participation, and other quality assurance WIC 
Computer Data System issues identified in the report provided to the Contractor by 
ADHS within the timeframes specified in the WIC PPM; 
 

6.14.1.15 Correct any regulatory deficiency or discrepancy noted during any of the three 
program Management Evaluations, Audits, Local Agency Compliance Investigations 
or Program Financial Reviews within sixty (60) calendar days of the date of the audit 
report unless an extension date is granted by the auditing/reviewing agency and 
documented; 

 
6.14.1.16 Prepare and submit individual electronic and signed paper copies of the Contractor's 

Expenditure Reports (CER) for each contracted program according to the instructions 
and requirements of the WIC PPM; 

 
6.14.1.17 Prepare and submit Final Yearly Closeout CER invoice for each contracted program 

reflecting the cumulative expenditures for a contract year; 
 

6.14.1.18 Prepare and submit a WIC Local Agency Mid-Year and Annual Cost Summary that 
matches the amount in the month of March and Final Yearly Closeout CER invoice 
respectively in accordance with the requirements in the WIC PPM; 

 
6.14.1.19 Prepare and submit an annual update on the Two (2) Year Contractor's Outreach 

Plan and a progress report on activities accomplished during the year; 
 

6.14.1.20 Prepare and submit an annual update on the Two (2) Year Nutrition Education Plan 
and a progress report on activities accomplished during the year; 

 
6.14.1.21 Prepare and submit an annual Amendment Application in accordance with the 

individual program requirements that will include budget breakdown of line items and 
budget justifications of any budget changes; 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

27 

 
6.14.1.22 Prepare and submit a Local Agency Annual Summary of the Local Agency self-

assessment(s). Local Agency self-assessments must be done annually in the year 
that the Local Agency has a Management Evaluation, and semi-annually in the year 
that they do not have a Management Evaluation; and 

 
6.14.1.23 Prepare and submit all required plans and reports in accordance with the 

requirements in the WIC PPM. 
 

6.15 Additional Peer Counseling Administrative Services 
 

6.15.1 The Contractor shall: 
 
6.15.1.1 Prepare and submit a Quarterly Report for the Peer Counseling services in the format 

provided by ADHS; and 
 

6.15.1.2 Present program logistics, highlights, and data at a Nutrition Programs meeting at a 
time and location to be determined by ADHS. 

 
6.16 Additional FMNP Administrative Services 

 
6.16.1 The Contractor shall: 
 

6.16.1.1 Assume liability for the distribution and reconciliation of all FMNP checks, and 
assume financial liability for any checks that cannot be accounted for and reconciled. 
 

7. Reference Documents 
 
7.1 Arizona WIC Program Policies and Procedures Manual: Refer to:  

http://azdhs.gov/azwic/local_agencies_policyManual.htm   
 

7.2 Arizona FMNP Manual: Refer to: 
http://azdhs.gov/azwic/farmers_market.htm  

 
7.3 Federal Regulations: Refer to  

http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-
idx?c=ecfr&sid=a6980ff847aff32ab535bd37f71ce93d&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr246_main_02.tpl   
 

7.4 7 CFR 246.26 (h)(2): notice to applicants and participants about the use and disclosure of confidential 
applicant and participant information, and 

 
7.5 7 CFR 246.26 (h)(3): implementation of a written agreement and state plan to regulate use and 

disclosure of confidential applicant and participant information. 
 

8. State Provided Items 
 
8.1 Paper copies of the Arizona WIC Program and the Arizona FMNP Policies and Procedures Manual, 

upon request.  
 
8.2 Hardware and software necessary for operation of the WIC Computer Database System. 
 
8.3 Learning Management courses for software training and nutrition education courses for staff to 

complete and/or pass. 
 
8.4 Paper WIC and/or FMNP Food Instrument stock or Blank Electronic Benefit Transfer Card when 

implemented. 
 

http://azdhs.gov/azwic/local_agencies_policyManual.htm
http://azdhs.gov/azwic/farmers_market.htm
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=a6980ff847aff32ab535bd37f71ce93d&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr246_main_02.tpl
http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text-idx?c=ecfr&sid=a6980ff847aff32ab535bd37f71ce93d&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title07/7cfr246_main_02.tpl


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

28 

8.5 CER invoice electronic template. The ADHS WIC Program Manager or designee will accept and 
approve the CER prior to payment. 

 
8.6 Nutrition Education Materials for participants. 
 
8.7 Quarterly Report template (electronic) for Peer Counseling Program. 
 
8.8 Technical assistance and support. 
 
8.9 Breastfeeding material lending and library for Peer Counselor use. 
 
8.10 Assistance with International Board Certified Lactation Consultant (IBCLC) career track or advanced 

lactation consultant education, when appropriate. 
 
8.11 Loving Support through Peer Counseling curriculum, which includes the PowerPoint presentation "Peer 

Counseling: Making a Difference for WIC Families," when appropriate. 
 
8.12 FMNP Participant Guides. 
 
8.13 Online, downloadable information regarding the location and hours of approved Arizona Farmers' 

Markets. 
 
8.14 Monitoring of WIC Authorized Vendors and Farmers' Markets for compliance with regulations, and 

coordination with tribal and county officials when doing compliance buys for markets on a reservation. 
 
8.15 Periodic redemption reports for issued checks.  
 
8.16 Formats for required reports. 
 
8.17 Program Integrity staff monitoring reports (monthly). 
 

9. Deliverables 
 
If applicable, any work plan or other documentation submitted to and accepted by ADHS regarding 
participation in WIC, BFPC or FMNP shall be incorporated into this Agreement. Furthermore, any policy or 
procedure that deviates from those set forth in the Arizona WIC Program and / or Arizona Farmers' Market 
Nutrition Program Policies and Procedures Manuals requires approval from ADHS prior to implementation. 
 
9.1 The Contractor shall prepare and submit to ADHS: 

 
9.1.1 Updated copies of Local Agency Policies and Procedures that will include coordination and 

referral procedures with internal and external programs and agencies, i.e. WIC and Peer 
Counseling; 
 

9.1.2 Individual electronic and signed paper copy of the CER invoice, not later than thirty (30) days 
following the end of each report month of the program year; 

 
9.1.3 Final CER invoice for each program not later than forty-five (45) days following the end of each 

Contract year; 
 

9.1.4 WIC Local Agency Annual Cost Summary matching the final WIC Contractor's CER, not later 
than forty-five (45) days following the end of each Contract year; 

 
9.1.5 Each Contracted Program's amendment application by the specified deadline for the following 

contract year which contains the following information: 
 

9.1.5.1 Request for Caseload to be served; 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

29 

 
9.1.5.2 Request for budget and budget justification; 

 
9.1.5.3 Updated Participant Nutrition Education Plan for the following contract year and a 

progress report of the previous year's activities; 
 

9.1.5.4 Updated Outreach Plan of each contract year and a progress report of previous 
year’s activities; and 

 
9.1.5.5 Any additional services. 

 
9.1.6 All required responses to federal and state audits and reviews submitted in a timely manner, 

according to the deadline dates specified in the audit letters. 
 

9.1.7 Additional Peer Counseling Deliverables 
 

9.1.7.1 Quarterly reports for the Peer Counseling Program to be submitted fifteen (15) days after 
each quarter of the Contract year. 
 

10. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS AND AWARDS 
 
10.1 Upon Contract finalization, ADHS shall notify the Contractor by certified mail of the assigned caseload, 

and throughout the term of the Contract, of any changes to the assigned caseload. The Contractor shall 
maintain an average monthly participation level in accordance with the following table: 
 

Caseload Assignment % Maintained 
<10,000 participants/month 97% 

10,000 to <49,999 participants/month 98% 
>50,000 participants/month 99% 

 
10.2 If, after each quarter of the Federal Fiscal Year (October through September), the Contractor has not 

attained the required participation level, ADHS will have the option of reducing the assigned caseload 
and resources to the Contractor's current service level. ADHS may also then move the unused 
caseload and corresponding resources to other WIC Local Agencies in order to fully utilize the 
resources. 
 

10.3 Local Agencies shall be eligible for one (1) or more of the following awards: 
 

10.3.1 Any Local Agency in which ninety percent (90%) or more of the certifications six (6) months 
(October 1 through March 31) have an appropriate TGIF note as verified by the “No notes” and 
“TGIF detail” reports may receive an award of $10,000.00 added to their following fiscal year 
WIC funding formula award if the Contract is extended and additional expenditure can be 
identified; 
 

10.3.2 Any Local Agency which meets 98% of its documentation requirement in nutrition education for 
the previous contract year may receive an award of $5,000 added to that agency's following 
fiscal year WIC funding formula award if the Contract is extended and additional expenditures 
can be identified; 

 
10.3.3 Any Local Agency in which 25% or more of the infant caseload for a six (6) month time period 

(October 1 through March 31) were at least six (6) months old and were IEN at six (6) months 
of age ay receive an award of $10,000 added to the following fiscal year WIC funding formula 
award if the Contract is extended and additional expenditures can be identified; 

 
10.3.4 Pursuant to 7 CFR 246. 14, which allows the WIC program to fund nutrition services and 

administrative expenses, the Performance Awards may be part of the annual funding formula 
and awarded to the Contractor in the next contract year; and  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADHS14-053062 

 

 
 

30 

 
10.3.5 USDA has the option to award breastfeeding performance awards to State Agencies who 

exceed the national average If funds are awarded to Arizona, each Local Agency program will 
receive a proration of the amount based upon the number of exclusively nursing women in their 
Local Agency. It will be a set amount, and may only be used for purposes outlined in the 
current federal guidelines. 

 
11. Notices, Correspondence and Reports 

 
11.1 Notices, Correspondences and Reports from the Contractor to ADHS shall be sent to: 

 
Arizona Department of Health Services 
150 N. 18th Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attention: WIC Program Manager 

 
11.2 Notices, Correspondence and Payments from the ADHS to the Contractor shall be sent to: 

 
 
Contractor:  Gila County Health Services  
 
Attention:  Michael O’Driscoll, Director 

    
Address:  5515 South Apache Avenue, Suite 100 
 
City, State, ZIP: Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
Phone:  (928) 425-3231 
 
Fax:   (928) 425-0794 
 
Email:  modriscoll@co.gila.az.us 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

mailto:modriscoll@co.gila.az.us


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
PRICE SHEET 

ATTACHMENT A ADHS14-053062 
 

 
 

31 

Gila County 
 

PRICE SHEET 
 

October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2014 
 

WIC Services 
 

Account Classification Amount 

Personnel  $150,286.00 
Employee Related Expenses $57,098.00 
Professional & Outside Services $1.00 
Travel Expense $10,594.00 
Occupancy Expenses $1.00 
Other Operating Expenses $13,166.00 
Capital Expenditures $1.00 
Indirect Cost $13,428.00 
Registered Dietitian $24,000.00 
  
Total $268,575.00 

 
 

 
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Services 

 
Account Classification Amount 

Personnel  $22,100.00 
Employee Related Expenses $8,232.00 
Professional & Outside Services $1.00 
Travel Expense $2,774.00 
Occupancy Expenses $1.00 
Other Operating Expenses $2891.00 
Capital Expenditures $1.00 
Indirect Costs $4,000.00 
  
Total $40,000.00 

 
 

 
Farmer’s Market Nutrition Program Services 

 

Type of Service Unit Rate Unit of Measure Estimated Number 
of Participants 

WIC FMNP Check 
Issuance $1.25 WIC Participant AS NEEDED 

 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
PRICE SHEET 

ATTACHMENT A ADHS14-053062 
 

 
 

32 

Additional Terms and Conditions: 
 
With prior written approval from the Program Manager, the Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a 
maximum of ten percent (10%) of the total budget amount between funded line items except for 
Registered Dietitian Expenses. Transfers of funds are only allowed between funded line items.  Transfers 
exceeding ten percent  (10%) or to a non-funded line item shall require an amendment. The Registered 
Dietitian line item is to fund additional Registered Dietitian positions to meet high risk counseling 
requirements.   

 
Authorization for purchase of services under this Contract shall be made only upon ADHS issuance of a 
Purchase Order that is signed by an authorized agent.  The Purchase Order will indicate the Contract 
number and the dollar amount of funds authorized.  The Contractor shall only be authorized to perform 
services up to the amount on the Purchase Order.  ADHS shall not have any legal obligation to pay for 
services in excess of the amount indicated on the Purchase Order.  No further obligation for payment 
shall exist on behalf of ADHS unless a.) the Purchase Order is modified with an official ADHS 
Procurement Change Order, and/or b.) an additional Purchase Order is issued for purchase of services 
under this Contract. 
 
ADHS reserves the right to adjust awards given to local agencies depending on federal dollars received.  
Adjustments will be at the discretion of ADHS.  

 
 Additional WIC Program:   

 
Should additional administrative monies become available through state or federal grants, ADHS may 
increase the purchase order to increase the number of participants served and increase the total of this 
contract.   
 
 
The assigned caseload for FFY 2014 is: 1,250 

 
Additional Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Program: 
 
 Allowable costs for the Peer Counseling Program include compensation for peer counselors and 
designated peer counselor managers/coordinators, and related costs such as training and training 
materials; telephone expenses for participant contacts (including pager, cell phones and answering 
machines); travel for training and home and hospital visits; recruitment of peer counseling staff; and the 
purchase of demonstration materials (e.g., breast pumps for demonstration purposes, videos).  Out of 
state travel must be pre-approved by ADHS. Items and materials for distribution to WIC participants (e.g. 
breast pumps, breastfeeding aids, written materials) are not allowable costs. 
 
Farmer’s Market Nutrition Program: 
 
If funding for additional FMNP checks becomes available and the contract budget (as shown on the 
Contract Price Sheet) has been fully expended, Contractor may choose whether or not to distribute the 
additional checks with no increase in the contract budget. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2116     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013
thru June 30,
2014

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2014 Economic Grant Agreement in the sum of $10,000 for Time Out Emergency
and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter services in Payson.

Background Information
Programs and Services 
On January 22, 2013, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved an Economic
Development Grant in the sum of $10,000 for FY 2012-2013, for Time Out, Inc., an
Emergency and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter program. 

The continued support of Gila County is critical to the success of the Time Out, Inc.
programs. This request for fiscal year 2013-2014 is in the amount of $20,000. 

While based in Payson, Time Out provides emergency shelter, transitional housing,
and community programs to all of Gila County, and includes the Gila River Indian
Reservation. As the only comprehensive domestic violence program in Gila County,
one of the goals of Time Out is to help victims become "thrivers". Among the many
accomplishments of the Time Out program, these are just a few that have occurred
during the year:  1,700 calls to the 24-hour hotline have been answered; over 9,900
shelter bed nights have been provided, which is an increase of 62% over the previous
year; 19 women have been helped to gain full-time employment; 8 male victims of
domestic violence have been provided assistance; 1 Pell grant was awarded; and 12
women and families have been moved to "permanent" safe housing. 

Time Out offers comprehensive domestic violence services detailed below.

Crisis Intervention
Our crisis line is accessible 24 hours per day. Call 928-472-8007. Hotline operators
are bilingual (English/Spanish) and V/TTY is always available. The V/TTY designation
indicates that the hotline can be called with both an ordinary telephone and a teletype
device (TTY), so it is accessible to people with speech and hearing disabilities. 



Residential Programs
• Emergency shelter for women and their children. Includes basic essentials and a
broad range of supportive services.
• Transitional housing for families leaving the emergency shelter.
• Help with locating affordable housing. For more information or to seek help, email or
call: 928-472-8007.

Invidual and Family Strengthening
• Advocacy
• Safety planning
• Community resource information and linkages
• Health and wellness focus
• Parenting classes
• Case management 

Economic Independence Support
• Life skills workshops
• Linkages to literacy, education and training programs
• Career planning and job search skills workshops
• Job search assistance
• Emergency financial assistance, as available
• Financial literacy training 

Support for Healing
• Therapy including treatment for Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder
• Individual and family counseling
• Domestic violence support groups 

Services for Children
• Support groups
• Structured after school activities
• Community projects
• Healing garden 

Lay Legal Advocacy
• Assistance with protective orders, court accompaniment, translation services
• Victim Compensation claim assistance
• Transportation to court
• Help with obtaining police reports, records, bills, etc.
• Help with certain expenses in relation to court appearances
• Notification of court proceedings 

To access our Lay Legal Advocate, email or call: 928-472-8007
 
Strengthening the Community Response
• Domestic violence awareness and prevention workshops
• Training for community and public sector organizations
• Annual Walk to End Domestic Violence

Evaluation



The continued support of Gila County is critical to the success of the Time Out
Emergency and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter.

Conclusion
The County has a limited amount in the Community Agency and Economic
Development Funds in the adopted 2013-2014 Budget. While the Time Out
Emergency and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter is in need of the County's
support and has requested $20,000, it may be more appropriate to approve funding in
the amount of $10,000. The Board should determine that the funds are to benefit the
public and improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Economic Grant in the
sum of $10,000 for Time Out Emergency and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter
services in Payson.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and Time Out, Inc. in Payson whereby
the County will provide an economic development grant to Time Out, Inc, in a not to
exceed amount of $10,000 to assist in providing services for the period July 1, 2013,
through June 30, 2014; and further, the Board determines this is for the benefit of
the public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila
County.  

Attachments
Annual Fact Sheet 
Fact Sheet with Charts 
Time Out Agreement for FY 2013-2014
Time Out Agreement for FY 2012-2013
Legal Explanation



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

MISSION: To help individuals break the cycle of domestic violence  
  

OUR PROGRAMS: 

 Improve Safety & Well-being with a 24/7 Crisis Hotline, Emergency Shelter, 

                                                                    Safety Planning, Crisis Intervention 

             Increase Healing through trauma counseling, access to health care, substance 

                                       abuse education 

 Strengthen the Family by providing parenting education, children’s groups, 

Mother/Child Healing Garden, access to community               

based services   

 Ensure Justice with Lay Legal Advocacy, Court accompaniment, Victim Compensation 

       Benefits 

 Build Economic Stability with education assistance, employment readiness training, 

                   career advancement workshops, job search assistance, 

                   financial literacy education, transitional housing 

WHO WE SERVED IN 2012-2013: 

 Women & Children came from 9 AZ counties, 4 Native American Reservations & 3 states 

 9903 bed nights of safe shelter were provided 

 1700+ crises call answered 

 2,092 hrs. of individual counseling were provided 

 20 transitional housing residents (3765 Transitional Shelter bed nights) 

 Assisted 200 clients with Lay legal Advocacy (including 8 men) 

 19 women gained regular employment; 1 received a Pell Education Grant 

Our 12 full and 12 part time staff were supported through 849 volunteer hours at the shelter 

 

The Time Out Thrift Store provides opportunities for volunteerism, job related skills training and 

material and financial resources for our Programs. 7,779 volunteer hours were given and it was voted 

Payson Round-up best Thrift Store 2013. 

“I am so glad to have the opportunity to volunteer at the thrift shop. It is so satisfying & I am 

learning a lot.”  A Time Out Resident 

 

    TIME OUT  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Suzanne Yale, President Kim Chittick  Nancy Shelton  Finance Committee: 

Cathy Boone, Secretary Roscoe Dabney III Patricia Steely  Debra Daniels CPA 

Garry Smith, Treasurer Donna Lahti  Chris Walsh  Kevin Dick 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P O  B O X  3 0 6 ,   P A Y S O N ,   A Z   8 5 5 4 7  •  T  9 2 8 . 4 7 2 . 8 0 0 7  •  F  9 2 8 . 4 7 2 . 8 7 4 7  

                                         executivedirector@timeoutshelter.org  •  www.timeoutshelter.org            #86-0723051 

mailto:executivedirector@timeoutshelter.org
http://www.timeoutshelter.org/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

       
MISSION:  To help individuals break the cycle of domestic violence. 

It takes a community working together to accomplish our mission!  One out of every three women is a victim, and no 

one really knows how many men. 

“You guys are amazing and super nice I don’t feel I am in a shelter, I feel like I am in a home.”  Time Out Teen 

resident 

THANK YOU TO OUR COMMUNITY FOR SUPPORTING OUR PROGRAMS! 

Our donors are listed on our website: www.timeoutshelter.org 

Special thanks go to those work groups who “spruced up” the shelter & grounds this year: 

Habitat for Humanity Bike & Build  Payson United Methodist Church 

The Payson Landscapers Team   Vista De La Montana Methodist Church Youth 

 

Spreading the messages of service and help in the community, Time Out provided information at: 

APS Lobby display during October  Community School Health Fair 

National Night Out    Rodeo Parade 

Payson High Wellness Fair   Resurrection Saturday Celebration 

Rim Country Chamber Showcase  The Lighted forest at Swiss Village 

The Mobile Mexican Consulate Van  And numerous group, church and club presentations! 

 

    
            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.4% 

14.6% 

37% 

26% 

14% 

2.3% 1% 

Revenue 

Private Grants

Community

Gov't. Grants

In-kind

Shop Sales

Events (F.R.)

Misc. (Int. & Rents)

      Unaudited #'s 

99% 

-1% -1% 

Expenses 

Programs Admin Fund Raising

 
P O  B O X  3 0 6 ,   P A Y S O N ,   A Z   8 5 5 4 7  •  T  9 2 8 . 4 7 2 . 8 0 0 7  •  F  9 2 8 . 4 7 2 . 8 7 4 7  

executivedirector@timeoutshelter.org  •  www.timeoutshelter.org     86-0723051 
 
 
 
 
         

http://www.timeoutshelter.org/
mailto:executivedirector@timeoutshelter.org
http://www.timeoutshelter.org/














 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2117     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation Special Event License Application
for November 1, 2013.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the DLLC's process
requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the application and has
determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization has properly completed the application and if the Board
of Supervisors and the DLLC approve the application, the Cobre Valley Regional
Medical Center Foundation will have used 1 day of the allowable 10 days to serve
liquor at a special event in 2013.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application.  Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to submit the
application to the DLLC for final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Cobre Valley
Regional Medical Center Foundation to serve liquor at a fund raising event that will
be held at the Gila County Fairgrounds on November 1, 2013.

Attachments
Special Event Application CVRMC











   

ARF-2070     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 9/3/13, 9/10/13,
9/17/13, and 9/24/13.

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Assistant, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of September 3, 2013, September 10, 2013,
September 17, 2013, and September 24, 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of September 3, 2013,
September 10, 2013, September 17, 2013, and September 24, 2013.

Attachments
September Human Resources Summary Report
09/03/13 Human Resources Report
09-10-13 Human Resources Report
09/17/13 Human Resources Report
09/24/13 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐13 Feb‐13 Mar‐13 Apr‐13 May‐13 Jun‐13 Jul‐13 Aug‐13 Sep‐13 Oct‐13 Nov‐13 Dec‐13

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE 124 17 8 12 17 17 15 12 17 9

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 87 6 10 7 15 7 15 12 6 9
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 20 1 0 2 9 4 0 2 2 0

VOLUNTEERS TO COUNTY SERVICE 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 64 3 9 7 7 5 7 16 8 2

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 95 7 18 10 11 12 6 9 9 13

OTHER ACTIONS 61 23 1 4 6 4 5 14 1 3

REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST 107 10 11 8 17 9 14 12 15 11

  Total Transactions 562 67 57 50 82 58 66 77 58 47 0 0 0



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Cristina Carlson – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant Senior – 08/30/13 – 
Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services – DOH 07/08/13 – Resignation 

2. Elizabeth Mata – Elections – Administrative Clerk – 09/03/13 – General Fund – DOH 01/04/10 – 
Resignation  

3. Herman Tijerina – Court Information Systems – IT Administrator and Support Specialist – 08/23/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 05/07/12 – Resignation 

4. Matthew Cruz – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/26/13 – General Fund – DOH 
06/10/13 – End of temporary employment 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

5. Leann Tucker – Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – 09/09/13 – General Fund – Replacing Sylvia 
Martinez 

6. Alice Kinney – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 09/09/13 – General Fund – Replacing Clint 
Lyman 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing Analyst – 09/25/13 – General Fund 
8. Debra Tapia-Blair – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 09/13/13 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Clifton Mitchell – Public Works – From Automotive Mechanic – To Solid Waste Operations Worker 
Senior – 09/09/13 – From Public Works Fund – To Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – 
Replacing Kenneth Payne Jr. 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – Position vacated by Sophia Hill 
11. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant Senior – Position vacated by Cristina 

Carlson 
12. Elections – Administrative Clerk – Position vacated by Elizabeth Mata 
13. Court Information Systems – IT Administrator and Support Specialist – Position vacated by Herman 

Tijerina 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
SEPTEMBER 10, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Richard Claydon – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/29/13 – General Fund – DOH 11/07/11 – 
Resignation  

2. Dennis Dueker – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 09/12/13 –  Public 
Works Fund -  DOH 01/28/13 - Resignation 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Denise Doney – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/30/13 – General Fund – Replacing Stacey 
Bryant 

4. Ashley Dammen – County Attorney – Deputy Attorney (underfill) – 09/16/13 – Diversion Program CA 
Fund – Replacing Joshua Clark 

5. Arlene Ramirez – Superior Court Administration – Calendar Administrator 09/16/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Susan Williams 

6. Lisa Pferdeort – Superior Court – Bailiff/Law Clerk – 09/03/13 – General Fund – Replacing Jonathan 
Manley 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Lauren Savaglio – Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health Manager – 09/14/13 – 
Health Service Fund(.22)/Prop 201 Smoke Free AZ Act(.78) Funds 

8. Jeff Taylor – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 09/25/13 – Public Works 
Fund 

9. Kristine Feezor – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/30/13 – General Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Jonathan Manley – Superior Court – Bailiff/Law Clerk – 08/29/13 – General Fund – Replacing Timoteo 
Campos 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Joseph Williams – Assessor’s Office – Appraiser II – 09/01/13 – General Fund – Completed Appraiser 
II Training with Arizona Department of Revenue 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

12. Sheriff’s Office – Undersheriff – Position vacated by John A. Shepherd 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Jesse McGill – Public Works – Engineering Technician Senior(.48) – 09/20/13 – General Fund – DOH 
03/16/05 – Termination  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

2. Laurie Kline – Board of Supervisors – Deputy Clerk of the Board – 09/12/13 – General Fund 
3. Jacob Martin – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/20/13 – General Fund 
4. John Scott – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker  - 10/02/13 – Public Works Fund 
5. Rodney Cronk – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sergeant – 08/13/13 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

6. William Newman – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff Sergeant – 09/23/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Michael Fane 

7. Stacie Allison – Finance – From Accountant – To Accountant Senior – 09/23/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Amanda Roady 

8. Christopher Heath – Public Works – From Automotive Service Worker – To Automotive Mechanic – 
09/23/13 – From Public Works Fund – To Fleet Management Fund – Replacing Nathaneal Cutter 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

9. Gary Scales – Superior Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 07/01/13 – From General(.75)/Payson Court 
Commissioner(.25) Funds – To General Fund – Change in fund codes 

10. Athena Gooding – County Attorney – Legal Secretary Lead – 09/09/13 – General Fund – Temporary 
reduction in hours worked 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

11. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – Position vacated by Frank Zupancic 
12. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – Position vacated by Dennis Dueker 
13. Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Position vacated by Clifton Mitchell 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
SEPTEMBER 24, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Christopher Mathews – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 09/27/13 – Facilities Management Fund – 
DOH 02/14/13 – Resignation 

2. Angela Harte – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 09/16/13 – General Fund – DOH 
07/15/13 - Resignation 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Vanessa Carter – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – 09/30/13 – Rabies Control 
Fund – Replacing Samantha Dickison 

4. Jim Stiles – Health and Emergency Services -  Worksite Wellness Coordinator – 09/30/13 – Population 
Health Policy Initiative Fund – Replacing Joshua Beck 

5. Steven McGill – Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing Analyst – 09/30/13 – General 
Fund – Replacing Celena Cates  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

6. Allison Torres – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 09/07/13 –Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

7. Jennifer Rich – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 09/27/13 – General Fund 
8. Dora Salazar – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 09/27/13 – General Fund 
9. Jennifer Alvarez – Finance – Procurement Administrator – 10/01/13 – General Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – Position vacated by Christopher Heath 
11. Public Works – Custodian(.85) – Position vacated by Christopher Mathews 
12. Finance – Accountant – Position vacated by Stacie Allison 

 
 



   

ARF-2101       4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for August 2013

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle
Keegan,
Administrative
Clerk Senior,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for August 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the August 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for August 2013













































   

ARF-2106       4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Reports for July 2013 and
August 2013

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,
Constable
Clerk,
Constable -
Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Reports for July 2013 and August 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2013 and August 2013 monthly activity reports
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
GLobe Regional Contsbles's Office Monthly Reports for July 2013
Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Report for August 2013





















































   

ARF-2107     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Reports for
February 2012, March 2012, and August 2013

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations
Mgr, Superior Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Reports for February 2012,
March 2012, and August 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2012, March 2012, and August 2013
monthly activity reports submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court Report 02-12
Globe Regional Justice Court Report 03-12
Globe Regional Justice Court Report 08-13





















   

ARF-2121     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Clerk of Superior Court 's Report for the month of August 2013

Submitted For: Anita
Escobedo

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the
Superior Court, Clerk of the Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for August 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the August 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk of
the Superior Court's Office

Attachments
Clerk of Superior Court 's Report for the month of August 2013



















   

ARF-2118     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

September 2013

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
September 3, 2013, Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes and September 3, 2013,
Board of Equalization Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the September 3, 2013, Board of Supervisors meeting minutes and the
September 3, 2013, Board of Equalization meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 09-03-13 Meeting Minutes
BOE 09-03-13 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  September 3, 2013 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager; 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Jacque Griffin, Assistant 
County Manager/Librarian; Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and  
Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Lieutenant Michael 
Johnson led the Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Rich Richie of the First Church 
of the Nazarene in Payson delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Public recognition of five employees for August's "Spotlight on 
Employees" Program, as follows: Nyra Hillery, Wes Wilson, Alex  
Cunningham, Bianca DalMolin and Ronald Escobedo.   
 

 Erica Raymond, Human Resources Department Assistant Senior, read aloud a 
letter submitted by Vice-Chairman Martin nominating Nyra Hillery of the 
Public Works Division for this award.  Additional nominations were submitted 
by Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager, to include Wes Wilson 
and Alex Cunningham also of the Public Works Division, and Bianca Dalmolin 
and Ronald Escobedo from the Sheriff’s Office.  The award recipients were not 
present at the meeting to accept their awards.  

  
 Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 

Page 1 of 13 
 



Agreement between Gila County and the Gila County Community College 
District to provide $250,000 in four quarterly payments for utility 
expenses and repair and maintenance of the College's facilities and real 
property at its three Globe and Payson campuses commencing July 1, 
2013, and ending June 30, 2014.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that for the past several years Gila 
County has provided financial assistance to the Gila County Community 
College District.  The County will provide the College with maintenance and 
utility expense assistance in four quarterly payments, and the College will 
continue to provide citizens of the Gila County Community the education and 
skills necessary to be successful in entering the job market.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County 
and the Gila County Community College District to provide $250,000 in four 
quarterly payments for utility expenses and repair and maintenance of the 
College's facilities and real property at its three Globe and Payson campuses 
commencing July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2014.  
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve, and authorize the 
Chairman to sign, the purchase documents with Spillman Technologies 
for the purchase and installation of an IBM rack-mounted server in the 
amount of $48,828 and a Sentryx Geobase Module which includes on-site 
training and Spillman Pin Mapping in the amount of $60,665, all of which 
are budgeted items in the FY 2013/2014 Sheriff's Office.   
 
Sarah White, Sheriff’s Office Chief Administrative Officer, explained that the 
maintenance agreement for the IBM server expired June 2013, and that the 
backup portion of the IBM server failed in the same month, consequently, 
manual backups are performed daily.  Due to the age of the server equipment, 
IBM will no longer continue the maintenance agreement with the County.  The 
server contains the Spillman Technologies Software which executes the 
essential functions of every aspect of the Sheriff’s Office operations including 
record keeping for the Sheriff’s Office as well as keeping records for the 
residents of Gila County.   
 
The second part of the request before the Board is to purchase the Sentryx 
Geobase mapping module in order to expeditiously and accurately dispatch 
Sheriff’s deputies in response to 911 calls by pinpointing the exact location of 
the call.  Chairman Pastor inquired as to whether or not it works together with 
the software currently being implemented, to which Ms. White stated that the 
Spillman Technologies Software and the Environmental Systems Research 
Institute, (esri) geographic information systems mapping software programs 
that the County recently purchased do interface together.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin inquired whether this purchase would include the constable 
component, to which Ms. White explained that there is a civil module that is 

Page 2 of 13 
 



separate and could be added later, but that it is not a part of the conversation 
today.  Supervisor Marcanti expressed a concern that the initial contract price 
and equipment may not be sufficient and that additional equipment and/or 
software may be required in the near future.  Ms. White replied that today’s 
request is adequate to accommodate and perform the 911 dispatch service 
requirements.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved and authorized 
the Chairman to sign the purchase documents with Spillman Technologies for 
the purchase and installation of an IBM rack-mounted server in the amount of 
$48,828 and a Sentryx Geobase Module which includes on-site training and 
Spillman Pin Mapping in the amount of $60,665, all of which are budgeted 
items in the FY 2013/2014 Sheriff's Office.  
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the final distribution of 
$149,903 of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds 
(SRSC - 'Forest Fees') for FY 2012-2013, namely $144,903 to Gila County 
School Districts, and $5,000 for Roads.   
 
Dr. Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent, (via ITV in Payson) stated that this 
item was approved by the Board on April 16, 2013, with 10 percent held on 
deposit in the event the County had to return funds to the federal government 
due to sequestration.  She asked the Board to approve the final distribution of 
Forest Fees as September is the end of Federal Fiscal Year 2012 and the 
County is not required to return any funds to the federal government.   The 
proposed distributions are as follows:  $5,000 of Forest Fees goes to County 
roads and the remaining $144,903 is allocated to the school districts which is 
the 10 percent of funds on deposit.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired whether the 
$5,000 had been allocated to a roads project to which Don McDaniel, County 
Manager, stated that it is budgeted but not allocated.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that Jeff Baer, Director of Education Programs, indicated 
that it was necessary to shut down and restart the computer system in the 
hearing room because of technical difficulties; therefore, a short recess was 
taken.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved the final distribution of $149,903 
of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC - 'Forest 
Fees') for FY 2012-2013, namely $144,903 to Gila County School Districts, and 
$5,000 for Roads. 
 
D.  Information/Action/Discussion to approve expenditure with Empire 
CAT in the amount of $19,630.50 to replace the wheel tips on the 816F 
compactor in service at the Buckhead Mesa Landfill.  
 
Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager, explained that the County 
has been working with the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance 
(IPA) Company, the Finance Department, and Austin Jones, Public Works 

Page 3 of 13 
 



Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor, to reduce the cost by 50% to 
keep the 816F compactor in operation for several more years, and she asked 
that the Board approve this expenditure.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved the expenditure with Empire CAT in the amount of $19,630.50 to 
replace the wheel tips on the 816F compactor in service at the Buckhead Mesa 
Landfill. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Vending Services Grantor 
Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-051775) with the Arizona Department 
of Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/Business 
Enterprise Program (BEP) to utilize the services provided by BEP, to 
arrange for an automated snack vending machine on the 2nd floor, main 
lobby of the Gila County Courthouse that will be installed and serviced by 
a BEP Operator.  Said Agreement will expire on August 31, 2028.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director, stated that the public comes to the Gila 
County Courthouse and often times are required to stay for extended periods of 
time.  Requests have been made by the public for the County to install snack 
vending machines in the Courthouse.  He stated that a snack machine would 
provide a service to the public as well as to Gila County employees.  By 
entering into this agreement it would help support a noteworthy program.  The 
program is administered by the Department of Economic Security (DES) 
Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) specifically the Business 
Enterprise Program (BEP).  The BEP licenses individuals who are legally blind 
to operate food services businesses and service the vending machines.  The 
County would be satisfying the request from the public as well as being aligned 
with Arizona Revised Statute §23-504, which states in part that BEP Operators 
have priority for merchandising business of state, county or other local 
government property.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired whether the term of 15 years for this contract was 
standard, to which Mr. Hessenius replied that it is in fact a standard 
agreement.  Mr. McDaniel interjected that the contract does includes a 30-day 
cancellation clause that can be executed by either party.  Supervisor Marcanti 
inquired if there will be adequate signage to let citizens know the machines are 
there.  Mr. Hessenius stated that he would defer to Public Works to install a 
sign indicating that there are vending machines.  Chairman Pastor verbalized 
that there is adequate space to house the new vending machine in the lobby 
area of the 2nd floor of the Courthouse.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved a Vending 
Services Grantor Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-051775) with the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/ 
Business Enterprise Program (BEP) to utilize the services provided by BEP, to 
arrange for an automated snack vending machine on the 2nd floor, main lobby 

Page 4 of 13 
 



of the Gila County Courthouse that will be installed and serviced by a BEP 
Operator.  Said Agreement will expire on August 31, 2028.  Chairman Pastor 
then stated for the audience that Jeff Hessenius is the new Finance Director for 
Gila County.   
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-01 for 
the roadway exchange of that property referenced in said resolution 
regarding Deer Farm Road, and to authorize the Chairman's signature on 
the Quit Claim Deed with Gary C. Landers.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, explained that a recent 
survey by Mr. Gary C. Landers revealed that the existing Deer Farm Road was 
not within the dedicated easement.  In order to save the County money it was 
decided to leave the road in its current location rather than move the road and 
to propose a land exchange with the property owner, Gary C. Landers.  
Included in this item is Resolution 13-09-01 which will accomplish this 
roadway exchange.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 13-09-01 for 
the roadway exchange of that property referenced in said resolution regarding 
Deer Farm Road, and to authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim 
Deed with Gary C. Landers.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-02 
accepting Russell Road as described in Fee No. 2013-007562, Gila County 
Records, as a public road and to be maintained as a public roadway in the 
Gila County Maintained Roadway System.  
 
Mr. Sanders provided some background information regarding Russell Road 
and explained that it is located south of Globe in the Little Acres area and it 
provides access to the Pinal Mountains and connects with Kellner Canyon 
Road.  He further stated that if this portion of road, as described above, is 
accepted into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System it would provide for 
an alternate access route to residents living on either Ice House Canyon Road 
or Six Shooter Canyon Road.  A recent survey of Russell Road uncovered 
approximately 2,200 feet of the road to cross private land.  The owner of the 
property is unable to produce evidence that it is a dedicated road; therefore, he 
agrees with the County that it is in the best interest of all parties to dedicate an 
easement for the roadway to the County and that this portion of road be 
accepted and maintained as a public roadway in the Gila County Maintained 
Roadway System.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that he would like to meet with Mr. Sanders to ask a 
question after the meeting today.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution 
No. 13-09-02 accepting Russell Road as described in Fee No. 2013-007562, 

Page 5 of 13 
 



Gila County Records, as a public road and to be maintained as a public 
roadway in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve two letters addressed to 
the Director of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS):  (1) requesting 
immediate action to grant an extension to the various comment periods 
involved in the gray wolf delisting, the relisting of the Mexican wolf, the 
revision of the nonessential, experimental revised rules, and the proposed 
draft Environmental Impact Statement on the revision to the Mexican 
wolf nonessential experimental population rule; and (2) expressing grave 
concerns with regard to the processes that have been followed by the 
USFWS related to the entire Mexican Wolf Initiative.  
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, provided background 
information and explained that the first letter to the Director of the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS) requests immediate action to restructure and 
extend, for a minimum of 90 days, the public comment periods for these issues 
to provide the public with adequate time, opportunity and information to 
appropriately evaluate the issues and fully understand the possible 
implications and impacts.  The first letter also addresses great concerns about 
pending USFWS proposals to delist gray wolves, relist the Mexican wolf, and 
revise the rule establishing the Mexican wolf in Arizona-New Mexico as a 
nonessential experimental population and to draft an Environmental Impact 
Statement on the proposed revision to the Mexican wolf nonessential 
experimental population rule.  Ms. Griffin also stated that the second letter 
addresses the concern that the USFWS has held no procedural public meetings 
on these issues in the southwest since 2007 and the collected data has 
changed significantly since then; therefore, the information is not “fresh” as 
intended by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and is inconsistent 
with Service Policy on compliance with NEPA as described in the USFWS policy 
manual.  It was respectfully requested in both letters that the Director consider 
the letters and give a timely, substantive response by September 9, 2013. 
 
Ms. Griffin advised that it is in the best interest of the County for the Board of 
Supervisors to submit these two letters to ensure that the County has ample 
time to respond and be involved in these processes.  She plans to file the letters 
within the allotted comment period in the event that the comment period is not 
extended as a result of sending the letters.  The Board members thanked Ms. 
Griffin for the information.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved two letters addressed 
to the Director of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS):  (1) requesting 
immediate action to grant an extension to the various comment periods 
involved in the gray wolf delisting, the relisting of the Mexican wolf, the revision 
of the nonessential, experimental revised rules, and the proposed draft 
Environmental Impact Statement on the revision to the Mexican wolf 

Page 6 of 13 
 



nonessential experimental population rule; and (2) expressing grave concerns 
with regard to the processes that have been followed by the USFWS related to 
the entire Mexican Wolf Initiative. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Policy No. BOS-COB-004-Call 
to the Public, which replaces Policy No. BOS-1-2009-Call to the Public to 
reflect a change in the format and number of the policy and a statutory 
reference.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that this is truly a “housekeeping” item to change the 
format of a current policy that was adopted in 2009, “Call to the Public,” to be 
consistent with the new Countywide policy format and numbering system, and 
to change the statutory reference in the policy from paragraph “G” to 
paragraph “H.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Policy No. BOS-COB-
004-Call to the Public, which replaces Policy No. BOS-1-2009-Call to the Public 
to reflect a change in the format and number of the policy and a statutory 
reference. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of a revision to Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-
03, which is a listing of tax levies and tax rates for all primary and 
secondary taxing districts in Gila County, Arizona.  (The total tax rate for 
Young Elementary School District No. 5 was reduced from $6.3743 to 
$6.2008 per A.R.S. § 42-17151.)  
 
B.  Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-
015 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES) and the 
Gila County Division of Community Services, Gila Employment and 
Special Training, whereby Section 5-DES Special Terms and Conditions 
was replaced with Section 5-Background Checks for Employment through 
the Central Registry, effective on the date of last signature through June 
30, 2016.  
 
C.  Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to 
Contract No. DE111093-001 between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security (DES) and the Gila County Division of Community 
Services, Gila Employment and Special Training Program, whereby 
Amendment No. 3 replaces Section 20.0-DES Special Terms and 
Conditions with Section 20.0-Background Checks for Employment 
through the Central Registry, and Amendment No. 4 amends Section 

Page 7 of 13 
 



39.0-Confidentiality.  Both amendments become effective on the date of 
last signature through September 30, 2015.  
 
D.  Approval of Amendment No. 9 to Agreement No. 700518523 (Energy 
Wise Low Income Weatherization Program) between Arizona Public Service 
(APS) and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community 
Action Program, whereby APS will provide funding in an amount not to 
exceed $141,429 for the repairs, reconditioning, replacement or 
restoration of deficiencies in a customer's qualified home in order to 
make such homes energy efficient (Weatherization Services), to eligible 
citizens residing in Gila County for the period January 1, 2013, through 
December 31, 2013.  
 
E.  Adoption of an Amended Order to Call a Special Recall Election to be 
held on November 5, 2013, for the purpose of recalling Pleasant Valley 
Fire District Board Member David Braswell in order to change the location 
of the replacement site from the Young Public Library to the Pleasant 
Valley Community Center.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Lee Wright from the Beaver 
Valley Fire District and the appointment of Sarah McAnerny to fulfill Mr. 
Wright's unexpired term of office ending on December 31, 2016.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Joe Stapleton from the Tri-
City Fire District and the appointment of John H. Chism to fulfill Mr. 
Stapleton's unexpired term of office ending on December 31, 2014.  
 
H.  Approval of the appointment of the following precinct committee 
persons as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee: Payson 
#5-Thomas E. Christy, and Payson #5-Anita Louise Christy.  
 
I.  Approval of three Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted 
by the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor on September 19, 
2013, September 20, 2013, and September 21, 2013, at the Gila County 
Fairgrounds during the Gila County Fair.   
 
J.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Arizona State Parks Foundation to serve liquor during a fund-raiser event 
for Friends of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park, an affiliate of Arizona 
State Parks Foundation, on October 19, 2013, for the benefit of Arizona 
State Parks Foundation.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 

Page 8 of 13 
 



L.  Acknowledgement of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
M. Approval of the July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, 
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
N.  Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 
6, 2013, August 13, 2013, August 20, 2013, and August 27, 2013.  
 
AUGUST 6, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Stephanie Hawk – Community Services – WEX Participant – 07/19/13 –
Workforce Investment Act Fund – DOH 03/18/13 – End of temporary 
employment 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
2.  Daniel Mikolay – Finance – Accountant Senior – 08/26/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Amanda Roady 
3.  Khadija Taaka-Patch – Health and Emergency Services – Communicable 
Disease Specialist – 08/19/13 – Replacing Betty Vanta 
4.  Leitha Griffin – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 08/12/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Charlotte Williams 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Sabil Fitzhugh – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 08/11/13 – General Fund 
6.  Melissa Greenhagen – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 08/11/13 – General Fund 
7.  Patricia Keyworth – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/06/13 – 
Court Appointed Special Advocate (.50)/Court Improvement Project (.50) Funds 
8.  David Luhm – Information Technology – IT Administrator and Support 
Senior – 07/29/13 – General Fund 
9.  Brian Martin – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/13/13 – General 
Fund  
10.  Christopher Mathews – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 08/14/13 – 
Facilities Management Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
11.  Dave Rogers – From Elections – To Information Technology – From 
Elections Specialist – To Systems and Network Communications Analyst – 
08/12/13 – General Fund – Replacing Kelly Riggs 
12.  Lisa Wilckens – Finance – From Payroll Specialist – To Management 
Analyst – 08/12/13 – General Fund  
REQUEST TO POST: 
13.  Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – Position vacated 
by Kenneth Payne Jr. 
14.  Elections – Elections Specialist – Position vacated by Dave Rogers 
 
AUGUST 13, 2013 

Page 9 of 13 
 



DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Cynthia Claydon – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/11/13 General 
Fund – DOH 11/22/10 – Resignation 
2.  Dennis Foil – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/05/13 – General Fund 
– DOH 08/05/13 – Declined position 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
3.  John Park – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/19/13 – State Aid 
Enhancement Fund – Replacing David Jones 
4.  Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 08/19/13 – State 
Aid Enhancement Fund – Replacing Gretchen Spier 
5.  Rachel Saleh – Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health 
Specialist Senior – 08/19/13 – Health Service Fund – Replacing Joe Kline 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Amber Warden – Sheriff’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Specialist – To 
Executive Administrative Assistant – 08/12/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Nancy Neumann 
7.  Gretchen Spier – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/19/13 – From 
State Aid Enhancement Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision – 
Replacing Jaime Romero 
8.  Sylvia Martinez – Finance – From Accounting Clerk Senior – To Payroll 
Specialist – 08/26/13 – General Fund – Replacing Lisa Wilckens 
9.  Lisa Modglin – From Sheriff’s Office – To Information 
Technology(.5)/Sheriff’s Office(.5) – From IT Support Technician – To IT 
Administrator and Support Senior – 08/19/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Tyler Solberg 
10.  Fred Lavin – Public Works – From Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator 
Senior – To Public Works Roads Lead – 08/19/13 – Public Works Fund – 
Replacing Richard Short 
REQUEST TO POST: 
11.  Sheriff’s Office – IT Administrative Support Senior – Position vacated by 
Lisa Modglin 
12.  Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – Position vacated by Sylvia Martinez 
Sheriff’s Office – Jail Intelligence/Professional Standard – Position vacated by 
John DeSanti 
13.  Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Position vacated by Amber 
Warden 
 
AUGUST 20, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  David Palmer – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/23/13 – General 
Fund – DOH 09/27/12 – Resignation 
2.  Justin Durbin – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – 08/16/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 03/11/13 – Unsuccessful completion of probationary 
period 
3.  Tannyn Garcia – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/12/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 07/01/13 – Resignation 

Page 10 of 13 
 



NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
4.  Zachary Navarro – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker – 
08/26/13 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – Replacing Randy Tober 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Thomas Dando – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – 
08/28/13 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund  
6.  James Gibson – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – 
08/28/13 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund  
7.  Kevin Kittle – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 08/27/13 – General 
(.5)/Adult Probation Service Fees (.5) Funds 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8.  Alfonso Alvarez – From Recorder’s Office – To Elections Department – From 
Voter Outreach Assistant – To Elections Specialist – 08/26/13 – General Fund 
– Replacing Dave Rogers 
REQUEST TO POST: 
9.  Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – Position vacated 
by Kenneth Payne Sr. 
10.  Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – Position vacated by Justin Durbin 
 
AUGUST 27, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Amber Campbell – School Superintendent’s Office – Accounting Clerk – 
08/30/13 – General Fund – DOH 10/01/12 – Resignation 
2.  Sophia Hill – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 
08/22/13 – Various Funds – DOH 06/17/13 – Unsuccessful completion of 
probationary period 
3.  Frank Zupancic – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 
09/13/13 – Public Works Fund – DOH 09/08/86 – Retirement  
4.  Bree’na York – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 08/30/13 – 
Various Funds – DOH 07/01/97 – Resignation  
5.  Christopher Bender – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/25/13 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/27/06 – Resignation  
6.  George Carrillo – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/27/13 – General 
Fund – DOH 06/11/12 – Resignation  
7.  Christopher Thorne – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 
08/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 06/10/13 – End of temporary employment 
8.  Curtis Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 
9.  David Oropeza – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 
10.  Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 
11.  Nathaneal Cutter – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 08/22/13 – 
Fleet Management Fund – DOH 05/12/08 – Resignation 
12.  Daniel Mikolay – Finance – Accountant Senior – 08/26/13 – General Fund 
– DOH 8/26/13 – Declined position  

Page 11 of 13 
 



TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
13.  Bree’na York – Community Services – Temporary Fiscal Services Manager – 
09/02/13 – Various Funds 
14.  Esmeralda Renteria – Community Services – WEX Participant – 09/09/13 
– Workforce Investment Act Fund – Replacing Stephanie Hawk 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
15.  Dana Lindsey – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 07/08/13 – General 
Fund – Temporary reduction in hours worked 
REQUEST TO POST: 
16.  Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Position vacated by Nathaneal 
Cutter 
17.  Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher Supervisor – Position vacated by Candice 
Jorgenson 
18.  Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – Position vacated by Christine 
Duarte 
19.  Sheriff’s Office – Professional Standards Investigator – Position vacated by 
John DeSanti 
20.  Community Services – Fiscal Service Manager – Position vacated by 
Bree’na York 
21.  Community Services – Administrative Clerk – Position vacated by Pamela 
Wagner 
22.  School Superintendent’s Office – Accounting Clerk – Position vacated by 
Amber Campbell 
 
O. Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of August 5, 2013, to 
August 9, 2013; and August 12, 2013, to August 16, 2013.  
 
P.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of August 
27, 2013, and September 3, 2013.  
 
August 27, 2013 
 
$309,009.82 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 256212 
through 256356.  
 
September 3, 2013 
 
$1,330,014.56 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 256357 
through 256491.  (An itemized list of disbursements is attached to the 
minutes.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4-A through 4-P. 
 

Page 12 of 13 
 



5.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit to 
allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within 
the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors.  Board members may not 
discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of 
an open call to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors 
may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the 
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put 
on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
6.  At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may 
present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken on 
issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:04 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 13 of 13 
 



BOARD OF EQUALIZATION MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  September 3, 2013 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Marian Sheppard                                                        
Vice-Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV from Payson); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Deborah Hughes, 
Assessor; Larry Huffer, Chief Appraiser; Joseph Williams, Appraiser (via ITV 
from Payson); Marilyn Brewer, Executive Assistant to Supervisor Marcanti; and 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER  
 
The Gila County Board of Equalization met at 1:30 p.m. this date in the Board 
of Supervisors’ hearing room.   
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action regarding a Petition for Review of 
Proposed Correction that was submitted by Denise Moen for Assessor’s 
tax parcel number 302-11-035C. 
 
Larry Huffer, Chief Appraiser, provided the Board of Equalization (BOE) with 
some written materials, and he referred to the first two pages of the handout 
entitled “History of Parcel 302-11-035C (Subject Property).”  He advised that in 
January 2012, Denise Moen requested that tax parcel numbers 302-11-035A 
and 302-11-035B be combined into one parcel, which was done and it is now 
known as tax parcel 302-11-035C.  On September 30, 2012, a Notice of 
Change Card was mailed to Ms. Moen and shortly thereafter she filed a Petition 
for Review of Notice of Change to request that the 16% assessment ratio for 
vacant land and a storage building be changed to a 10% assessment ratio 
because there is a house on the property.  At that time Mr. Huffer advised Ms. 
Moen that he was unaware there is a house upon the property.  A hearing was 
held before the BOE, and the BOE granted the legal classification change to a 
10% assessment ratio because of the house being located upon the property.  
Thereafter, a Notice of Proposed Correction was mailed to Ms. Moen advising 

Page 1 of 3 
 



her that the value of the house was added to the full cash value of the property 
for tax year 2013 because it was not previously included on Gila County’s tax 
roll for that tax year.  
 
Mr. Huffer noted that the original Notice of Proposed Correction stated a full 
cash value of $125,162 and the Petition for Review of Proposed Correction 
submitted by Ms. Moen stated that the owner’s opinion of the full cash value 
was $86,909 with a statement that the property is still under construction; it 
has been an ongoing project for several years; and there is more work to be 
done, especially with regard to road improvements. 
 
Ms. Moen submitted a Residential Petition for Review of Valuation for tax year 
2014, which stated that the owner’s opinion of the full cash value was $80,000.  
Mr. Huffer advised that the Assessor’s Office consequently lowered the full cash 
value to $86,909 based upon a field inspection of the property.  Mr. Huffer 
stated, “I know the petitioner will accept that amount of $86,909.” 
 
Ms. Moen stated, “I am in complete agreement on the value of the property per 
Larry.”  She acknowledged that her house needs additional work.  Her concern 
is the condition of the road to/from her property and she advised that is the 
reason she asked the Whispering Pines Fire Department to visit the property to 
determine whether the Fire Department would be able to respond to a fire on 
her property, if one occurred.  Ms. Moen presented the Board with a letter from 
Fire Chief Ron Sattelmaier that was dated April 11, 2013.  The letter states, 
“Based upon my inspection and observations I believe it to be tenuous at best 
for our firefighting apparatus to be able to safely negotiate the narrow and 
washed out portion of North Rocking Horse Road which passes in front of your 
property, or for that matter any property located beyond 175 North Rocking 
Horse Road going toward your property and beyond.”  The letter also states 
that there does not appear to be any adequate turnaround area for emergency 
vehicles anywhere in the vicinity.  Ms. Moen also presented a letter written to 
Brent Cline of the Gila County Roads Department that was from Mark V. 
Yarish with a request for the County to make improvements to “Rockinghorse 
Bend Road.” Attached to the letter was a formal statement that the property 
owners would give permission for the County to access their property for the 
purposes of a survey and construction of basic improvements to the road, and 
acknowledgement that it will be the property owner’s responsibility to provide 
permitting and installation of any driveway culverts required as a result of any 
such improvements.  The notification listed the names of the owners of 23 
parcels of land within the area known as Bonita Creek Ranch 2.  
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that Ms. Moen and the other property owners 
need to contact the County Roads Department to determine whether the 
County would be able to make any improvements to the road.  She stated that 
the road issue is a separate issue from the property’s valuation, which is the 
purpose of today’s hearing.   

Page 2 of 3 
 



 
Chairman Pastor stated that there is a County process to have a private road 
changed to a County road.  Vice-Chairman Martin suggested to Ms. Moen that 
she get in contact with Steve Sanders of the County’s Engineering Department.  
Mr. Huffer advised that the road is a public road.  Vice-Chairman Martin added 
that even though a road may be designated as a public road, it cannot be 
accepted into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System unless certain 
County standards are met. 
 
Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to uphold the Assessor’s opinion of the full 
cash value on parcel numbers -035A and -035B.  Deborah Hughes, Assessor, 
stated that the parcels have been combined into one parcel, parcel 302-11-
035C.  Supervisor Marcanti amended his motion to uphold the Assessor’s 
opinion of the full cash value on parcel number 301-11-035C in the amount of 
$86,909 for tax year 2014.  The Board unanimously approved the motion.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 1:52 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 3 of 3 
 



   

ARF-2097     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/01/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 9-6-13; and 9-13-13

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
9-6-13; and 9-13-13.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of July 1, 2013, to July 5, 2013; July 8, 2013, to July
12, 2013; and July 15, 2013, to July 19, 2013.

Attachments
County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 9-6-13 and
9-13-13
Amendment No. 2 with Payson Place LLC
Service Agreement No. 082613-1 with Culligan
2013-2014 Contract with Advance Forensic Assessments
2013-2014 Contract with Amity Foundation
2013-2014 Contract with Norchem Drug Testing
2013-2014 Contract with Redwood Toxicology Labs
2013-2014 Contract with Horizon Human Services
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 041213 with Stanley Security
Service Agreement No. 082013-1 with Hold Communications
Agreement No. 090313 with Payson Rodeo Committee
Radvision Maintenance Renewal with Windstream
Service Agreement No. 070513 with World Wide Technology Inc.



Page 1 of 3 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
September 02, 2013 to September 06, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Payson Place, LLC 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 2 to Lease 

Agreement  
 

 
 

$9,851.52 
 

 
 

 9-1-13 to 8-31-14  

 
 

9-4-13 

 
 

Expires 

 
Extension to lease agreement for County 
Attorney’s office in Payson, AZ.  Brad Beauchamp 
agreed to a $100.00/month rent increase. New 
price is reflected on Amendment No. 2. 
 

 
082613-1 
Culligan 

  

 
Service Agreement No. 082613-1 

Detention Center Repair of 
Water Softener 

 
Not to exceed 

$3,000.00 
 

 
 

8-26-13 to 11-26-13  

 
 

9-4-13 

 
 

Expires 

 
Service call to repair water softener if cost 
effective. If not cost effective, Culligan is to quote 
price for replacement, only. 
 

 
 

Advance Forensic 
Assessments 

  

 
 

Gila County Superior Court 
Probation Department 

Limited Services Contract 
 

 
 

$35,000.00 
 

 
 

7-1-13 to 6-30-14  

 
 

9-4-13 

 
 

Option to renew 
for four (4) 

additional one (1) 
year periods 

 

 
Advance Forensic Assessments, Inc. polygraph 
examinations on post-convicted sex offenders. 

 
Amity Foundation 

  

 
Gila County Superior Court 

Probation Department 
Limited Services Contract 

 

 
 

$35,000.00 
 

 
 

7-1-13 to 6-30-14  

 
 

9-4-13 

 
 

Option to renew 
for four (4) 

additional one (1) 
year periods 

 

 
Amity Foundation provides substance abuse 
treatment to probationers. 
 

 
Norchem Drug Testing 

  

 
Gila County Superior Court 

Probation Department 
Limited Services Contract 

 

 
$24,000.00 

 

 
7-1-13 to 6-30-14  

 
9-4-13 

 
Option to renew 

for four (4) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

 
Norchem Drug Testing provides drug testing 
services for juvenile probation. 
 

 
Redwood Toxicology 

Laboratory 

 
Gila County Superior Court 

Probation Department 
Limited Services Contract 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 

 
7-1-13 to 6-30-14  

 
9-4-13 

 
Option to renew 

for four (4) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

 
Redwood Toxicology Labs provides professional 
drug testing. 
 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
September 02, 2013 to September 06, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Horizon Human Services 

 
Gila County Superior Court 

Probation Department 
Limited Services Contract 

 

 
$35,000.00 

 

 
7-1-13 to 6-30-14  

 
9-4-13 

 
Option to renew 

for four (4) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

 
Horizon Human Services provides general mental 
health counseling, psychiatric evals, in-patient 
substance abuse treatment and substance abuse 
counseling for probationers. 
 

 
041213 

Stanley Security 
Solutions 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 041213 

Globe Courthouse Additional 
Door Security 

 
 

 
$197.17 

 
5-7-13 to 9-30-13 

 
8-21-13 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 has been written to: 
1. Extend term of contract from 05-31-13 to 09-
30-13 
2. Include warranty language not included in 
original service agreement 
3. Increase contract amount by $197.17 to cover 
cost on an ADA push plate that was overlooked 
when Public Works gave specs to Stanley Security 
for quote. 
 

 
082013-1 

Hold Communications 

 
Service Agreement No. 082013-1 

Buckhead Mesa Landfill 
Telephone Line Repair 

 

 
$210.00 

 
9-4-13 to 10-31-13 

 
9-4-13 

 
Expires 

 
Century Link will not replace the phone line from 
Hwy. 260 to the Landfill because it was originally 
installed by the Road Department many years 
ago. Phone line 3365 continuously fails now so 
the Landfill does not have a landline. 
 

 
090313 

Payson Rodeo 
Committee 

 
Agreement No. 090313 

Between 
Gila County and 

Payson Rodeo Committee, Inc. 
 

 
$10,000.00 

 
N/A 

 
9-6-13 

 
Expires 

 
Educational Development Grant to assist in the 
promotion costs incurred by the Payson Rodeo 
Committee for the “World’s Oldest Continuing 
Rodeo”. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
September 09, 2013 to September 13, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Windstream 

 
Radvision Maintenance 

Renewal  
 
 

 
$13,750.00 

 

 
10-22-13 to 10-21-14  

 
9-11-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Renewal of Radvision Maintenance Agreement for 
county video conference service and secure 
firewall traversal. Agreement covers hardware, 
software, support and replacement as well as any 
code upgrades. Agreement expires August 3, 
2012. The renewal will extend the agreement to 
October 21, 2013.  
 

 
070513 

World Wide Technology, 
Inc. 

 
Service Agreement No. 070513 

Cisco SMARTnet Maintenance 
 
 

 
$42,346.68 

 
7-1-13 to 10-4-14 

 
9-11-13 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide maintenance agreement 
for the County’s Cisco SMARTnet System. 
SMARTnet renewal gives us warranty support on 
all of our Cisco hardware for network 
infrastructure. Covers the main hardware in the 
County. The County is utilizing the pricing from 
the AZ. Dept. of Administration-State 
Procurement Office Co-op contract with World 
Wide Technology.  
 

 


























































































































































































































	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Presentation of Letters of Commendation by the Gila County Sheriff
	Item2.B.  September 2013 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program.
	Item3.A.  Proclamation 2013-07 - _Domestic Violence Awareness Month_ in Gila County
	ATT.Proclamation No. 2013-07
	ATT.Request Letter for Proclamation No. 2013-07
	Item3.B.  Library Service Agreements with  Globe, Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, San Carlos, Tonto Basin and Young Libraries.
	ATT.LSA 2014 Globe
	ATT.LSA 2014 Hayden
	ATT.LSA 2014 Isabelle Hunt (Pine)
	ATT.LSA 2014 Town of Miami
	ATT.LSA 2014 Payson
	ATT.LSA 2014 Tonto Basin
	ATT.LSA 2014 Young
	ATT.Legal Explanations (contracts)
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	ATT.Legal Explanation (IGAs)
	Item3.C.  Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Coolidge for Local Access Point for Coolidge Public Library
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.D.  A Citizen's Petition to Begin the Process to Establish Orient Drive as a Country Dirt Road
	ATT.Citizen's Petition
	ATT.Map
	ATT.Country Dirt Road Guidelines Policy No. ENG03-04
	Item3.E.  Adoption of Resolution No. 13-10-01 regarding Vertical Heights Road
	ATT.Resolution 13-10-01
	ATT.Quit Claim Deed
	Item3.F.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.
	ATT.Gila County Contract No. 111311-1 with Carson Construction Co., Inc.
	ATT.Intergovernmental Agreement with Pine Strawberry Water Improvement District
	ATT.Recap of Charges and Payments for Road  Waterline
	ATT.Carson Construction Co., Inc. Pay Application No. 8
	ATT.Change Order Detail
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.A.  Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014 Arizona Department of Housing
	ATT.Environmental Review Record Contract No. CDBG RA 2014 ADOH
	ATT.Community Development Block Grant Application FY 2013 ADOH
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.B.  Amendment No. 2 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 Arizona Department of Housing
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Funding Agreement 308-11 ADOH
	ATT.Amendment No 1 to Funding Agreement No. 308-11 ADOH
	ATT.Original Contract 308-11 ADOH
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.C.  Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111006001) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.D.  Co-Location Resource Sharing Agreement between Gila County (dba Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Board) and Central Arizona Colldge
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.E.  Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with Arizona Department of Health Services. 
	ATT.ADHS Contract No. ADHS14-053062
	Arizona Department of Health Services has authority to contract for services specified herein in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, 36-104 and 36-132.  The Contractor represents that it has authority to contract for the performance of the servi...
	State of Arizona
	Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date   
	Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date   

	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.F.  FY2014 Economic Grant Agreement in the sum of $10,000 for Time Out Emergency and Transitional Domestic Violence Shelter services in Payson
	ATT.Annual Fact Sheet 
	ATT.Fact Sheet with Charts 
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.G.  Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation Special Event License Application for November 1, 2013
	ATT.Special Event Application CVRMC
	Item4.H.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 9_3_13, 9_10_13, 9_17_13, and 9_24_13.
	ATT.September Human Resources Summary Report
	ATT.09_03_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.09-10-13  Human Resources Report
	ATT.09_17_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.09_24_13 Human Resources Report
	Item4.I.  Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for August 2013
	ATT.Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for August 2013
	Item4.J.  Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Reports for July 2013 and August 2013
	ATT.GLobe Regional Contsbles's Office Monthly Reports for July 2013
	ATT.Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Report for August 2013
	Item4.K.  Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Reports for February 2012, March 2012, and August 2013
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Report 02-12
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Report 03-12
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court Report 08-13
	Item4.L.  Clerk of Superior Court 's Report for the month of August 2013
	ATT.Clerk of Superior Court 's Report for the month of August 2013
	Item4.M.  BOS and BOE 09-03-13 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 09-03-13 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOE 09-03-13 Meeting Minutes
	Item4.N.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 9-6-13_ and 9-13-13
	ATT.County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 9-6-13 and 9-13-13
	ATT.Agreement No. 090313 with Payson Rodeo Committee

